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IN THE FEDERAL COURT OF CANADA 

(TRIAL DIVISION) 

BETWEEN: 

THE HAMLET OF BAKER LAKE, et al. 

Plaintiffs 

- and -

THE MINISTER OF INDIAN AFFAIRS AND 
NORTHERN DEVELOPMENT, et al. 

Defendants 

* * * 

Held before The Honourable Mr. Justice P.M. Mahoney, 
at 330 University Avenue, 8th Floor, Toronto, 
Ontario, May 28th - 31st and June 1st, 1979, 
inclusive. 

* 

APPEARANCES: 

A.E. Golden, Esq., 
D. Estrin, Esq., 

L.P. Chambers, Esq., 
D.T. Sgayias, Esq., 

* 

W . C . Gr ah am , Esq . , Q • C . , 
R.W. Cosman, Esq., 

(As agent for C.T. Thomson) 

W.C. Graham, Esq., Q.C., 
R.W. Cosman, Esq., 

T.G. Heintzman, Esq., 
Ms. Marvyn K. Koenigsbe:?:"g, 

* 

for the Plaintiffs 

for the Minister of Indian 
Affairs and Northern 
Development 

for Essex Minerals 
Company Ltd. 

for Pan Ocean Oil Limited, 
Cominco Ltd., and 
Western Mines Ltd. 

for Urangesellschaft 
Canada Ltd. and 
Noranda Exploration 
Company Ltd. 

VOLUME IX 

Wednesday, May 30, 1979 
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949. 

I N D E X 

Name of Witness 

Elmer Harp 

Examination in Chief by Mr. Golden 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Heintzman 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Graham 
Re-Examination by Mr. Golden 

I: N DE X  OF E X H I B I T S 

Exhibit No. Description 

I-6 Article: The Archaeology 
of the Lower and Middle 
Thelen by Elmer Harp, Jr. 

Page No. 

951 
1027 
1172 
1184 

Page No. 

10 73 
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950. 

---Upon resuming at 9:30, May 30th, 1979 

THE COURT: Before you 

start, Mr. Golden, I suppose in view of your 

indication �hat your case might finish on 

Thursday I should find out too on the other 

side I look to for Friday's witnesses and so 

on. Have you thought in terms of who is 

going to lead the evidence for the Defendant? 

.MR. CHAMBERS: My Lord, 

we have reasonable agreement amongst ourselves. 

The government is prepared to start, if necessary. 

THE COURT: On Friday? 

MR. CHAMBERS: Yes. 

THE COURT: Fine. It 

is just so we do not find ourselves on Friday 

without having anything to do. Fine, Mr. 

Charmers. 

Okay, Mr. Golden? 

MR. GOLDEN: My Lord, 

I should be able to perhaps give a more 

definite indication by late this afternoon. 

THE COURT: I know we 

are going to be here well into next week. It 

is just in order to avoid any hiatus. 

MR. GOLDEN: My first 

witness this morning, My Lord, is Dr. Elmer 

Harp. 

DR. ELMER HARP , JR. , Trn-JN OF HANOVER, IN TEE 
STATE OF 1-.1E\·l H.P-.MPSEIRE, tJNITED ST�.TES OF A}�RICA: St7OR, 
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EXJ>l-HNATION IN CHIEF 

951. E. Harp, ex in chf 
{Golden) 

THE COURT P.EGISTRAR: State 

your name, your addr�ss and your occupation for 

�he court, please. 

THE WITNESS: My name is 

Elmer Harp, Jr. My home is in the Town of 

Hanover, in the State of New Hampshire, U.S. A.,  

post office box 856. I am a professor of 

anthropology, Emeritus in Hanover. 

THE COURT: You may sit 

down, Dr., if you wish. 

BY MR. GOLDEN: 

Q. I wonder if you have 

your papers with you. There is a report you 

indicated you had? 

A. No, I am sorry, sir, 

I left them back on my chair 

That was the 1960 paper. 

the second one in. 

Q. I have a few things 

to do, but I want you to have available the 

Polar Gas Study -- the references from that. 

A. I'm sorry, I don't 

have that one. I recall �he general notation 

of these. 

Q. We have a copy of 

it and we can provide it at the right time: 

Dr. Harp, you have sworn 

an Affidavit which has been filed in this action 
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952. E. Haro, ex in chf 
( Golde�) 

on the 26th of April, 1979? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is t�at correct? 

A. Yes. 

MR. GOLDEN: My Lord, 

may we take the Affidavit as having been 

read? 

THE COURT: Unless there 

is any objection, okay, the Affidavit is taken 

as read. 

M:R. GOLDEN: Tha�k you, 

My Lord. 

AFFIDAVIT 

I, DOCTOR ELMER HARP, JR. , 

Professor, of the town of Hanover, in the State 

of New Hampshire, one of the United States of 

America, make oath and say as follows: 

I presently hold the 

position of Professor Emeritus at Dartmouth 

College, in the town of Hanover, New Hampshire. 

Now shown to rr.e and marked 

as Exhibit "A" to this ny Affidavit is a true copy 

of my curriculum vitae. 

I am the author of a stucy 

entitled The Archaeoloqy of the Lower and Middle 

Thelon, Northwest Territories. This paper was 

published as Technical Paper #8 by the Arctic 

Institut� of North Pl!\erica in December of 1961. 
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953. E. Harp, ev in chf 
(Golden) 

During the surrmer of 1958 

I made an archaeological reconnaisance of the 

Thelen River country_ west of Ba1<er Lake in the 

Northwest Territories. This was the 

first such exploration of its kind in that area. 

Now shown to me and marked 

as Exhibit "B" to this ny Affidavit is a true 

copy of figure one from that study which is a 

map showing the area of the survey that I 

undertook. 

During the two months that 

myself and a colleague undertook this archaeological 

investigation, we discovered 42 sites of 

archaeological significance and further 

investigated 4 sites which had been previously 

known. The distribution of the sites are 

as follows: 

10 at the western end of 

Baker Lake; 

12 on Schultz Lake; 

9 around Aberdeen Lake; 

13 on Beverley Lake; and 

2 on Grant Lake. 

Now shown to me and 

marked as Exhibit "C" to this my Affidavit is 

a true copy of figure two from that study 

which shows the detailed locations of these 

sites. 
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9 5 4. E. Earp, ex in chf 
( Go le.en) 

A total of 734 specimens 

were collected and the entire collection has now 

been returned for permanent keeping to the 

National Museum of Canada in Ottawa. 

An analysis of these 

sites and of these artifacts enables an 

Archaeologist to draw conclusions regarding 

the historical use of these areas. 

Approximately one-half 

of the total number of sites discovered can 

be attributed to more or less lengthy 

occupation. The occupation sites were most 

readily identified by the presence of tent 

rings or other dwelling remains. No essential 

pattern was discernible in their general 

distribution, other than constant association 

with the caribou crossings, and there was no 

noticeable regularity in their orientation or 

exposure. A few were situated directly at 

crossings, apparently in the path of 

approaching herds, while others were discovered 

at lateral distances up to several miles from 

a crossing. 

Such variations in 

location, with respect to p=esent day crossings, 

may be an indication that fording places have 

shifted from time to time throughout the period 

of human occupation. 
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9 55. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Gale.en) 

The relatively larqe 

inventory of implement types including cutting 

and piercing tools, as well as scrapers, 

indicate that the peo?le cai�ping at these 

crossings lived a nomadic subsistence hunting 

life style. 

A large nll11'ber of the 

balance of the sites can be identified as 

" lookout -- workshop sites". Frequently 

the sites were on top of eskers or drumlins 

and the chief function of these sites appears 

to have been as a station for game watching. 

The tremendous quantities of quartzite chips 

a�d artifacts littering the surface of some 

of them indicates that the hunters put long 

hours of watching and waiting to good use. 

Given the evidence of 

the site locations, and in t�e absence of 

contravening facts, I believe we nay extend 

the importance of the caribou backward in 

time to encompass the entire period of man's 

habitation on the Barren Grounds in the 

postglacial era. 

I make t�is Affidavit 

pursuant to Rule 482 of t�e Feceral Court 

Act, and for no other or improper purpose. 

ELMER HARP, JR. : Curriculur:i. Vitae 

Personal: Born 13 April 1913, Cleveland, Ohio 
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956. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

Married, four children. 

Citizen U.S.A. 

Education: Harvard College, B. S. 1938, Cur., Laude, 

Anthropology 

Positions: 

Harvard University, M. -P... 19 4 7, 

Anthropology 

Harvard University, Ph.D. , 1953, 

Anthropology 

Harvard University, 1951-53, Russian 

Program 

1939-43 Methods Engineer, Lincoln 

Electric Co. , Cleveland 

1943-46 U. S. N. R. , Line Officer, 

Commanding Officer of Motor 

Torpedo Boats, Mediterranean 

and Southwest Pacific theaters. 

1947-52 Curator of Anthropology, 

Dartmouth College Museum 

1951-57 Assistant Professor of 

Anthropology, Dartmouth 

1957-78 Professor of -P�thropology, 

Dartmouth College 

1959-60 Senior Research Fellow, 

Fulbright Program, Denmark 

1960-72 Chairman, Department of 

Antropology, Dartmouth 

1961-6 8 Director, Dart.mouth College Museu.i-:: 
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1975-76 

19 78-

1978-

957. E. Harp, ex in ch£ 
( Golden) 

Chairman, Department of 

lm t.1-iropology, Dart.rnouth 

Professor of An thropoloqy, 

Emeritus, Dartmouth 

Visiting Professor of 

Anthropology, Dartmouth 

Field Experience in Archaeological Research: 

1947 Southeastern Massachusetts, assisting 

Frederick Johnson, R.S. Peabody Foundation 

1948 Yukon Territory, assisting Frederick 

Johnson 

1949 Labrador and Newfoundland 

19 50 Newfoundland 

1955 Coronation Gulf area, N.W. T. 

1958 Keewatin Barren Grounds, ,-LH.T. 

1961 Labrador and Newfoundland 

19 62 Newfoundland 

19 6 3 Newfoundland 

1967 Richmond Gulf area, P.Q. 

19 70 East coast of Hudson Bay, P . Q. 

1971 Alaska 

197 4 Belcher Islands, N.W.T. 

1975 Belcher Islands, N.1:·l. T. 

1977 Cornwallis, Karluk, and Bathurst 

I s 1 an cs , N • i·7 • T • 

Grants and Awards: 

19 49 Arctic Institute of t�orth America, 

grant for field research 
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958. 

Grants and Awards continued: 

�. Earp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

1950 A.I.N.A. grant for continued field 

research 

1955 �..merican Philosophical Society grant 

for research in Coronation Gulf, 81T 

1958 A.I.N.A. grant for research in Keewatin 

Barren Grounds, m·-7T 

1961 A.I.N.A. grant for research in 

Newfoundland and Labrador 

1962- NSF Grant G-22029 for research in 
6 3  

Port aux Choix, Newfoundland 

1967 NSF Grant GS-1216 for research on 

east coast of Hudson Bay 

1970 NSF Grant GS-2915 to continue above 

research 

1974 NSF Grant GS-42889 for research in 

the Belcher Islanc.s, Hudson Bay, Ni-IT 

1975 NSF Grant SOC74- 13294 AOl to continue 

above research 

Scientific Societies: 

American Anthropological Association, Fellow 

American Society of Photograrnmetry 

Arctic Institute of North A.rnerica, Fellow 

Member, Research Committee, 1961-1966 

Chairman,Arctic Archaeology Advisory 

Committee, 1970--

Current A.�t½ropology, Associate 

Northeastern l'nthropological .l'i.ssoci ation 
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959. 

President, 1969-1970 

E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

Society for American Archaeology 

Assistant Edi tor for Arctic Research, 1956-19 60 

Chairrr.an, t-;ominating Committee, 1971-1972 

Bioaraphical Listinqs: 

American Men of Science, as of 9th edition 

Who's Who in America, as of vol. 36 

Some Relevant Publications: 

1951 "An Archaeological Survey in the Strait 

of Belle Isle Area, " Jl.merican Antiquity, 

vol. 16: 2 03-220. 

1953 "New World Affinities of Cape Dorset 

Culture, 11 Anthropological Pa9ers of the 

University of Alaska, 1(2) : 37-54. 

1957 "Prehistoric Hunters of Newfoundland­

Labrador and their Relationship to 

New England Archaeology. 11 Bulletin of 

the Massachusetts Archaeological Society, 

XVI I I ( 4 ) : 6 5 -6 8 • 

1958 "Prehistory in the Dismal Lake Area, 

N.W.T., Canada, " Arctic, 11 (4) : 218-249. 

1959 "The Moffatt Archaeological Collection 

from the Dubawnt Country, Canada, " 

Jl.merican Antiquity, 24 (4)  : 412-422. 

1961 The Archaeology of the Lower and .Middle 

Thelon, Northwest Territories. Technical 

Paper No. 8, Arctic Institute of North 

Jl.merica. Montreal. 
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19 62 

960. E. Harp, ex 
(Golden) 

"The Culture Histor.1 of the Central 

Barren Grounds. " In Prehistoric 

in chf 

Cultural Relations Between ��e Arctic 

and Temperate Zones of North- America, 

J.M. Cam�bell, editor, Technical Paper 

No. 1 1: 69-75, Arctic Institute of 

North America. Montreal. 

1963a " Archaeological Evidence Bearing on the 

Origin of the Caribou Eskimos. " Actes 

of the VIth International Congress 

of Anthropological and Ethnological 

Sciences, Paris, 1960. Tome II, vol. 

1: 40 9-413. 

1963b "Evidence of Boreal Archaic Culture in 

Southern Labrador and l';ewfoundland, " 

National Museum of Canada, Bulletin 

No. 193, Contributions to Anthrooology 

1961-62, Part I, Paper No. 5: 18 4-261. 

Ottawa. 

1964a The Cultural Affinities of the 

Newfoundland Dorset Eskimos. National 

Museum of Canada, Bulletin 200, 

Anthropological Series No. 67. Ottawa. 

1964b "World ArcticJ.>...rchaeology. 11 In The 

Unbelievable Land, I. Norman Smith, 

editor, pp. 49-54. Department of 

Northern Affairs and National Resources 

and the Northern Service of the Canadian 
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1966 

961. E. Harp, ex 
(Golden) 

Broadcasting Corporation. Ottawa. 

"Anthropology and Remote Sensing." 

Proceedings of the 4th Symposilli� on 

Remote Sensing of Environment. 

University of Michigan, Ann Jl...rbor. 

1968a (with David R. Hughes) 

in 

"Five Prehistoric Burials from Port 

aux Choix, Newfoundland." Polar Notes, 

vol. VIII:1- 47. Hanover. 

1968b "Anthropological Interpretation from 

Color." In Manual of Color Aerial 

Photography, J. T. Smith, editor, 

American Society of Photogra�J:1.etry. 

Falls Church. 

1969 "Optimurn Scales and Emulsions in Air 

Photo Archaeology." Proceedings of 

the VIIIth International Congress of 

Anthropological and Ethnological 

Sciences, vol. III:1963-65. Tokyo. 

1970a "The Prehistoric Indian and Eskimo 

Cultures of Labrador and Newfoundland." 

Proceedings of the VIIth International 

Congress of Anthropological and 

Ethnological Sciences, vol. X:295- 99. 

Moscow. 

1970b "Late Dorset Eskimo Art from 

Newfoundland." Folk, vol. 11- 12: 

109- 124. Copenhagen. 

chf 
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962. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

1974a "Threshold Indicators of Culture in 

Air Photo Archaeology: "!>. Case Study 

in the Arctic." In P.erial Photograph·,, 

in Anthropological Field Research. 

E. Z. Vogt, editor. Earvard Cniversity 

Press. Carrbridge. 

1974b "Aerial Photography for the .Arctic 

Archaeologist. " In ;,..erial Remote 

Sensina Techniques in Archaeologv, 

T. R. Lyons and R. K. Hitchcock, 

editors. Prescott College Press. 

Prescott. 

19 75a " A  Late Dorset Copper ;,..mulet from 

Southeastern Hucson Bay. " Folk, 

vol. 17. Copenhagen. 

1975b " The Objectives of Archaeological 

Photography. " In Photography in 

Archaeological Research, E. Harp, 

Jr., editor. School of �.nerican 

Research Advanced Seninar Series. 

University of New Mexico Press. 

Albuquerque. 

19 75c "Basic Considerations in the Use 

of Aerial Photography. " In Photograi;,hy 

in Archaeological Research. E. 

Harp, Jr. , editor. School of 

American Research Advanced Seminar 

Series. University of New Mexico 
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96 3 .  

Press. Albuquerque. 

E. Earp, ex in chf 
(Golden ) 

19 7 6 . " Dorset Eskimo Settlement Patterns 

in Newfoundland  and Sout�eastern 

Hudson Bav." In Eastern Arctic 

Prehistory, Moreau 1•!axwell , ed. , 

Memoirs of the Society for 

America.11 Archaeology , t,o. 3 1. 

19 7 8  " Pioneer Cultures o f  the Subartic and 

In Press: 

the Arctic." In lmcient Native 

Americans, Jesse D. Jenninqs, ed., 

W. H. Freeman and Company , San 

Francisco. 

"Arctic Archaeology in the �ost \·!orld 

War II Period. " In Handbook of 

North American Indians, vol. V, 

Arctic, David J. Damas, ed., 

Smithsonian Institution, 

Washington. 

Recent Consulting Experience: 

19 6 9 - 79 : 

Field surveilla�ce of the trans-Alaska 

oi 1 pipeline, for Bureau of Land · 

Ma.11agement, U.S. Department of Interior. 

Polar Gas Project: field 

reconnaissance in Arctic 

Archipelago , N.W.T. 

Cultural Resources Evaluation of the 
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964. E .  Harp, ex in chf 
( Golden) 

White Mountain National Fores t, for 

U.S. Forest Service. 

Ohio River Bank Erosion Study , for 

U. S. Army Corps of Engineers. 

Several reconnais sance surveys in 

New Hampshire and Vermont for private 

engineering companies, the city of 

Manchester, N . H. ,  anc the town of 

Winooski, Vt. 

BY MR. GOLDEN: 

Q .  Before we comme nce 

with the Affidavit its elf perhaps dealing 

with it briefly, do you have a copy? 

A .  I do . 

Q. I have produced an 

acetate overlay on a map which concerns t..'"le 

Baker Lake area. On t..'"lat there are, I am 

informed -- and ask you to deal wit.h it in 

your own evidence -- that there are archaeological 

sites shown as small dots . These sites, I 

a.m told, are taken from the paper which you 

delivered following your work in tJ-ie area, 

and in addition, sites identified by researchers 

engaged by the Polar Gas in a project with 

which you had some identification? 

A. That is correct. 

Q .  Now, referring to 

your mm paper and referring to -- your own 
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965. E. Harp , ex in 
(Golden) 

pap�r which I gave back to you -- and referring 

to the study, could you identify the sites for 

us, please? This is all done for the purpose 

of identifying this acetate overlay and then 

we will go into the evidence following that . 

THE COURT: This is the 

first overlay? 

MR. GOLDEN: Yes, the 

one immediately above Exhibit --

THE COURT: Exhibit P-9? 

1-!R. GOLDEN: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: It ' s  a 

little more difficult for me to separate these 

dots and designations at this scale, but I 

could tell you, for e xample , on the northwest 

N shore of ��e lake around the present day 

C Baker Hamlet I discovered and worked in four 
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different sites. One of these had previously 

been visited by Father Guy Mary-Rouselliere 

who tested it, and I did some subsequent work 

on the same site and then explored a little 

further around in the country and discovered 

four others . 

BY MR . GOLDEN : 

Q .  Hhich area woulc 

that be? Can you show us? 

A. That would be just 

to the l�ft of the star which I take it indicates 

chf 
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966. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Colden) 

the _location of the south . 

Q. Yes. There are 

actually five sites indicated on there. If 

we look, we can see five. 

as r.R? 

They are identified 

A .  That's the Cemetery 

F.ill? 

Q .  Eiqht, thirteen to 

the east of the --

A .  And eleven and tw-elve 

to the west. 

Q .  Now, then 

A. Those are the ones 

I worked in, yes. 

Q. And you identified 

those on the map as being an accurate �lacement 

of those sites? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Subject to the 

A. Sufficient for the 

scale , I would think. 

Q .  Now, then, can you 

show us the other sites in which you were 

currently engaged? 

A. Well, then, I travelled 

across the lake to the southwest comer and 

spent some time in camp there exploring around 

a small place called Qikirtuaj aq Lake, which 
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967 . E • I"l a� , ex in ch f 
(Colden) 

is a fishing lake where people come regularly 

early in the S illT'�er for the fishing rlms. At 

the time that I was over the�e the Constab les 

for the RCMP were actually in camp on a little 

island t�ere catching fish for dog food. 

In explorations aroun d that part of the lake 

I discovered and worked in five other sites. 

They are numbered 14, 15, 16, 17 and 1 8. 

Q .  Yes. We have those 

sites numbered here? 

A. They are all in 

and around the outlet of that little lake 

which flows right in there. 

Q .  Yes. Thank you. 

A .  They are on hot,.11 

side s , e as t a.'1 d west . 

Q. Can you then identify 

the further site that you have 9ersonally 

worked on, using -this map? 

A. Going back into 

the country? 

Q .  Yes. 

A. Well, following 

t.:.11at little spell at the southwest end of 

the la�e, we returned briefly to the Hamlet 

to -- we had been waiting, incidentally, 

for the ice to come out of the river so we 

could move up into the country by canoe 
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96 8. E .  Harp , ex in chf 
(Golden) 

and so along toward the middle of July -- I 

don ' t  remember the exact date at the moment 

we were able to move up river and operate 

back in the country. Therefore, we established 

a series a camps goins up the lower Thelon River 

to the lower end of Schultz Lake. Then we hac. 

a series of base camps at the various narrows 

along t.� is chain of lak:es until we got back 

into the interior , as far as Beverly Lake . 

Each of these bases we occupied for a few 

days or a week , explored way out as far as 

we could comfortably do -- sometimes by foot , someti�es 

by canoe--at each of these places which I 

had predetermined ,  really before entering 

the field, we discovered, in every instance , 

a number of prehistoric hunting sites. These 

were all located at or near major caribou 

crossings. 

Q .  Just for the 

purpose of the record, can you identify the 

sites here marked,  starting at the east end 

of Sch ultz Lake as one, two , three , and four? 

A .  Yes. I gave -- I 

used the local place names -- mainly the la�e 

names as designated for these sites -- they 
-

are simply abbreviated -- I used initials SL 

for Schultz Lake and ,  then , the series of sites 

we dis covered around Schultz Lake was kept as a 
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969. E. Parp, ex  in chf 
( Golden) 

unit and, then, we moved westward to J>berdeen, 

that became a separate series of sites, so forth, 

so on, so that I could easily cisti nsuish those. 

Now, around Schult z  Lake 

at the southwestern end of the lake, I discovered 

and worked in four different discrete sites, 

of which one had four distinguishable components 

or un its -- subunits -- within it. So, in other 

words, we have there essentially seven 9rehistoric 

sites at the southwestern end of the lake --

southeastern end. 

Q. Southeastern end? 

A. Yes. 

Q. They are n1.ll:'bered 

one, two, three and four en this? 

A. That ' s  correct. 

Site nurrber two had 

the one with four components ; 2 a, 2 b, 2c and 2d. 

8 of your paper? 

Q. That is shown on page 

A. Yes. 

MR. GOLDEN: We will 

file the paper, My Lord, but unfortunately 

we did not have a clean copy of it until today 

and we have had to do some extra xeroxing. 

It will be delivered before Dr. Earp finishes 

his evidence in chief. I will file the original 

as an exhibit at the ap?ropri ate time but I would 
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9 70 . E. Earp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

like him to deal with it for the tirne being. 

THE i;·:ITNESS: Then we 

moved on to the western ena o f  Schultz Lake. 

BY t-1P.. GOLDE N: 

Q. And there -­

A. There I set up 

camp in the southwestern end an d  discovered 

and worked in three more sites nu.'T'bered 5 ,  

6 and 7 .  

Q. Five, six and seven 

at the southwestern end? 

A. Yes. There is 

an eighth site on the northwestern end and 

discovered that on the way back out near 

the end of the summer. 

in your map? 

Q. That ' s  num½er 8 

A .  Nt.1I!1ber 8 . 

0.. Thank you. 

A. Then we moved on 

next up in the narr0v_1s between Schultz Lake 

and Aberdeen Lake and set up camp at the 

northeastern end of J�erdeen, explored around 

there and discoverec. again -- work and 

collected in four different sites which are 

called ALl, 2,  3, and 4. 

Q .  i·le have them shown 

on the nort..11eastern corner as 2 ,  3 2n c. 4 ,  hut 
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9 7 1 .  E. Harp, ex in ch f 
(Golden) 

your designation is ALl, 2, 3 and 4 ?  

A. Correct. You nay 

notice directly across the strait at that 

point on the south or eastern side there is 

a site numbered 9 .  This, again, is one of 

those that we picked up on the way out of the 

country at the end of the sUIT1mer. 

shown? 

Is that 

Q. There is a 9 

up at Schultz Lake, but I think you're talking 

about .Aberdeen? 

A. There should be a 

9 in here. Here we are. 

in here that number 9. 

Q. Maybe we missed one. 

A. That should be right 

Q. Nu�ber 9 should 

be in.mediately across from 4 at the eastern 

end of Aberdeen Lake? 

about that. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Thank you. Sorry 

It is an oversight. 

A. Then we moved 

approximately to the mid-point of Aberdeen 

Lake where a large peninsula juts northward 

and creates a rat..rier tight narrow a:r.d set 

up camp near the tip of that narrows and 

found and worked in one nore site. 
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nurrber 5? 

9 7 2 . E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golcen ) 

Q. That is nurrbered 

A. That's ALS. 

Q. Thank you, Doctor. 

Now, corning back to the Baker Lake area. 1·1e 

have located the maps -- first of all, did 

you have any active or consulting role with 

the study in respect to a study prepared by 

Peter Schledermann, the A:rctic Institute of 

Nor th  America? 

A .  Yes, I did . 

Q .  That was a study 

P. . Yes. I acted as 

a Senior Consultant on this proj ect . 

Q .  A ll I would like 

you to do at this point is identify . for us , 

if you would, on this map sites which are 

shown in the Baker Lake and Thirty Mile area, 

which are not sites that I understand you 

personally have worked on . I produce to you 

the two maps involved. First of all, ��e 

southwestern area of Baker Lab� . You worked 

in here? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. You indicated 

your sites in that area? 

A . Yes . 
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973. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

Q. Can you indicate for 

us, please, the --

A. Well , if you will 

search out the sites nurrbered 1� through 1 8  

HR. HEINTZMAN: I'm 

sorry, what is he referring to? 

MR. GOLDEN: This is 

the Polar Gas Study, the survey of archaeological 

sites . 

THE WITNESS: Page 2 15. 

MR. GOLDEN: The survey 

of archaeological sites prepared by Polar Gas. 

MR. HEH;TZMll . .N: My Lord, 

I am not familiar with that document. From 

what I understanc:. Dr. Harp did not co that 

work. I would like to see the docurnen t. 

MR. GOLDEN: What we 

are trying to do is 

THE COURT: Let your 

opposition understand what you are doing. 

MR. GOLDEN: Obviously 

I am identifying kncwn archaeological sites 

for the purpose of establishing this overlay. 

We have, as I indicated yesterday, sites that 

are located fron two sources . Cne is from the 

Polar Gas Study and L�e other -- the first one, 

of course, is Dr. Harp ' s  own personal work. 
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974 .  E. Harp , ex in chf 
(Golden) 

Now, he was a Consultant 

on the Polar Gas Study and has some familiarity 

with the work t..11a t was done. We are not 

relying in any way on archaeological finds 

in the Polar Gas Study, but sir.ply identifying 

all the known 2.rchaeological sites in the area. 

THE COURT: Well, did 

Dr . Harp find those sites that are in L"'"le 

Polar Gas Study or --

MR. GOLDE N :  No. 

THE COURT: simply 

to tell us that the Polar Gas Study indicates 

there are sites? 

MR. GOLDEN : Yes, the 

Polar Gas Study was a survey of 2.rchaeological 

sites, rather trl an a study of them. As Your 

Lordship will understand the Polar Gas is 

building a pipeline, and down its route they 

wanted to identi fy archaeological sites 

or those nearest route. I don't know --

presumably for the purpose of avoiding them. 

THE COURT: Is it 

the intention that what the Polar Gas Study 

tells us where it locates archaeological 

sites is to be evidence of archaeological 

sites and are, in fact, there? 

MR . GOLDEN: No, 

except to show that archaeological sites have 
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975. E. TTarp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

been identified in those areas. h'e are not 

going to go further with that evidence because 

no work has been done on those sites. Ne are 

not goinq to go into the findinss in those 

sites. 

THE COURT: 

what it proves, honestly. 

I don ' t  know 

MR. GOLDEN: For the 

sake of completeness, frankly. Initially, 

in developing this material, we drew on 

all the available resources we could. We do 

not want to put in a map ��at's half complete. 

On the other hand, we do not plan to prove 

anything on the sites that are now being 

entered. 

THE COURT : I �-uess 

we have a map that is an exhibit that we 

had better have an explanation of what t�e 

other spots on -the overlay are. 

MR. HEINTZMJ>..N: Maybe 

my friend can make available this new book 

that Mr. Harp's Affidavit directed me to 

some material, and including the 196 1  

article. I would certainly like to reserve 

my objection until I see what it is that Mr. 

Golden is now referring to. 

THE COURT: That ' s  fine, 

Mr. Heintzman. But we really do need the 
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976. E. Earp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

explanation of the other marks on the ove�lay. 

MR. GOLDE�: That is 

where it will end. I do not plan to proceed 

any further. 

Q. Basically, Dr . 

Earp , can you tell us about the sites shown 

as SC on the southwest corner of Baker Lake 

and down at Thirty Mile Lake with reference 

to the source of identifyinq those sites? 

A. These resulted from 

a sort of statistical scale sampling techniaue 

that Dr. Nash was following as he explored 

along this proposed pipeline route . It is 

sort of automatically selected in one sense. 

In any case, I think all of these additional 

sites at the southwest end of Baker Lake -­

and that would be all those numbered above 

1 8, beginning with 19 on -- were discovered 

by Nash and his party, very briefly surveyed, 

surface collected, and are briefly described 

in this report. As I recall, t..1-iey essentially 

confirmed and broadened the spectru□ of sites 

-- smaller spectrum that I had established 

some years before. In other words, they 

became a potential source of much fuller 

information than I was able to obtain in the 

area. As I recall, offhand, we have a sequence 

of Eskimo occupations in that ar�a that runs from 
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9 77 . E. Harp , ex in chf 
(Golden) 

recent historic period back into prehistoric 

times, as far as what we know the pre-Dorset 

period which nay be as early as 10 00 D.C. 

Q. I will be asking 

you to detail your own findings in that respec t 

in just a few moments. 

To keep again along the 

lines o f  the question I was asking of 

identifying these black dots so we can get 

rid of this problem, can 

A. All of  these little 

black dots I have seen and identified on the 

map in b�is report as sites discovered �v 

Nash anc his party. 

Q. Does that include 

the ones at Thirty Mile Lake which are nurnbered, 

I think, 1 through 14? 

A. Yes. We can say 

the sar.i.e for those. I have not been back in 

that cour1try around Thirty �Hle Lake, so I 

have not had individual experience there. 

Q. And the southwest 

corner of Baker Lake, 1'1ash also observed 

the sites nunihered 2 0 , 24, 25 ,  26? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Going up the river 

to the northwest? 

P... Yes. 
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978. E .  Harp, ex in c�f 
( Golden) 

Q. Thank you . We will 

now go on to nore salient �atters . 

On reviewing your curriculur.. 

vitae and, of course, your A�fidavit, we see 

in 19 5 8  you conducted an expedition in Keewatin 

Barren Grounds, in the northwest Territories. 

Referring again to the map, Exhibit P-9, 

briefly, can you tell us -- I realize you 

have just done it but I would like you to do 

it now more directly for the purposes of the 

record -- what areas you covered-- and we will 

deal again in detail with that in a norr,en t-­

�hat areas did you cover in your exoedition 

in that year? 

A. We started in the 

area of the BaJ.-:er Lake settle!:'.e:r: t, nort:-:.west 

end of the lake, explored l:riefly the 

surrounding country , shifted across ��e lake, 

set up camp at the southwest end o f  the lake, 

explored there brief ly for a few days, 

and t...1-ien we moved by canoe U!) the river through 

a series of t...1-iree camps to the upper rapids, 

and at these various mid-points explored 

briefly into t�e surrounding country, but I 

was anxious to move and get back into t�e 

interior so we did not spend too nuch ti�e 

here . However, once we caree out on top at 

the lower end -- the east end of Schultz Lake 
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9 7 9 .  E .  Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

there we began our ma j or encampment. These 

were all tentatively located at maj or caribou 

crossings where I was especially interested 

in exploring for archaeological remains. 

So, we had a series of ca:r:1ps at both ends 

of Schultz Lake, had three caDps on I�erdeen 

Lake and we had four camps on Beverly Lake . 

Q .  Yes. 

A. Our last camp was 

quite near the upper end of -- western end 

of Beverly Lake.· 

Q. Yes. 

A. Then on the return 

trip w� moved rather hurriedly through the 

lakes-- it was late in sur:ir.,er and we had 

excellent weather we did not waste too 

much time because we were trying to get 

out and get a plane -- so we had one -­

five brief ca:r:1ps on t.11e way out a11d that 

enabled us to explore other areas. So, 

we had, throughout the summer, I think 

made a fair explorative sampling along 

both sides of the chain of lakes at some 

of the more important caribou crossing areas. 

Q. Were your findings 

in that expedition reported in a paper which 

is referred to in paragraph 3 of your Affidavit, 

published by Technical Paper No. 8 by the Arctic 
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9 80.  E.  Earp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

Insi:itute of North America in December of 196 1? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I understand you 

have an original in your hand? 

A. A copy. 

Q. You have a copy of 

that paper. Would it be a terrible imposition 

to part with it and substitute with a xerox? 

A. Not at all. 

MR. GOLDE�: My Lord, 

I wonder if we might have that marked as an 

exhibit? 

P-22. 

THE COURT: Exhibit 

MR. GR.AHJl.11: I object, 

My Lord. I object to have that marked as 

an exhibit. I think it would be perfectly 

appro?riate for any of the counsel here 

to use that paper for cross-examination 

as it has been referred to in Dr. Earp's 

Affidavit. I would like to draw your 

attention to the Chief Justice Jackett, 

reported in 1978 , Vol. l, Federal Court 

Reports . The name of the case is Karam vs. 

The National Capital Commission. Eis Lordship 

had this to say about expert evidence and 

reports which are filed with this court, 

which we know has a special rule in respect 
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9 8 1 .  E. Harp , ex in chf 
(Golden) 

thereof. I quote His Lordship that I wish 

to add that a perusal of so�e of the Affidavits 

of the experts filed in G�is case lead �e 

to believe Rule 4 8 2  is being followed hv 

some counsel , if at all, in the letter rather 

than in the spirit. Indeed, in my view, 

the result is less satisfactory than the 

voluntary exchange of  evaluation reports. 

I strongly suggest that. When expert ' s  

Affidavit is not contained sufficiently in 

a detailed statement of the expert's reasoning 

so that the court, in the absence of a ttad�, 

adopt that reasoning as its own and decide 

the question that it's the sub j ect of is 

evidence on the basis of it, the parties 

should not be alloMed to sup�lement it by 

verbal testimony until such supple�entary 

Affidavit is filed containing such reasoninq 

and the other side and court have had an 

opportunity to consider if that involves adjournments, 

costs thrown away that should be assessed 

against the party at fault. 

Now, My Lord, in this 

particular case His Lordship was �irecting 

hi�self even to G�e adniission of additional 

verbal testimony. What we have got here 

now is a complete additional document, which 

my friend wants to file as an exhibit, which 
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9 82. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golcen) 

really he ' s  making it part of the Affidavit. 

I find -- speaking for myself -- as I say, 

it was referred to in the report, and I 

can see it being used for cross-examination, 

but I cannot see my friend being allowed to 

proceed in this way and say that ' s  all 

part of  the Affidavit and that ' s  all part 

of the expert evidence of this witness. 

That is the Federal Court of Appeal. I 

believe the rest of the members of  the court, 

Justice LeDane and Justice Kerr concur, but 

it doesn't say t,ey were concurring with that 

part of the judgment or not but concurred in 

the result. 

THE COURT : Well, I 

have been rather expecting this sort of  

obj ection for some tine. I think there is a 

real problem. If you want to sit down for 

a while, t"!is may be a good tire. 

THE WITr:ESS ; T.'1 a'1k you, 

sir. 

THE COURT: There was 

a real problem wi t.ri the expert Affidavit the 

other day. I thought the rule requires that 

the evic.ence in chief be fully dis closed in 

the expert Affidavit. The examination of 

expert Affidavits filed in patent cases -­

perhaps to a lesser extent in expropriation 
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9 8 3 .  E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

cases -- in this court will indicate the �ort 

of Affidavits that really ough t to be filed. 

Now, I don I t know what the court does unc.er 

sub two of Rule 4G2b to be have a discretion 

to allow any on such terms as being j ust. 

is a large and extensive trial. I am not 

disposed to allow people to be taken by 

surprise by expert evidence, but I, on the 

other hand, am not disposed to go back to 

square one with the case and force anybody 

deprive anybody of the right to present a 

full and fair case. Now, I have no idea 

what is in that report. 

either. 

I guess you don ' t  

I have 

some idea. 

THE COURT: I think 

This 

what we maybe should do is take a brief 

adj ournnent now so that you can look at it. 

If, in fact , the Defendants feel they are 

taken by surprise and require time to prepare 

to respond then I am afraid we will have no 

choice but to adjourn and give them that time. 

MR. GOLDEN: Did my friends 

say they didn ' t  see this paper? It was 

specifically mentioned in our Affidavit . 

MR . GPJI.J-IAH : No. 

MR. GOLDEN: It is a long 
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9 8 4 .  E. Earp , ex in c::if 
(Golden) 

and technical paper. Fran kl y ,  if I may say 

at th is poin t ,  it ' s  not - - the Affidavit stands 

on its own. I felt , frank ly , in fairness that 

the paper which is ful l o f  scientific data 

and has very little in it _appea ling to the 

layman - - certainly nothing that I want 

read verbatim into the record for purposes 
. , 

of the witness own testimony -- I felt 

it was only fair that we file it , and that 

everyone concerned have an opportunity to 

if t�ey like to try to shoot holes in t�e 

scientific findings. I t  is the only definitive 

study in the area. I thought it should be 

before the court. Now , if my friends have 

not seen it , frank ly , I find it difficult 

to assume they haven ' t  read it because b½ey 

have prepared this case very carefully and 

they had adequate notice of it. We have all  

the archaeological paners written on it and 

got this research and actuall y  got this one , 

not from Dr. Earp , but from the library . 

THE COURT : Thnt ' s  

V...r. Grahruu ' s  poin t ,  that it is there for 

cross- exar.-.ination but t�at you ,  in your 

evidence in chief , must depend on what 

you disclosed in the Affidavit. 

MR. GRAEN-1 : I f  Chief 

Justice Jackett says that ' s  the evidence and 
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(Golden) 

Your Lordship -- if this is �ace a� e xhibit and 

Your Lordship says in reasons for jud�rent 

I find on page 3 2  as you quote this as being 

a fact that is found , I think that is very 

different than if  the natter comes up in 

cross-examination. Of course, I do not 

pretend -- I have seen it. We have all  seen 

it. 

MR. GOLDEN: There is 

no surprise. 

It is 

making it part of the proof. 

THE COURT : As I uncerstand 

the rule, you have fi led an Affidavit, Mr. 

Golden, of Dr. Earp ' s  quali�ications . Thev 

are included in that. Eis e1q:,ertise in th.e 

field is unquestioned. Ee has arrived at a 

nu.mber of conclusions. Those are disclosed 

in the Affidavit. is your evidence in 

chief. You have also disclosed some background 

material, which certainly your opponents nay 

take advantage of and test Dr. Harp ' s  conclusions 

and so on, but 

MR. EEE1TZilA.N: Hy Lord, 

may I speak to this matter? 

THE COURT : Yes. 

I think 

it is only fair that I say I have reac. Dr . Earp's 
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9 8 6 . r:. Harp, ex i n  chf 
( Golden) 

article and I arn prepared to cros s-exanine 

hiD at sane length upon the arti cle. ':'hat is 

not really the point that is being spoken to, 

of course, b ecause I tolc1. Pr. Golden at the 

beg-inning of this case ti11at it was an essential 

ingredient to his case that he prove the 

use· of occupancy from tiI11e irrmemorial, ano 

that the only way to do that is through 

archaeological evidence. On the face of it there 

did not appear to be any archaeologi cal 

evidence tendered on behalf of the Plaintiff 

directed to that issue. I want to be ver� 

clearly on t�e record that it is an essential 

ingredient of the part of the case and the 

Plaintiff must put in all of its archaeological 

evidence in chief and not in reply. That being 

the case, I an,_ preparec. to cross-exarr.i ne Dr. 

Harp, but I must say that the purpose of the 

rule is so we will know what he testifies in 

chief and if there are things that come out in 

ch ief for which I am not prepared to examine 

it may be that I will require at that time 

some time to tender further evidence in response 

to Dr. Harp's testimony. That is really t11e 

position I wish to put forward to Your Lordship. 

If at the end of Dr. Harp's evidence we require 

further evidence to answer the archaeologi cal 

case which my friend now seeks to put forward 
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9 87 . E. Harp, 
(Golcen) 

and which he did not put forward in his 

Affidavit ,  then, I think that will be my 

time to say A, I may need more expert 

evidence and B, the Plaintiff shall not be 

permitted to call any evidence in reply . 

THE COURT : Wel 1, my 

own disposition in this matter is that we 

ex in 

will have as many adjournments as are necessary 

to do the thing properly. The case is not 

going to succeed or fail on questions of 

non-compliance with the rules as to ac.duction 

of evidence. I think your posi tion now, Mr . 

Golden , is that the ob jection that Pr. Graham 

has made is well taken. If you are content 

to rest D r. Earp's evidence on his Affidavit 

as duly filed under Rule 482,  fine anc. dandy. 

If you feel that you must set further evidence 

• .c cn.1.. 

in chief, then, we will have to get a supplementary 

Affidavit and adjourn and do properly so. 

MR. GOLDEN : I think 

perh aps I should explain more carefully 

then the purpose for •.vhich I filed this paper. 

I don ' t  know whether my friends reallv t.mne�stancl. 

this or not, but as counsel for the Plaintiffs 

in this action, I think i t  is encurrbent upon 

me to be as candid as I can and as fair as I 

can. When I present a witness i� the first 

instance -- now, I an not dealin<:: wi t...'1 the 
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9 8 8 .  

issues Mr. Heintzman raises 

E. Har�, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

that is a 

separate issue and I will have to deal with 

it quite separately -- I am dealino now with 

the issue Mr. Grahar'.l raises -- t-:r. Heintzman 

j oins him -- and t�at is, I should not file 

the paper. I want to say here and now that 

the paper is not intended by me to be 

specifically evidence of facts contained 

in it. What I am doing is, in t11e course 

of -- the paper was mentioned in Dr. Earp's 

Affidavit in the course of elaborating 

upon some of the points that he has made 

in his Affidavit it may be necessary for 

him to refer to a specific site or a 

specific complex described or somet11ing else 

and it may come up, indeed, in cros s-exarina tion 

-- my friend Mr. Heintzman promi�es that it 

will -- and I t11ought it only fair and 

convenient that the paper be before the 

court. I do not intend to use it in place 

of the evidence of Dr. Harp. To the contrary. 

It was designed specifically to allow a full 

presentation of his evidence. I must say 

that I also was not sufficiently fa.P..iliar 

with the rule to understand that I had to 

file scientific papers written by the deponent 

as part of the Affidavit. I thought it 

was sufficient that I outline t�� evidence 
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9 89 . E. Harp, ex in c� f 
( Go le.en) 

that the ceponent was giving. Per�aps I should 

have put more emph2.sis on t:iese affidavits on 

specific evicence , but I still fe lt there 

was room for verbal evidence within t.11e ·scope of 

the Affidavit. However, dealing specifically 

with the question of the paper, I am in Your 

Lordship ' s  hands. I do not care if it goes 

in. Frankly, I have put it in to convenience 

my friends and to convenience the court and 

to convenience the witness in dealing with 

the questions that were going to arise. If 

it doesn ' t  go in and if my friend chooses to 

cross-examine on it L11en I will ask that it 

go in at that time. 

THE COURT: You may 

have grou.�cs for doing it then. 

MR. GOLDEN: Frankly, 

I think we are all being unduly technical. 

'i'-le all know �-1.r. Heintzman will cross-exar:,ine 

on this point and he is presumbly -- _ presurnably 

had read the paper and presumably going to 

deal with it. What are we doing here? �,?e 

cannot be playing such fine technicalities 

that I should not put it in as part of my 

case in chief in order that it be before the 

court. I do not intend to have Dr. Harp 

-- specifically have no questions for him to 

refer to it. 
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THE COURT: 

E. Harp, 
(Golden) 

I am not 

going t o  accept anybody being unduly 

ex in chf 

technical at either side. There is a purpose 

to the rule. It is to prevent, I suppose, 

victory by ar.tbush in the area of exnert 

evidence and to give a fair opportunity to 

the opposing parties to  prepare, to reply 

to  expert evidence. I guess Mr. Graham has 

made his objection. His objection is well 

founded on the rule. If you do not care 

personally if that goes in right now, then 

I guess we can go on. 

MR. GOLDEN: Give Dr. 

Harp his copy back. 

THE COURT: It may 

very well be if it comes up in cross-examination 

that there will be an opening where it 

properly co�es in. 

MR. GOLDEN : I will 

say right here and now if one word is 

mentioned I intend to  insist that it be 

entered as an exhibit . 

My Lord, we have 

ariot.1-ier matt er to  deal with. My friend 

Mr. Heintzman was kind enough to  t ell me 

how to present my case. I have had the 

benefit of his counsel -- I sometimes ta�e 

it -- but when he's my opponent I usually 
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9 9 1 .  E .  Harp, ex in ch£ 
(Golden) 

don ' t. I elect the latter in this case. 

Dr. Earp �resented in 

the forn of an Af fidavit, sworn on the 2 6 th 

of April of t.'1.is year, and we received, I 

might say quite unexpectedly , a form --

I will not say it is an Affidavit within t..11e 

rule because it ' s  not -- a form of docur:-,ent 

from Mr. Heintzman containing two papers 

published by Dr . McGhee. I have read those 

papers a number of tines . I am not certain 

they are relevant to the issues in this 

action. I am not certain what points he 

wishes to make by filing the papers. �here 

is no statement in his docUi�ent indicating 

evidence that Dr. McGhee is soins to give 

-- there isn ' t  the docurnent vou 

would expect -- that is a c.ocument signed 

by Dr. �-�cGhee set tins forth t:1e basis of 

his evidence at all-- if we are going to 

be ambushed I suppose I am getting ready 

to be ambushed. I decided, an d  I stick 

with that decision, not to split my case 

but not to anticipate Dr. l:icGhee either 

or indeed anyone else that my friends intend 

to call that will deal with the archaeological 

evidence. I will wait until Dr. VcGhee or 

a"ly other witness r::y friend chooses to call 

to testify -- ano. I have hac. a.'"1 -'- . -'-opp or ... uni '--Y 
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9 9 2 . E. Ear?, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

to cross-examine theD -- and at that point 

if  I consider it to be abrade �uestion which 

I feel will need rebuttal evidence, I will 

feel quite free to call  rehuttal evidence. 

tfuat ny friend sought to do �as to try to 

head r:1e o f f  fro!7\ calling rebuttal evidence. 

I don't intend to be headed off in calling 

rebuttal evidence. We don ' t  have any basis 

on which to know whether Dr. McGhee ' s  evidence 

will be germane to the case. 

THE COURT: Certainly 

in the area of rebuttal evidence you are not 

subject to the constrai:r:t we have been 

discussing as far as evidence in chief 

is concerned. 

MR . GOLDE�J : I t,,1-iink 

my friend ' s  point is that he wanted rr.e to 

deal with the entire matter of Dr. McGhee ' s  

paper through Dr. Harp. Dr. Earp will  deal 

with his own evidence and not evidence of 

anyone else . If my friend chooses to 

cross-examine to put propositions made 

by other persons that is his privilege 

to do so. But, I wil l not lead evidence 

and I wil l  not be in a position of precluding 

reply on that question. I don ' t  consider 

Dr. McGhee 's thesis, whatever it may be, 

to be an issue at this tirr.e. 
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993. E. H arp, ex in chf 
(C:olden) 

P.R . EEINTZJ'-!F-17: So that 

I may be clear on the recorc ,  it is the 

? laintif =s ' case anc l'1r . Golden r:,ade i t  clear 

in openinq it nust be the Plaintiffs ' case, 

because the Plaintiff s  and their ancestors 

reside in this area since time immemoria l .  

If he seeks to lead any evidence of an 

archaeological nature, he must do so in 

chief it is not pursuan t to a rule of 

practice, it is written in the rules of court 

-- that is pursuant to the rules of practice 

that are written in the rules of evidence . 

MR. GOLDEN : My friend 

need not flog that, I am quite aware of that. 

My point is, I am not going to dea l with 

reply in chief. 

THE COURT : ·Vie are 

spending a great deal of time fighting about 

a bridge that is some miles cown the road. 

MR . GOLDE1� : 

i t  only because my friend did. 

TEE COURT : 

I raise 

The caveat 

has been filed and you indicated that you 

are 

MR. GOLDEN: I hope my 

friend overheard carefully that I do not 

consider Dr. Mc�hee ' s  paper to be sufficient 

as an Afficavit under the rules. I wil l  be 
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99 4 .  E. Harn, ex in chf 
(Golde�) 

objecting to it at the appropriate time to 

any evidence being given by Dr. McGhee at any 

point. 

l<R . HEIN'.:'7,MAN : fvlv Lore. I 

I take strong exception to that. 

but --

MR. GOLDEN: You may, 

MR. HEINTZMAN: Just 

a minute. i,rnen we were in Baker Lake all 

counsel agreed that His lordship would read 

these Affidavits or materials filed pursuant 

to the rules. This is no time to say these 

materials are not properly before the court. 

MR. GOLDEN : No, I 

didn't waive require8ents of the rules. I 

simply 

TEE COURT : I think, 

in fairness, Mr. Heintzman, what the agreement 

that I be perr.-,itted to read the ex?erts' 

Affidavits in advance was simply that it 

would enable me to be better prepared for 

just such events as we  are now experiencing. 

It was certainly not, in my view, then 

binding upon the parties necessarily to advance 

that expert evidence at all. It was put verf 

fundamentally. 

MR. HEINTZMAN: Surely, 

My Lord, if I walked into You:::- Lordship ' s  char.i.bers 
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9 9 5 . E. Earp, ex in c� f 
(Gale.en) 

with a piece of paper on which I had written 

nv nare n:' frie:;-,.c. v,oulc have said , '' ':•Tell , that 

is not an Affidavit or a ce rtificate �:'.der 

the rules .  " Ee has per:;-:c.i tted the court to 

reac the A :: fidavi t ,  a.,d the Aff ic.avi t, in JTN 

submiss ion is before the court. I don ' t  want 

to be taken by s urprise. I have filed t�is 

Affidavit, and there is not a suggesti on s�at 

has been made that it ' s  not in confornity 

with the rules until two minutes aso - -

it has Dr. �cGhee ' s  signature on it, it has 

his na!:'.e --

the s iqna ture? 

MR. GOLDEN : Where is 

MR. EEINTZMAN: Right 

at the verj front. It s ays by Robert McGhee. 

That's his s ignature. 

I do not 

understanct. 

THE CO URT: I think 

s urely we should deal with t:1e ao.rnis sibili ty 

or otherwise of  Dr. McGhee's expert evidence 

when Dr. McGhee is present or when you 

introduce it. 

MR. EEil1TZMl\.N : I con I t  

want to be a:r:ibushed. 

�HE COURT: I c.on ' t  

think you ara soing to be. You have h ad f air 
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996. E. Earp ex in chf 
(Golden) 

warning, I-'..r. Eeintznan. 

i'-:R • GOLDE�i : I intencec. 

at t�e conclus ion, tiy Lcrd , of ou:::- evic.ence, 

before we closed the case to indicate to �r. 

Heintzman , who was going next -- which he 

is not now -- to indicate to hi1:1 L'1at I 

would ob j ect -- it would be able to give 

him an opportunity to bring a motion if he 

saw fit because  I wanted a statement of 

Dr . .McGhee ' s  evidence -- apart from his 

article -- and I quote him a cas e Mr. 

Graham quoted to me, Karan , whic:-i say s  

j ust that. 

THE COuRT : V7e 11, 

you know, we are in a very odd position 

here, basically, that I am going to have 

to resolve. The issue of fact, I take it 

that is of concern, is the allegation in 

the Statement of Claim that thes e lands 

have been occupied by the Inuit s ince 

time i�memorial. The Crown has ac.mitted 

that. One Defendant has adrr,itted that 

in his Statement of C€fence. It is not 

in issue as far as the Crown is concerned . 

You dispute it. I don ' t  know where we end 
. 

up. If evidence goes one way and the Crown 

has admitted it the other, �'1at is going to 

present a very interesting problem, from my 
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9 97. E. Earp, ev in ch £ 
(Golden ) 

point of view . i'.nyway, let ' s  ae al with Dr. 

McGhee w�en we get to Dr. McGhee and let 1 s worry 

about Dr. Earp n O'\-.' . 

MR . GOLDI: r-J :  t1y friend 

however does have notice and I will not make it 

again so --

Mr. Golden. 

THE COUR'I' : Yes. 

BY MR. GOLDEN : 

Okay, 

Q. Dr. Earp, I should 

like to ask you some general questions about 

the science of archaeology, if I may? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Can you help us, 

please, to detemine what is the science of 

archaeology and what are the limits? 

A. Well, I personally 

was brought up and educated in the broad 

liberal arts tradition and learned that 

archaeology is one phase or one aspect of 

broad study of anthropology which, in general, 

is the science of �ankind. 

When we say an throp9 logy, 

this is one of the broadest, Most problistic 

kinds of investigations known anywhere or 

disciplines, too, if  you don ' t  rr:ind calling 

it that, because we are interested in the 

human species in biological terMs, evolution 
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998. E. Earp , ex in chf 
(Golden) 

from lm-:er forms of animal life , un less you 

are a fundamentalist, we are interes ted in 

various human cultures t�roughout the world 

and interested in all these phenonena throughout 

t�e entire sp an -- time span of human history . 

This means that ninety-nine percen t of total 

concern perhaps lies in the prehistoric past 

before the development of writing the written 

record. This is nine percent segment of human 

history that can only be understood through 

the technique of archae ology , whic:1 is 

j ust that. In my opinion, it is a series of 

techniques or methods used for retrieving 

information fron the past and analyzinq and 

interpreting this naterial evidence so that 

we can better understan d our current hlli�an 

condition. 

Now, you spoke about 

the lirr.itation of archaeology. �his is 

a very important con sideration , really , because 

obviously we have extreme limited evidence to 

deal with from the ancient past.  In some 

areas of the world where conditions are 

ideal or optimum the material goods renain 

preserved for perhaps thousancs of years 

because of the dryness, desiccation , so on 

so forth. But, in most other places they 

may disappear and cisintesrate and, more 
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9 9 9 . E. Earp, ex  in chf 
(Golc:.en) 

specifically, when we are dealing with Artie 

cultures in prehistoric time, �e find that 

in most instances the sites occupied hy these 

people in the past contain j ust t::e few . little 

meager tools, weapons, anc:. other kinds o f  

implenents that were made of imperishable 

material -- primary stone , in some cases 

ivory and bone that may be preserved if 

conditions are right -- sometimes even wood 

-- sometimes these may be preserved very 

decently in frozen subsoil. But more often 

thru� not they are gone. So , in the final 

analysis the evidence we have represen ts 

just a minuscule compound of  the total culture 

of the people involved. Fe cannot infer -­

we can infer from such things as weapon types, 

frequency di stri;:iu tion , various kinc.s of  

tools, what some of  the econonic activitie s 

were going on ar:1onqst these people ,  what 

their subsistence orientation r.;as, parti cularly 

if we have bone we can ic.entify the g2me 

specie , sort of thing. But , we can infer 

very little about the intellectual life of 

these people , for example , fron such minimal 

evidence. So , the point, to Sw-r.IT'.ari ze this 

whole statement, I think is that through 

archaeological evidence we some til:'.es get an 

extremely narrow view of an ancient people and 
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1000 . E. Ear!), ev in chf 
( Golden) 

what t'1eir total lifestyle or culture was . . 

Q. In the terninology 

of a lawyer then even narrrn-1 as it r.ay be 

and isolated Ll-i.ough it may be , the artifacts 

which you may discover r.1ay be the only --

I don't use it as a pun -- the only hard 

evidence that we might have of anything in 

Ll-i.at era? 

1-. . It is all we have. r,Je have 

to be satisfied. We ha.ndle it skillfully 

as we can without being too imaginative , 

too inferential . 

Q. I should like 

briefly -- you knew the areas of concern 

the area to the four points o f  the compass 

off Baker Lake roughly shown on the map up 

here , Exhibit P-9 -- it is not necessarily 

limited to the precise corner , but that a.re a 

and certainly the area in which you have done 

a great deal of your work. Before we come 

to the specifics, ca� you tell us a little 

bit about the cultures that may be found in 

Ll-i.at area -- taking us from t'1e earliest time , 

if t.:.'1ere is any knowledge of them, to the 

present time -- and using not only your 

person al work but obviously related work 

of others? 

A. You refer specifically 
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10 0 1 .  

to this area here? 

E. Harp, ex in c�f 
(Golden) 

Q .  Viell, I understand 

that --

A .  I t  is all 

Q. You might have 

to describe other areas in order to answer 

my question. I would like you to eventually 

be directed to this area. However, what I 

would like you to do is describe the cultural 

phases that - are known in the Arctic , shall we 

say. Let ' s  deal with the Arctic; , c.:;enerally, 

or the Keewatin perhaps. 

A .  That is a si z2.ble 

question but I will try. 

Q.  I will put it another 

way. Can you describe for us what is meant 

by -- first of all, ca."". you cescribe to us 

what is meant by prehistoric? 

with that . 

Ee will start 

A. Well, we can eventually 

use the word prehistoric to denote anything 

earlier than the advent of writing or recordec 

history, or in the case of new ·world peoples, 

before the corning of  the Europeans -- the 

general pre-Columbian period -- and , of course, 

you can see iromediately the boundary of  

prehistorsJ that will vary fro8 place to 

place and time to ti8e. 
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10 0 2 . E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

Q. Roughly, what tire 

fraIT'e are we ta lking about for historic and 

prehistoric in the context of the Keewatin? 

A. Well,  as I recall, 

in the area of Ee stern Eudson Bay, the bounc..ary 

line I suppose could be placed in t�e early 

· seventeenth century 

voyages, Jens Munck 

Thomas Button ' s  

leaving Frobisher out 

of it, farther north, but these early 

voyages were looking for the Northwest passages 

-- again they were rea l ly the advent of 

histor1, I think it is fair to say. 

Q .  \le are talking about 

the early seventeenth century? 

A. Yes � give or 

take . 

Q. That ' s  the beginning 

of the recorc;ed histor:1 of  the are a? 

-P... Yes. 

Q. I ' m not suggesting 

by that that it records every detail of 

every part of every area, but glanci�g ofr 

a g lobe that is where you find it. 

Can you go into the 

cultural area in a similar way and identify 

for us , please, the significance of the terDs 

Dorset and Thule? I an narrowing the issue 

down, obviously, to save time. 
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10 0 3 .  s .  Harp, ex in chf 
( Golcen) 

A. Maybe I should start 

out a little bit earlier than that and say a 

few words about t�e general scope and the 

history -- Eskimo history and culture 

Inuit culture or history. As we understand it 

today, it is a people. These people, of course, 

are the aboriginal first inhabitants of the 

North Ar.1erican Arctic, · . a l l  the ·way fror.i. 

A laska to Greenla..11d. They have, throug)--_out 

tl-ieir entire span of history there -- which goes 

back at least 2 000 B.C., and earlier perhaps 

in the area of the Western l\rctic-- throughout 

t..11.at time span of four to five t'lOUSa.'1 C. years, 

let ' s  say, they have been associated with 

�retie tundra and ceveloped a series of economic 

adaptations that have enabled then to live 

successfully in that kind of biome, shal l we 

say. They are virtual ly unic_::ue in the world 

insofar as we can view them as a genetically 

one ethnic one discrete ethni c  group. 

They speak a corn.�on language across that 

entire spread of the continent, which though 

they may be dialect differences from east to 

west I understand it is mutual ly intelligible 

with a little effort, and at any point along 

the line. Thircly, at least in later classical 

times we can say t11eir essential cultural 

adaptations to the life in this harsh 
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100 4. E. Harp , ex in chf 
(Golden) 

environment contain -- is c�aracterized by 

many cor:�on ele�ents throughout this vast 

geographical spread, cespite the fact the re 

will be local difficulties. Okay. This did 

not happen overnight. It developed through a 

series of developmental stages through people 

and moves. To begin with, we trace the 

origins of the Eskimo people and the underlying 

fundamental elements of their cultural back 

to the western Arctic. We see them corning 

their ancestors as a people coming out of 

Siberia at some point, inhabiting the area 

of Bering Strait perhaps for millennia before 

developing eastward. In order to comprehenc 

and understand this development of their 

culture, of their language and so forth we 

do what we do in most instances, we try to 

group all these diverse facts into manageable 

categories. He t.1-iink of their development 

through forty-five thousand years as having 

taken place through a series of stages . In 

these stages we can see geographical move�ent, 

we can see the evolution of weapon types, 

adaptation , response sometimes to climatic 

change, so on so forth. These stages, as 

we sometimes call then or phases, whether we 

like it or not, we have to plug these into 

our calendar because we trv to understand 
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1005. E. Earp, ex in cl1f 
((;olden) 

everything in terms of time, sequence, and 

give them names. Vost of t:1e names we have 

siven are local place names. 

just. � matter of convenience. 

That is a ll 

The earliest 

stage of what we can tentatively call Eskimc 

culture on the basis of  severely limited 

evidence, moving eastward into the central 

Arctic and eastern Arctic we call pre-Dorset. 

Now, that is a reverse order L�ing because 

there is somet,.t-i ing else called Dorset which 

was i dentified first and ,  then, all of a 

sudden it occurred to other people -- here 

is this stuff down here and it appears to 

be ancestral -- we don't have a decent name 

so let ' s  call it pre-Dorset -- anyway, this 

was a stage of cultural adaptation that appears 

to have been oriented mainly towards land 

hunting -- the caribou, probably the ffiusk-ox, 

perhaps a little bit towards life on the coast, 

little bit of sea mru�.rnal hu.�ting here and 

there -- primarily the emphasis is interior 

hunting . Using these skills they r.:oved eastward 

and inhabited the central A rctic regions, so forth. 

·we can trace this culture b2.ck, incidentally, 

to early tundra hunting cultures, tool tradition 

that Dr. Hilliam Irving ic.entifiec1 �11rough his 

research in 1,:ort.'1ern Alaska on the .,.,. retie 

slope. The time frame for this pre-Dorset 
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1006. E. Harp, ev in chf 
( Golc.en ) 

this first stage of so-called Eskino cul ture 

-- oh, I think in the central Arctic at any 

rate we can place in the realr:1 o:: say ti-10 

thousand to one thousa�d B.C . Take this as 

an approximation. It will vary in some areas, 

earlier as well as later. 

There are two difficulties 

with respect to this. Although we be0in to 

see here the beginnings of  Eskimo economic 

adaptation to life in the Arctic-- obviously 

a pretty successful one because it lastec 

roughly one thousar1d years -- we cannot 

pos i tively i dentify the se peop le as Es�i�os 

because t.1-iey have no human skeletals left 

in their sites yet and, of cot,_rse, we know 

nothing of the language they spoke . Therefore, 

we cannot relate it positively. n ut, growing 

out of that stage then ca�e this succeecing 

Dorset stage which we p lace wi�ely throuqhout 

the central Arctic-- around northern Hudson 

Bay , up throu9h the I s.lands of the Archipelago, 

even into Greenland and all the way down L�e 

Labrador coast into Newfoundland -- so, in 

the space of the next two t.t�ousand years, 

from approximately one thousa.� d  B.C . to 

8000 A.O. -- again a llow for flexibility 

at eit.1-ier end of the scale -- during e1is 

space of tvo thousand years you see this 
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10 0 7 .  E. Earo, e x  in chf 
(Golde;) 

flores cence of Arctic culture which we now · 

can view more certainly as Eskimo, because we 

have a little bit of skeletal evidence from 

several sites which is more clearly rel�ted 

to present day known Inuit people and their 

physical characteristics. TTe still don ' t 

have any language for them, but we can infer 

-- it is not unreasonable -- t..1-iey would have 

spoken an earlier form in the Eskimo language. 

Now, really for the first time we see a 

quite full- blm-m econonic adaptation to sea 

marmnal hunting wit...½ various skills a.'1 d 

specialties allowing these people to hunt 

seals on la.'1d ,  ice , probably at breeding holes , 

and as well as hunting inland <?aI".le, caribou, 

at �ertain seasons of the year. 

Whereas in the pre-Dorset 

stage, most of the sites presently known in 

the interior and the emphasis was on caribou 

hunting. 

In the Dorset stage 

most of the sites we now know are coastal 

sites and the orientation is strongly towards 

sea mammal hunting whereas we knO\v far 

less about them in the interior, alt..½ough we 

a s s ume that most, if  no t all of t..1-\ese groups , 

also on a seasonal basis moved into the 

country to take caribou at the end of the SUIT'.mer .  
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100 8 .  E. Harp, ex  in c!1f 
(�olden) 

It is virtual necessity in the Arctic to !1 u..'1t 

caribou because it ' s  so important not only 

as a source for food , but also for skins and 

so forth. 

Then the nezt ma jor 

stage that we identify is given the name Thule, 

and it's derived from 

Q. T - h - u - 1 - e? 

'P . •  T - h - u - 1 - e. 

Q. Yes. 

A .  This name derives 

from the Fifth Thule Expedition staged in the 

early 1920s by the Danish explorer, Rasmussen, 

who had in his party a well known excellent 

archaeologist by the name of Mathiassen, 

who for the first time in his eY:p lorations 

around the northern Hudson Bay besan to 

identify these strange prehistoric settlements 

on higher beach levels that nobody ever paid 

attention to before. He began excavating 

these and began to recognize that he had a 

whole new Eskimo culture. It was �uite different 

from the stuff that was known at that tine. 

Q. Quite different 

from the Dorset? 

A. Well, Dorset culture 

was not known at that time. In fact, so 

little was known about Eskimo culture at that 
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10 0 9 . E. Harp, e x  in c�f 
(Golden) 

time it is 2.I'.1azing that they -- the theories 

they came up with were not wile.er than they 

were. 

lmyhow this Thule culture 

was ultinately, through subsequent field 

research by a number of people, was traced 

back along the path it followed from the 

Bering Sea area in western Alaska. It arose 

there from a basic Eskimo like naritine sea 

mammal huntinq adaptation in the islands and 

on the coast of the Bering Sea. In particular, 

it developed techniques for adva�ced nagivation 

in larger boa ts, and also ,,.,hale h un tir:g 

techniques involving float harpoons -- a new 

technological c.evice, in other words, that 

gave them a · big boost in terns of their 

economic adaptation to the Arctic. If you 

can move out and kill large whales not 

snall species but the big huge ones, you 

immediately have a magnificant fooc. supply, 

and it could take care of a large number of 

groups for a whole season . So, this is a 

distinctive advantage in terms of adaptation . 

Using this advantage these people, beginning 

about 1000 A.D., spread quite rapidly eastward 

from Alaska into the central Arctic. In the 

years, apE)roxinately between 120 0  anc. 1 1� 0 0  A.D. 

again give us sorne leeway on either end 
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(Golden) 

they widely covered the central and eastern 

A�ctic . For a period of time -- for part of 

t�at time in sor.e r,laces they ohviously 

overlapped with the preceeding Dorset 

inhabitants of soDe of t'1ese resi ons. In 

southeastern Eudson Bay we found excavations 

of Thule and Dors et sites sitting sioe bX side that 

date withi n a century of each other. There 

is every suggestion these people knew of 

each other and in a sense were c ompeting with 

one another. Ultimately, the Dorset people 

and their culture simply dropped out of sisht. 

l·:e had no really very good exp lanation for 

thi s. Some people believe t'1ey were obliteratec . 

Some people beli eve the Dorset still exist 

in the mythology of the current Inuit, who 

refer to the� as the strange people who were 

in the c ountry when our forefat�ers came. 

I, for one do not believe they disappeared 

or dropped out of sight. I do not beli eve 

they were obliterated forcefully -- there 

was any genocide of the sort. I think they 

simply became assimilated v1ith the Thule 

people -- most of them 

besides the point. 

but t.11at is 

The Thule people then 

up to 1400 really had to show to themselves 

in  the central eastern Arctic. Then it h as 
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1011. E. Earp, e- in chf 
(Golden) 

been suggested that because of serious climatic 

changes that were occurring in this post-glacial 

era that somethins happene� to their whale 

hunting resources. Several suggestions have 

been made to the effect that because of 

isostatic continental rebound following the 

deglaciation of the region that a lot of 

the northern seas and inlets became too 

shallow for them to hunt large whales in. 

Other people claim there was a climatic 

shift -- a little ice age -- wherein the 

temperature -- the mean temperature altered 

a few degrees and this was enough to thicr:en 

up the ice pattern in the }u-chip�lago and 

therefore block out huge areas -- or 

elir:1.inate huge areas as whale hunting areas. 

So, one or both of these causes or maybe 

some other cause we don ' t  yet ap:)reciate 

caused these people to sort of wash back 

out of the area or retreat -- that is to 

say some of then retreated back because 

we can trace a:r:chaeologically a back wash 

towards Alaska. Then there are other 

isolated groups of then that remained scatter€d 

around the central and eastern Arctic living 

there as best they could and obviously 

successfully because we see no major 

break or discontinuity between them and the 
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1012. E. Harp, ex ir. chf 
(Golden) 

present cay Inuit who inhabit these very s-ame 

areas. We -- I think most authorities agree 

-- that the present day Inuit are the 

decendants of Thule ?eople, who, as I said, 

came from Alaska . AS far as I a� concerned 

there is also a component of earlier Dorset 

levels of people, culture incorporated -­

enmeshed in them. 

Q. Did the Thule 

people inhabit inland areas as well as the 

coast areas? 

A. They did penetrate 

the interior in scr:1e cases, yes, to hunt 

caribou and to hunt musk-ox. I suppose, 

yes, u� in  t�e islands of Archipelago. 

So, this is one of 

the attributes G�at has strongly characterized 

Eskimo culture -- classical Eskimo culture 

in the last -- say fro� the time o f  the 

Dorset people onward down to the present. 

That is, in most instances you cw, say these 

people have practiced at least a dual economy 

in the sense they spent the important part of 

their life at the coast hunting sea ma�Eals, 

one species or another , and at different ti�es 

of the year they will take inland to exploit 

other food resou=ces, such as the caribou herds. 

0. I think- it is a very 
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1013. C. farp, ev in ch� 
( Golc�en) 

interestins and elucidate explanation of 

sor.,e thing we have only heard a fe, .. , isolated 

words, Dorset and Thule, and sives us now 

a fairly good idea of the kine of terminology 

you and perhaps other archaeologists will be 

dealing with in the future in your evidence. 

Can I take you then, 

sir, to your specific work in the Baker Lake 

region, which I uncerstanc you did in 1958. 

Firstly, before taking you to your findi�gs, 

can I ask you if work has been �one, to your 

knowledge , by others -- may I preface by 

saying I understanc your work was the first 

work done in that area? 

work? 

;,._. Yes. 

Q. That is archaeologica l 

A. Yes. ';-,ell, t::e 

first sys te�atic work covering a wiee area. 

I think we have to say t..11at Pather P.ouselliere 

was in Baker Lake a couple of years ahead 

of ne and carried on these brief, ninor 

excavations. I simply was more extensive 

in ny approach. 

Q. Since that tiue I 

understood t�at other archaeologists have 

gone in and examined sone of the sites you 

c.iscovered and also exardned scr.e fresh ones? 
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1014. E. Earo, ex in ch f 
(Golcen) 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. In any o f  the work 

that has been done to date, including Father 

Rousel liere's, has there been any -- I don ' t  

want t o  use the word derogation -- but has 

there been any archaeological findings 

themselves which have altered or changed 

the findings that you nade when you were 

there? 

A. Wel l ,  you asked 

a biased person, of course you better 

check on other people. 

Q. I ' D  not talking 

about theory but findings specifically? 

A. I think it would 

be fair to say the ge�eral scheme o f  

developr,ent in this cou.11try that I suggested 

has been fairly wel l �aintained. Details 

have changed -- scme people do h ave 

different opinions -- but I don't think 

these have been drastical ly different. 

Q. Again, going back 

to  your findings, can you tel l  us, sir, 

dealing wi t..:'1 t.'<le various sites, whether or 

not -- what is the earliest date -- of 

what you called in your evidence Inuit 

occupancy -- in the areas that you have 

discovered? 
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including Dorset. 

10 15 . s. Harp, ex ir. ch f 
(Golden) 

A. The earliest Inuit? 

Q. You define Inuit as 

I want to know --

This is a term 

that, technically spea�ing, you may have a 

little problem with because of varying O!)inions. 

It is the name which the people prefer 

themselves today as their name. Here before 

this present age it was used largely by 

anthropologists and linguists in reference 

to the Eskimo language. So, sometimes there 

was 2. confusion. 

Q .  1:\7lla tever t.1,.e 

terrninology? 

A. The question would 

come as to how far back one should apply b,is 

word Inuit meaning. 

O. Can I use ancestral 

people, then? 

A. I would prefer 

something like that myself 

something 

Q. Can you tell us 

A. -- because that 

gives me a broader scope reaching back. 

Q. Then from your own 

research -- your own work -- can you fix 

an approximate date -- the earliest approximate 
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1016. E .  Har�, ex in ch f 
(Golden) 

date which you find evidence of occupatiori 

of ancestral people to the present day? 

A. Yes, I can in a 

tentative way, because on t�is survey that 

I made I found no datea.ble organic ffiaterials 

in any of these sites and, therefor�, came 

out with no -- absolutely no reliable date. 

I had to establish dates by comparison, 

inference with outside comparisons. So, 

it is possible to set up a series of 

tentative dates. 

The earliest evicence 

then of ancestral Eski�o culture in the area 

woulc. come frora one or two sites around the 

west enc. of Ba1..cer Lake which I ic.entify as 

belonging to the pre-Dorset stage. 

Q. Pre-Dorset? 

A. Yes. It is not 

a strong indication but I t�ink it is a 

small but still fairly substantial indication 

involving the presence of ce rtain tools, 

types of tools, toolmaking technic::ues and 

so forth. The closest geographical 

relationships with the outsic.e world with 

that materia l seen to be -- appear to me 

-- this has been nentioned by one or h.1 0 

other people -- wi t.i-i the :::ire-Dorset 

cultures of t�e northwestern Hudion Bay 
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the Foxe Basin. 

1017 . E .  Earp, ex in c�f 
(Golden ) 

Q. Foxe Basin is 

A. The northern recion 

of Hudson 3ay, up around the southern coast 

of Baffin Island, over towards Fury and 

Hecla Strait and so on. 

Q. Just to pause here 

for a second -- I do not want to break your 

train -- do I understand correctly that 

Baker Lake is open to the sea -- rather, to 

Hudson Bay by water? 

A. Yes, and connects 

with the so-callee. r.arrcws which is stil l 

navigable by sizable vessels and barges. 

It connects through -b'1 is n arrow to Ch esterfield 

Inlet. so its not unfair to consider it ' s  a 

di rect ex tens ion of Euc.son Bay . 

think of it that way myself.  

I be lieve I 

To carry on with this 

point, making that }:ind of connection alloi.vs 

us to place a tentative date, say 1 0 00 B.C . ,  

on this pre-Dorset rr.anifestation o f  Baker 

Lake -- 100 0  B.C. 

Now, so far we don ' t  

have any evidence -- I never found any 

evidence of the subsequent Corset stase 

culture in :Saker Lake or a!'lywhere · else on rr.y 
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101 8. E. Ear;:,, ex in c�f 
(Golden) 

survey. As far as I ar:1 concerned, th at eviderice 

suggests a gap during that period of time . I'm 

not s ure about the reason s for t:1is -- several 

reasons have been suggested and I suppose they 

are irrelevant to my discussion. 

The next evidence of 

Eskimo or ancestral Eskimo culture re�ains o f  

the region comes with the pre sence of Thule 

culture. Here we have a s prinkling of sites 

-- the west end of Baker La"l<:e and stretching 

all the way back into the country into Beverly 

Lake 

Lake 

the narrows at the east end of Beverly 

whereas you see in the re9ort, or have 

seen, that we found this row of hoppins or 

skipping stone. 

Q. We don ' t  have the 

report., 

A. It is a peculiar 

distinctive feature to the culture. And 

there was a sizable settlement on the hilltop 

immediately behind the settlement of Baker Lake.  

Q .  Fhere the cemetery 

is? 

A. No, the cemetery is 

farther west -- you may recall -- it is j ust 

behind the s ettler:-,ent \·lhere there is a lowish 

rocky little plateau like bluff -- it is 

irri.D.ediately behind within half a -mile or le ss. 
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1019. E. IIarp, ex in chf 
(Go lden) 

Just behind this is a rather extensive -- - was 

a rather extensive Thule sett lement. So, 

t.1-iis is a fairly substantia l expression of 

Thule exploitation in this country. Again, 

a lthough I have no positi ve dates from these 

sites themselves , it is reasonab le to corre late 

their time period with others, that we know 

of, out on Hudson Bay -- we have a n t.Unber of 

dated sites outsice on the Bay that run from 

-- mainly from 1200 to 1400, again, give or 

take some on either end of th is range. 

Q .  Yes. 

A. Subseq:uen t ly the 

remains are quite thin and scattered, but t.11ey 

are scattered widely through the country , 

through all  of the country covered by this 

s�rvey, and these relate to recent the 

recent people of the region, the so-ca lled 

caribou people. 

Q. Is there any break, 

t..11at you are aware of, in the--

A. No, there isn ' t. I 

arn not aware of any break. I see just a 9eneral 

continuity of culture that covers a long span 

of time -- at least from Tnule tine downward 

and even though we don ' t  -- even though it 

is difficult, if not inpossible, to plot in 

a precise neat ful l  sequence of o-ccupations, 
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10 2 0 .  E. Earp, ex in ch:: 
(Golden) 

generation after generation , century after 

century, you r:mst rerr.el"."ber that at very rest 

archae ological research is a series o::  

saMpling operations. I could spend ten years 

in this country trarri.ping up anc'. down these 

lakes a.ri d  still Hould not cor.1e out and say 

flatly that I have discovered all prehistoric 

sites or remains in t.11 at reg ion. t-:'e never 

get all the evidence that we need there. �1Te 

do our best to qain a valid sample of i t. 

Q. Amons the difficulties 

you described in archaeological research , you 

describe a lack of inorganic naterial that you 

could use. From what we know of the r.odern 

cultural lifestyle of the Inuit -- and by 

modern I mean historical -- there is living in 

ten ts anc. there is living · in snow hous es whic:: 

is a fairly co�on feature -- ,.-;ould J.. '  • :...n lS cive 

you any difficulty in researc:: ? 

A. �ell, as RY friend 

Dr. Irving said last night, no archaeologist 

has ever cis covered rer:i.ains of sno'd house. 

Fe never will. I see them out occasionally 

on the tundra today -- raybe a circular pattern 

of  rusty tin ca�s -- maybe sorr.ething like that 

is about as good as a sign you might have of a 

snow house. But, we do see in the prehistoric 

pattern season ab le difference between house types. 
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10 21.  
E. Earp, ex  i� chf 
( C:olden)  

There was a rather \·lide spread te!'lcency, as 

far back as we have house evide�ce -- in ny 

case I h ave got loa�s of evi�ence o f  ho�se 

types going back t:.'1.roug:1 the Dorset stage 

in Hudson Bc.y, and we see ser::i-s ubterrai!'l in 

winter houses where they were slightly excavated 

below ground level wh ich were probably 

had pole franework of some kind and with 

skin covers, and may have been banked higher 

wi t...11 snc:M - - in sor.,e ins t2.nces I knrn,1 they 

were banked partially with cut sod -- these 

would be very warm , snug houses constituting 

reasoncb ly stable base . I think when you see 

a house like this you realize that it ' s  taken 

many man hours a..-1d women hours to b uild. They 

are bui 1 t with extreme care. You t.'1.ink there 

must have been nearby sizable food cache e1at 

the people could live on for sone period of 

time throughout the winter months . 

with the spring coming, t:.'1.is 2eant 

Then, 

the seasonal food orientation -- naybe seal 

hunting at the end. 

habitation abandoned 

So, you would find the 

people move off to 

in 

this new hunting place , set up f"'.□re terr,porci.ry 

abodes -- a tent of some kind usually. You 

identify places like this because they are 

generally on the surface of the ground, not 

excavated. The remains, more often t:.'1. a� not, 
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10 2 2 .  !'., .  Har;), ex in 
( Golde n )  

will consist of a series o f  hold fown stones 

around the outsice . 

Q. Which you ca ll ter:t 

rings in yo1.1r paper? 

F . • Yes. It is to hole. 

the tent skin cover down. So, you can. see at 

least this dichotomy -- domestic acaptation in 

houses. 

Q. Well, directing your 

attention again to the researc� you yourself 

have done in the Baker Lake area -- r eferring 

to the various sites -- can you tell us what 

reasonable inferences can be dr awn from the 

size, location and type of structures that you 

found in terrns -- not in terIT'.S now of date 

and time -- but in terms of the utilization 

of these houses? 

A. I found nothin9 

up there that I could identi£y positively as 

a winter site, mainly because I found no 

houses that wer e ser.1i-subterrain, which I 

would have expected to find at least from 

Thule times onward. All of the sites that 

I found were within easy striking distance 

of or directly at caribou crossings. That 

indicates to me they were used either in the 

early sw,ir,er, springtime with northward 

movements of the herd or again late in the 

' .c en 1. 
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1023. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golc.en) 

sun1mer when the small groups of aniDals beqin 

to trickle back southward towards the fore st line. 

That seems like a positive kind of association 

that gives you immediately a seasonal clue. 

0. P.r:tongst those things 

you c.escribed, were they in the Thule period? 

A. The Thule period, yes. 

Q .  Yes. 

A. As well as others 

who -- which may possibly be related to other 

periods that we have no t talked about. 

Q .  Yes. ive probably 

had enough. I am interested in the ancestry 

of the people that presently live in that 

area -- not so much people that live in there 

but L'-1e Inuit peoples in general, and 

re la ting it to t..1-iem, do you have ar:y evidence 

as to what these people -- that is any 

evidence based on archaeology as to what 

these people did, where t..'--iey went in the 

tiree that they were not in these houses? 

A. No, I don ' t  have 

any direct evidence myself. I would assume, 

given the nature of the country, connections 

between Thelen, and the lake sys te!"'.l with 

Chesterfield Inlet, Baker Lake, that they 

had some kind of part-time orientation tc-.-rnrds 

Chesterfield Inlet and Eudson Bav. 
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1024. E. Harp, ex in chf 
(Golden) 

Q. Now, we are dealing 

in a historic period which we �ate from the 

early seventeenth century -- mid-seventeenth 

cen tury when the first explorers were touching 

on the coast line . We are dealing with the 

peor-le shortly after t..�at, at least, t..�at 

are known to have resided inland all year. 

MP. . HE INTZM.AN : i-.Ji th 

the greatest of respect my friend should not 

state a question in that way. I do not think 

i t  is a proper way to state a question to 

a witness in chief. 

BY MR. GOLDEr: : 

Q. Perhaps I had better 

put it another way. It is a notorious fact 

that recently -- if my friend does not want 

me to put it, I won't -- we are assuming t..'ri.e 

obvious -- there is a tire i� h istory -- w�atever 

time you feel to choose -- when \·1e kr.ow that 

people have found ways of li vi:r.g on t:1e 

land inland all year long. Can you bring 

that back to its earliest point, or is it 

inpossible archaeologically to do that? 

handle that. 

evidence. 

A. No. I really can't 

I don't have any archaeological 

Q .  Is there any evidence, 

to your knrn-,ledge,  either way on · tha t <:_:ues tion? 
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1025 . E. Earp, ex in chf  
( Golden) 

A. The only evidence 

I know of in respect to that question co�es 

fron Birket-S!"ni th, the one who reall:/ c.eveloped 

this notion of the people living back in t� is 

country all year round. Ee described it, 

analyzed it. 

Q. His exploration was 

in 

A. The early 1 9 2 0s --

21, 2 3  -- that period, as I recall, wit.� the 

Fifth Thule Expedition. Ee was the ethnologist. 

Q .  The archaeology, from 

the point of view of what we call hard 

evidence -- hard enough to survive to t.�e 

present day if you can find it -- is there 

any hard evidence that's been discoverec 

which would date that type of occupation 

that is, all year round occupation? 

A. Now, the only 

evidence that I could cite relates to 

nest recent times. I remember on the trip 

into the country coming across a nurober of 

recent native sites scattered along the 

lakes and we would find certain gear and 

property that had been left behind - -

a pair of magnificant logs for a sledge 

hani.mer, as an example -- I remember cli .. bing 

a set of those back in Aberc.een Lake -- these 
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1026 . E. Harp,  ex in chf 
( Go le.en) 

were some of the places where a family or 

a hunter planned to return to some later 

scene -- some later year. I reme�ber also 

that surnmer I had one Inuit Eskirr.o g uide. with 

me , Moses AliktikshaJ<: -- I don ' t  know, you 

may remember him -- who was a very fine young 

man -- I hired him and his boat to get me 

back up into the country for the SUITmer . 

U nfortunately, he had severe tuberculosis 

which I didn't reali ze until we got one 

hundred miles back in I heard later he 

had died the f ollcwing winter . At some 

point back on Schultz I rer:1erriber when we 

came upon a cache -- he pointed this out 

to me -- we worked it out in sicn languase , 

drawing pictures and notebooks -- t.11 is was 

his own cache of  winter gear - - he had a 

sledge there ,·1i th a house , a1'!d it had a ·wooden 

door frame , had a couple of cases with heavy 

cooking qear , stones, things like that 

you see, it was all very neatly placed 

there and covered-; That is the sort of 

thing he would plan to co!:'.e back to at some 

future time. 

MR. GOLDEN: Dr . Harp, 

thank you very much . You have been very 

helpful. I a?preciate it. 

THE CO CRT: ;•le wil l take 
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a ten n inute recess. 

---Short re cess 

1027. E.  Earp, cr-e.:-� 
(Hein tzman) 

-- -Cpon resw�ing a :ter recess 

TEE COURT : I :r . Eeintzr::an ? 

CROSS-EXAMI�ATION 

Q .  Thank you ,  !·�y Lord. 

Dr. Harp, when you were dis cussing with �!r. 

Golden D�e nature of  archaeology, I discerned 

the two types of work which archaeologists 

do. One is to dig up artifacts, look at 

them on L�e one hand, a�d on the o�'1er it is 

to analy ze, interpret and make publications 

with respect to these artifacts ; i s  that a 

fair division of your profe ssion ? 

A. Yes, sir, I think 

it is. I would sirp ly add a slight stress , 

in my opinion there are soce who share 

this and sone who don ' t  -- a good archaeologist 

is , first of  all, a fielc tec�ni cian, in the 

sense of gathering a ccurate infor:,_ation, but 

if he ' s  no more than that I do not think he 

is vl0rt'1 his salt because to me an archaeologist 

must be an anthropologist with sor..e understanding 

f or the broacer aspe cts of hur:.an culture. 

,;-;e have to be 2.b le to use t'1 is r:i.ateri ct l, 

otherwise we are loading Ui? r:-:use ur::s , .. ,i th a 

lot of j u..rik. 
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I was going to �ake. 

1028. :c .  Earp, cr-e:-'.: 
(Eeintzr::an) 

0. That ,-:as the point 

There is not much point 

to go to one of these sites,  on Schultz Lake, 

and prowling I should not say n ot much 

there may be a sreat deal provling arounc and 

coning up with artifacts, but the real key 

to your profession is interpreting them 

based upon looking at them, but a vast 

background and other work that's been done 

in the sare area and in other areas, and 

in this case the Arctic? 

good explanation. 

A .  I thin}� t:,at is a 

Q .  That bri�gs ne to 

my next p oint, and that is in inter�re ting 

the artifacts that you find and other 

archaeologists find. I 0ould like to review 

\1i t.'1-i you the kinds of  things you re ly upon 

in order to nake sense o f  them. First o f  all , 

you would rely upon findings Dade by other 

archaeologists in the sa�e site or in the 

same area? 

A. Yes. 

Q. ��d s econdly 

I think you went into this in sol"'.e dec;ree 

artifacts fou,,d in other areas whic:1 bear 

s imilarity or dis similarity which will give 

you clues to what you' re looking at in t.'1-iis 
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particular area? 

102 9 .  

A .  Correct .  

E. Earp , er-ex 
(Heintznan) 

0. I think you gave 

us an example of that, when you were comparing 

what you found in order to come up with a 

Thule derivation for those based upon what 

other archaeologists have reported in other 

areas? 

A. Yes. 

Q .  Would another tool 

that an archaeologist should have regard to 

is what I would call the environmental or 

ecological inforrnation relating to the site 

that he ' s  examining? 

A .  Yes, I think that 

is an important consiceration. 

Q .  And you �entioned 

two -- what I would have thoU<;ht ,·1ere aLr:i.ost 

vital factors in that regarf -- in the 

Arctic and particularly this area of the Arti e 

first of all the caribou. Viould tl::at not 

be probably the Rost environmentally 

significant fact relating to human 

existence on the Barren Grounds? 

A. I think that would 

be a perfectly clear stateDent, yes . It is 

a major -- these herds were so extensive, 

so plentiful that they were a naj or food 
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10 30 . E .  I-Iarp , er-ex 

(Heintzman ) 

resource t.11at could be exploited with re lative 

ease and predictability. Very importa'1t .  

Q .  In fact - -

A. I cannot think of 

any other reaso� for living in the Barren 

Grounds . 

Q. Is  it the pivotal 

point for the people who live in that area? 

A .  I think so . 

Q. Is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q .  And the U..'1de rs tan ding 

of the movement of peoples , would you agree 

with me, that archaeologists asree that the 

migratory patterns of the caribou are some thing 

one should have regard to? 

A. Yes , I would think 

that ' s  quite vital. No more tha.ri: 

Q .  Yes . 

A. May I j ust add; vital 

but no more vital than similar know lec.ge of 

other animal species that constitute maj or 

food resources. This is part of the htLDter ' s  

cultural knowledge and understanding of his 

environment. 

Q. But in the central 

b :1.rren g rounds, woulc. you not agree ,·:i th m e ,  

that the caribou - - particularly in �rehistoric 
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1 0 31. E. Harp, er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

tines -- assmned an importance which 

diminishes all oth er aniral life to relative 

insignificance? 

A. I guess I could 

accept that statement. 

Q .  The otb.er environmental 

factor which you also mentioned is the 

question of weather and temperature. Would 

you not agree with me that changes in climate, 

changes in temperature, particularly in such 

a severe environment, can have very si�nificant 

effects upon living patterns of hurnan beings? 

A. Yes, indeed they 

can, particularly if they represent prolonged 

trends. 

Q. Yes. And this 

could affect relocation of animal life and 

h��an habitation? 

A. Conceivably. 

Q. Another factor 

which I suggest that archaeologists have 

resard to in coming up with a sensible 

explanation for what they find, is actual 

hur:lan observation of people in that area. 

For instance, y-ou mentioned Rasmussen who 

was an explorer and found peop le in the 

Barren Grounds in the 19 2 0s. t:cw, that is 

something ,.-;e can look to fror.i. an_ archaeological 
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10 3 2 .  r. . FarE), er-ex 
( Hein t zr.an) 

poi�t of view ; would you agree �ith that? 

bit tc the idea? 

.71. . Yes. l'ay I ac1d a 

Q .  Yes. 

A .  T!1e Arctic natives 

-- the Inuit, Es�iDos -- are again fairly 

unique -- or at least outstandi ng in another 

respect , and that i s  over t�e total period 

of the occupancy of the A.reti e  there have been 

re latively i nsignificant changes i n  their 

cultural adaptation. Mind you, it hasn ' t  

been perfectly static, but sti l l  for long 

periods of time t�i s  has been a uni for:n tyre 

of cultural exploitation. �his i ncicates 

great cultural st ab i lity and conse rvatism 

on the one h�� c  anc it also incicat es re lative 

stability in the surroundi ng environment. This 

enables us, i n  nany i!1stances , to rake direct 

comparisons between prehi storical past a.n c". 

prac�ices we see a�ong l i7ing �eo?le today i n  

the same area. 1·Je can draw rr.any analogies 

through this kind of conparison. It he lps 

our i nterpretation of past cultures. 

Q. That kine of 

ccn tinui ty would also be true, woulc. it not, 

of other peoples l iving on t:ie :Sarre!1 �rou.nc.s 

not bei ng of Eskimo derivation? 

A. I am not �ui te sure I 
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10  3 3 .  

follow you. 

E .  P.arp, er-ex 
(I-:e in tzf'.\an) 

Q. Perhaps we w i ll co�e 

to that later in t�e discussion . You will 

agree with me that eviden ce of e:9 lorers · who 

have been to t�e particular area is o= 

assistan ce to us in arriving at conclusions 

about the occupation of land? 

A. Yes. 

more t,an ot� ers, of course. 

Some explorers 

Q. And another factor 

I would submit to you is a major factor in 

determi:1g occupation trencs is like linguistic 

trends; would you agree with t�at? 

J.. • I ar:-, not an 

expert in linguistics in any field, and 

certainly not so for the Eski�o people. 

I must be very cautious in what I say here. 

In ny elenentary stucies 

of language, I understa�d l��guages c�anges 

and shifts over periods of ti�e -- a ll languages 

do -- and that is how ultimately new cialects 

or tongues or language families are born - -

cone about even as v1e have seen ta1<e pla ce 

i:1 our own 1anguage from the tine of its 

Indo-European  origins. I understand that  soce 

changes of this nature have taken place among 

Eski�o language. Also, we see at least a 

f�C:.arr.e n tal dichotomy be tween t�e Eskir:,o dialects 
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10 34. E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

of western and southwestern �-laska, ,.-,hich . 

constitute the k ind of subfamily, as opnosed 

to all of the other dialects that arG spoken 

from northern Alaska across the Ar ctic 

all the way to Greenland which is t..>-ie s econd 

subfawily. It's just the separation of 

those two that indicates something about 

changes that have occurred in the last several 

thousand years and the separation of t�e 

people involved speakin g these different 

dialects. It ' s  about as nuch as I ca1 say 

about it. 

Q. Well, isn ' t  the 

sinilarity of the various Eskino dialects 

across northern Canada one of the strongest 

factors in the theories relating to the 

derivation of the Thule culture? 

A. Yes. It is 

cited as a derivative of the Thule movement 

out of Alaska, sweeping into the central 

and eastern Arctic and then the reverse. 

Usually this latter day uniformity that we 

see so widespread through E skimo culture 

is largely attributed to that cowmon �hule 

stem, if one makes proper allowances for 

subregional differences t..>-iat have developec 

since that time. 

Q. �e will come to this 
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1 0 35 . E. I�arp, cr-e}� 
( Eeintz□an) 

in � □oren t I s  not linguistics the tool 

that you, in fact, used in arriving at the 

co� clusion that the people livins i� L�e 

interior barren grour.c1 s 1.--:hic:1 I will 

call t.,�e Caribou-Eskinos \.'ere c:.er i ved 

from the Thule people? Fasn't that probab ly 

the strongest piece of evicence that you 

relied upon for comin0 to that conclusion? 

A .  No, I wouldn't 

say so . .Mr . Heintzman, I mentioned . .... J. ... 

in p assing, as I recall, rnore by way of 

inference I think ��d not -- becausP. I 

am really not - - I don ' t  know enough about 

the linguistics picture to contri�ute 

anything important to it . 

Q.  Was it one of the 

f actors you relied upon ? 

A. I did Dention the 

fact that their dialect was related to the 

general Inupik group or st:b =ar,ily in th� 

central an c1. e2.stern Arctic. This has been 

e stab lishec:. by other people, not re. 

Q .  �hat is a signi ficant 

f actor in correlating the one group with the 

other? 

A .  Yes. I would say 

it is as significant perhaps as other factor s .  

Q .  1-iow, during the 
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10 36. r. Earp, er-ex 
(Hein tznan) 

cou�se of  your examination you were about 

to launc!-1 into the other peop le w�o lived 

in this area before Mr. Gol�en cut you off. 

That is what I would like to tal}: 2.b out. 'I'he 

other people ,-:!10 lived in the central barren 

grounds are of the Plano-Indian historical 

family . Is that correct? 

A. TTe think so, at 

the very earliest ti.me levels. Yes. We don't 

use t.1--iat na.,:,.e to cover the whole expression 

of  Indian utilization of the Barren Grouncs. 

Q . Is there a na�e 

that we can use to save us sane tirae to 

cover that whole --

A .  No . 

Q. -- Indian tradi tion 

in the central barren grounds? 

n .  I wouldn ' t  

fee l safe in tryins to subsume all these 

things under one name. i;•;e do cistinguish 

an early P lano tradition which relates to 

events Ll-iat occurred earlier fart�er south, 

and I t...1--iink He see here a rnovesent of !_:>eoples 

northward into Canada following the deglaciation 

of that region. The first evidence there 

relates to these P lano people. �':e see t.'1at 

evolving slow ly over centu ... .'..es of ti:r:-.e in 

northern b oreal f orest Car1aca into '.vhat is 
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10 37 . E. I-�arp, er-ex 
(Eeintzman) 

commonly known as the Archaic S tage of  new world 

Indian culture. T.�is is , as far as I aP 

concernec, a simple outgrowt'-1 of the earlier 

Plano tradition. 

The Plano tradition, 

as we know it elsewhere in the continent, 

relates more to grasslru,d exploitation 

hunting in Pleistocene times of · large 

game ru,imals on the grassy plains .  

specie, yes. 

Q. The buffalo? 

A. Or the ancestral 

Q. Yes? 

A. Whereas t..11e 

subsequent Archaic Stage, following upo;, 

deglaciation in northern Canada , represents 

an increasingly effect adaptation to forest 

life. 

Q. Yes. 

A. And out of that 

we can , more or less, trace wi t..'-1 some 

confidence t..°11e derivation of the moc.ern 

day or recent Algonquian speaking Indians 

of the boreal forest-- people like the 

Cree or the Chipe·wyan or the Athabascan 

they represent the sort of end point of 

this. 

Q. So, i f  I use the 
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1 0 3 8 .  E. Harp, er-ex 
(Eeintznan) 

word Chipewya or Chipewyan to describe the 

end point, we are talking about culture s 

that have led up to that culture in the 

same way that the modern Inuit culture might 

be derived fron the vari ous cultures you 

described ? 

A. I believe so. 

There are gaps in the story but it seems 

to be a reasonable assumption. 

Q. So , the history 

of the Baker Lake are a, I would suggest to 

you , and as demonstrated by your findings, 

starts with the existence of these people ,  

the Chipewyans and their ancestors in that 

area ; is ��at not correct? 

A .  I wouldn't -­

well, yes, I would rather say the history 

begins with th ese -- the exploitation of 

the Plano like Indians or the earlier ?aleo• 

Indians. I would not want to talk about 

Chipewyans at that point. 

Q .  Paleo -Indians, 

how long can we trace t:iose people back, 

if we call then the original peoples of 

this area? 

A. Well, I had to 

do it larsely by inference since I tac 

no carbon dates. These have since been 
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10  39 . E. Earp , er-ex 
(Hein tznan) 

obt?-ined in the area. As I am sure you will 

know , Dr . James Hright ,  o f  the !·iation2.l l'·�useu.1:: 

of  Canada, \·.1ent into Jl..berdeen ess1=ntia lly on 

my recomnendation , I guess , to excavate fully  

one important cluster of si tes there. 

di d ,  indeed, find very renarkable early Plano 

like remains with c.ateable r:i.a terials of the 

si te. So , we have some pretty finn cates on 

there indicating there was an occupation that 

gees b ack - - how far is i t  five thous c..,d 

years B. C. • in that general order o f  time. 
I 

Q. So , the Plano-Indi c�s 

were in A..berdeen Lake we now know about 5 0 0 0  B . C . ,  

long be fore any modern day Eskimos or their 

predecessors_ Is that correct? 

fl. . Yes. I would have 

to qualify that a little bit and say they 

had a limi ted presence t�ere. Yes. 

Q .  i;,;e 1 1 ,  He c.on ' t know 

how limi ted or unlirni tec. i t  was, do we , 

with any degree of certainty ? 

A. We ll , I think we 

can nake a reason ab le inference. Without 

total proof, i t  seems to me the y were in 

there. They were posi tively there for the 

purpose of hunting caribou. 'Thei r  camps 

were found in one of the maj or crossing 

places in the country. To �e , this imposes 



V 
E 
R 
B 
A 
T 
I 

M 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 
I 
:,..i 
G 

s 
E 

10  R 
V 
I 
C 
E 
s 

R 

E 

15 J 
0 
H 
A 
N 
s 
s 
0 
� 

C 

20 
s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 
A 

0 
25 N 

T 
A 
R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
1 

0 
30 7 

0 
3 

1040 . E. Harp, cr-e:--: 
( Ee in tzman) 

a pretty strict seasonal tine sc�edule en this 

kine of operation . 

Q .  This is ,-;ha t •,,re 

see in subsequent years, is it �ot, that t�e 

Plano-Indians and their oescend:=.nts, le ac1 ing 

up to the Chipewyans, are cor:1.in� up t..11 rough 

the barrenlands into the Baker Lake­

Aberdeen Lake area hunting caribou? 

A.- Yes. 

Q. Can we not see, 

fron your map, t.1,e direction of which they 

·were coning -- because we have t:-ie sites 

down in Grant Lake, ,,;e have t_�e sites that 

you have identified throug�1 Beverly Lake, 

Aberdeen Lake , in to Baker La!(e -- that these 

Plano-Indians were coming from a SOl�thwest 

to northeast direction into t:1e area we 

are concerned with? 

approximate ly so. 

A. Yes, that ' s  

Q .  Do we not know 

that the herds that they were probably 

hunting what was we now call toc:ay 

Beverly Herd? 

A. I guess t;,at' s 

a reasonable inference, yes. r,1ay I ask if 

you are basing this on Dr. Gordon ' s  work 

up there? The differentiation that you are 
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1041 . :s. Earp, cr-e�( 
(Hein tz�an) 

speaking of of the four Major her�s across 

the area? 

Q. Yes. 

Men and Herds in ti11e Barren Grounds Prehistory; 

you are f2.miliar with that, sir? 

Ji. . Yes. 

Q. He was able to 

discern, was he not, a distinct tribe, 

distinct herd relationship? 

A. Yes. I tend to 

agree with that notion. I think • -1-l 1... is vi2ble . 

Q. And it is something 

we can see lasting from five thous c.nc. B . C .  

up to -- we will get to that -- the early 

time of history; is that not correct? 

A. It seems so. 

Q • I t is a pre tty 

strong relationship between t.�ose people 

and that herd to last that long? 

is. 

A. Yes. 

Q . Yes. 

It certainly 

A. But, again, we 

recall that this is the n1.1Ti1ber one food 

resource in the area. Therefore, I am 

not surprised by this. 

Q .  i-Je have mentioned 

two people so far, Dr. t-Jright and Dr. Gorc'Ion. 
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1042 . E. Harp, er-ex 
( Heintznan) 

Both of the� are archaeologists who are attachec. 

to the Nati onal Museum of Man ; you are aware 

of that , I take it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you accept their 

work as worthy of credit? 

A. Yes, indeed. I 

have great respect for both of  them. 

Q. Do you accept their 

opinions as representing valid opinions of 

archaeologists today ?  

A. Yes , indeed. 

One might argue with portions of tJ1eir 

theories, but by a�d large they ' re highly 

re putable men. 

Q. You also mentioned 

Dr. Irving ;  is he another archaeologist? 

A .  Indeed, and 

an old tine friend of mine. 

Q. Has he done work 

in this area? 

A. He has in the 

southern barren grou.� ds, south of the Thelon 

River country, although most of his 

professional work has been in the western 

Arctic and Alask a. 

Q .  l·Jas the work 

which he did in this particular are a done in 
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10 4 3. E. Harp , er- ex 
( Ee int zrr,an) 

con j unction with a man n2.med �-!erbs? 

A. I ' m  not sure to 

what extent .  I know t}1ey were both in terestec. 

in t..�e s��e area at the same ti�e , roughly. 

Merbs is a physical a.J1 thropolo�ist , of 

course , specifically , where as Dr. Irving 

is a prehistoria� ,  like myself. I don I t 

knew the exten t to which they were associated. 

Q. Would you accept 

the opinions of Dr. Irving as worthy of 

credit ?  

A. Yes , indeed. 

Q. Before we get 

into a discussion about sorce of your findings , 

I would like to discuss with you a little bit 

nore about t..1-ie Thule culture. It represented ,  

die it  not ,  quite a real sophistication of 

life in the Arctic ,.-,hich we con ' t see before 

the Thule culture arrived ;  do yoi:. agree with 

that? 

A. I guess I would , 

except I don ' t particularly like the word 

sophistication here. I could easily say 

in truth the preceeding stages of culture 

had some trenendously sophisticate c. elemen ts 

of culture too . P...nyhow , I ,-1ould pre fer to 

say t...>iat they had a markedly new hunting 

specialty that they had evolved ,  t..11eir 
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104  4. r: .  Earp, cr-e:-: 
( Ee int zr:-,an) 

anc_estors had in the Hestern Arctic. This Has 

important in t�eir exp loi tation of the central 

and eastern -- the whale :1unting bit. 

Q. They were a new 

mari tiF.e culture that reached a cegree of  

economic superiority that they were able to 

sweep across the Arctic ; isn ' t  t.-iat correct? 

A. I am sure that is 

a fair statement. 

Q .  An.d they had and 

used dogs; did they not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. There is not 

rauch evidence that prior cultures hac used 

dogs; is there? 

A. Very tenuous 

evidence t.11at dogs were in e;-:isten ce in t.."-le 

Dorset perioc. I think I have a COU?le 07.  

dog bones from the Delcher Isla, ds ,  frcr. a 

Dorset si te. But, I au convinced they night 

have had dogs which they useo. as hunting 

aids. He know for certain they di e.,' t use 

dogs as traction ani�als to haul sledge s 

and things as the T:iule people c.escendan ts 

. .  � cac. 

Q. The use of cogs 

as traction ani mals in tercs of  gettinq 

across the Arctic -;,,,as one of the nost signi fica--i t  
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10 4 5 .  L .  Eclrp , cr- e:f 
(Eeintzr.:an ) 

innovations of the Thule people ; was it not? 

A. Yes ,  for wintertine 

travel . 

Q .  t-:ow, t:-ie Thule peo?le 

also developed mari time veh icles of a 

sophisticate d degree , ar1d I a.IT1. thinking of 

the u�iaks , large whaling vessels ; is tha t  

correct? 

."A.. . Yes. It is a 

vessel large enough to con tcin ten or a 

dozen people , be cause this is a social 

- - a group -- a communal activity and 

not too . , eas1..1.y done frohl single hunter 

kayaks. 

Q. And the degree 

of sophistication - - I ' m sorry if I use 

t.11at word but it fits in wit::1 l7!Y l2 .. r1guage 

- - of t.½ e  harpoon an d o t.i-i er me ans of 

earning your living on the Arctic shores 

reached a higher level with t.'1e Thule people ? 

A. A higher level , 

yes , but the S c.De hunting te chnology h ad 

existed in p re ceding Dorse t staqe . 

Q .  Another significan t  

criteria o f  the Thule culture was their 

way of living in houses ;  is th at not correct? 

A. Yes , but the 

preceding people h ad lived in houses too. 
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1046 . E. Harp, er-ex  
(Eeintzman) 

Q .  But the kind of 

houses the Thule people --

A. Diffe rent kinds -­

different styles. 

Q. Different kinds? 

A. Yes, especially 

the winter house. 

Q. This is one of 

the best pieces of evidence that arch aeologists 

used to identify the Thule culture ; isn ' t  

• -I- ? l. '- . 

evidence, yes. 

A. It ' s  very helpful 

Q. And t.�eir original 

derivation, the Thule people were primarily 

a rnaritine people aDd relied very heavily 

on whaling to develo? their culture? 

A .  Yes, t�at ' s  fair. 

Q. If we can talk 

about the modern Es)�imo, t.11e moc.ern Inuit , 

that you were asked about by Hr. Golden, 

particularly in this area we know they do 

not rely on whaling at all ; isn ' t  th at 

correct? 

A. Well, with the 

exception of white whales, the beluga, 

whic.11 they are a continuingly icportaDt 

food resource around various places around 
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Hudson Bay. 

10 47. E .  Earp, cr-e:-: 
(Eeintzman) 

Q. I ' n  talkin� about 

the �eople living in the Barren Grounds ; 

they don't rely on whalinc:_r? 

A. No. Excuse me. 

Q. Now, if we are 

talking about these two groups, the 

Indian and Eskimo culture living on the 

Barren Grounds, is it not correct that 

we know there was a severe antipathy between 

these two groups? 

A. 1·7ell, such an 

antipathy has been reported on a nur.ber 

of occasions, yes. I am not -- I don ' t  

know of any evidence th at c.eman.ds t..11e 

belief this was a constant state of 

warfare between the people at all. I 

think at times a� d places it probably hac 

peaceful, relatively friencly trade 

relationships. 

Q. Well, the 

early prehistoric tir;,.es·, jus.t about t.11e 

time t!1at man was arriving, is not all of 

the evidence pointing in t.11e cirection of 

severe antipathy between the Inc.ians 

a_-r1d the Eskimos? 

A. I coulfn't --

no, I don't believe so. I don't know cf 
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10 4 8 .  E. Earp, er-ex 
( Eein t zY.!an) 

anything of the sort t..'1a t predates Sarnue l · 

Eearne 's story of the Copperrrine-B loocy Falls 

massacre. I ce rtainly don ' t  knm, -- I have 

never seen in the North American Arctic any 

archaeolosical evidence that wonld even susgest 

,;,;arfare bet�•1een t.11e peo!)le. 

Q . Leaving asic.e L1-ie 

warfare, I understood t.'riat the nal"!'.e that 

Eskimos gave for t..1-ie Chipewya..T"ls were "people 

infested with lice "? 

A. Yes, I have read 

this. 

0. And obviously the 

Chipewyans felt t..1-ie same way about the 

Ekimos, because their name £or the Esk imos, 

as I understand it, is "enemies from tJ1e 

flat cot.m tries"? 

A. Yes, I have heard 

that. 

Q. So that ' s  what 

t..1-iese people called each other? 

A. A.T"ld one ot..rier --

the word Eskimo, it has been suggested -­

it's a bastarci z ation of the French word 

steaming from easter:1 Canada and was 

oric;inally an Algonquian \•?ord -- its 

meaning eaters of  raw fles:1. That was 

aT1other pejorative tern. 
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1049. E .  H arp, er- e x  
(Eeint zman) 

Q .  Yes. 

A .  1•mat you say I 

believe to �e true , but still that doesn ' t  

suggest warfare or genoci fe or anything 

like th2.t to me. 

Q .  I aJ:1. suggesting 

rather than warfare that ,-,hen one group 

was occupied in one area the other group 

·wasn ' t  there ? That ' s  t..1-ie inference that 

we arrive at ; is that not so? 

'P-. . I thin:k so, yes� 

because these people on t..l-ie one hanc ,-,ere 

adapted very tightly, specifically ,  to life 

in a,; Arctic tundra biome and were not 

comfortable and didn ' t  knov, how to cope 

with forest country . The same conversely 

can be said for t..l-ie northern boreal forest 

Indians, where they were adapted to a 

forest environment and were not the least 

bit comfortable one hundre<l miles out into 

the open tundra. They dicn ' t know how 

to cope with it . 

Q .  We ll, we know 

t..1-iat Chipewyans and their an cestors came 

above the tree line right up into ��erdeen­

Baker Lake area? 

A. I regard these 

as brief seasonal sorties ; h ur1 ti·ng sorties. 
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were there? 

1050 . E. :-Ia.::-p, er-ex 
( Eein t zrr-an ) 

Q .  Hhi le t.11e caribou 

A. I would t� ink so. 

Q. Can we not ccnclufe 

that while t:ie Chipewy2�'1S we.r-e there !1UJ1 tins 

the caribou t.1-iat it is unlikely that the 

Es kimo peo?le or their ancestors were 

at t.'1e scr.e campfire? 

fair. 

A. Yes , I t.11 ink t:'1 at ' s 

In fact, 

as you have alreacy related, Mr. He arne in 

his travels -- I understand that occurre e 

around 1770 ; is t�at correct? 

A. As I recall it's 

the early seventies. IIe made a cou�le of 

.... . 1...rips. I'n not exactly sure of the dates 

at the mor.:en t. 

that in a noment. Ee relates in his stories 

of a massacre by the Indians of the Eskimos 

at the Copperciine River ; isn ' t that 

correct? 

A. Yes, at �loo�y Falls. 

Q. And, in fact, 

he relates his journey goin� to Coppermine ,  

they �eet 2ore groups of Incians and say, 

well, great stuff, we are going up to massacre 
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I don ' t. 

A. No , I ' m  sorry 

It has been quite a few years 

since I read Hearne. I am a little hazy 

on some of the details. 

Q. Before we get 

to your findings, I want to step bac� an d 

look at the way archaeologists look at 

Es}cirnos a.I1d their history - - or their 

prehistory , before you wrote what I think 

c is regarc'.ed as a breakthrough article in 
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196 1, naDely that it was thought �y some 

people at that tine that the Eskimos carr.e 

from the interior of the Barren Grounds 

and moved to t.'ie coast, rather t.11.an vice vers a ;  

have I correctly described the archaeological 

t.'iought at t.� at time? 

prominent theories about Eski�o orisin 

as of that period , prior to the Fifth 

Thule Expedition , were propou.."lde d hy 

several Danish scholars - - who were linguists 
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1052. E. Harp, er-ex 
(Eeintzr:1a1: ) 

an d  ethnographers , r.iore than archaeologists , 

in fact -- they were the ones who proposef 

t21is kind of theore tical structure . T!: es e 

were t:-ie ice as tJ1at Bir:-:et-�ni t...11 learned as 

a young university sch olar at Cor,en�a�en .  

rJillit= r-"Iillie conti::-iued to use his O!)e:?::"ating· 

theory \·ihen he cid h is work ir. t=,e BaYren 

Grouncs. ne created certain alterations. 

But , U.'1fortlli1ately on that s��e expecition, 

while he was in effect continuing to si.:.pport 

these old theories -- �,e interior orisin 

and he elaborated upon them -- his gooc 

friend �athiassen was discovering new 

evidence of earlier �ski�o culture -- t..�e 

':"hule people -- and \·1a s  a1:>le to relate this 

s tuff bacl� to Alaska . So , ,-iestern origins 

were throw n in to t:te ?i cture , you see, as c. 

cou.'1ter theory. 

Q. Arising out of 

Ii:athiassen ' s  articles anc your researc:1 , 

the whole picture has been reversed , has 

it not, instead of the central barren g rouncs 

being t..',.e source o:: the E}:ir:i.os, we know nc:.-.1 

they cc.I.le fror.1 t..11e  coast, and, in fact , 

fror.1 Alaska? 

A. That ' s  what we 

�elieve, yes , the fore�earers ; �1ces tors . 

Q. And that was 
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10 53. E .  Earp, cr-e� 
( Eein tznc..a'"l)  

r2.ther a revolutionary ch2.nge of ic1.eas ; · 

was it not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So that insteac o = 

tl1e people li,_;ing in t:1e interior -- \4ha.t I 

c2.ll the Caribou-�skiDo -- being a rermant, 

as Birket-Smith thought, of a� interior 

Paleo-Eskimo culture, in fact , t�ey are derived from 

the coastal people and sor.:-,ehow r..ade their 

way inland; isn't that correct? 

believe, yes. 

" n • That ' s  what I 

Q .  In fact, �t-ia t ,.-.1as 

the whole thrust of your article in 19 6 1? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. Isn ' t that correct? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. 1-:ow, I , .. ,ould 

- just like to review with you some of the 

work that has been done since you turned the 

coin around i!1 1961 on the saE!e sites. !!ow, 

down here on Grant Lake, which I believe is 

-- where? 

over in here. 

A. Let's see. 

There it is right here. 

I t  is 

Q .  L'e don't have that 

rr,arked for so□e reason. Over here just a.cove 
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10 5 4 . E .  I:arp , er-ex 
(Heintzm2..n) 

A. Excuse me. It is 

outs ice the boundary , . .J..J..ne t:iat I S  

Is that signific��t for sone reason ? 

Q .  not to r.e. \·!e· hc,ve 

Grant Lake on t..'1e very far le ft-hand sic1,e 

of  the -- that is one of  the sites that you 

worked on ; is that correct? 

A. I visited it 

briefly. 

Q. You c:id two diggings 

at the north end of Grant La�e. rs �"lat correct? 

A. That site ,-,as 

discovere d in 195 5  by a friend of Dine, 

who is not an archaeologist but wt.o is 

a ca.,oeist, and he was making a trip down 

the Dubawnt -- Arthur Moffatt from Vernont 

and he ci scovered that site, among others 

although he lost hi s life c, few days later 

in some rapids below Marjorie Lake-,- his 

collections were brought out an c. turned 

over to me. As a matter of fact, I had 

promised hLrn that I would be happy to 

look at anything he brought out and examine 

it before we return it back to Canada --

the government. So , I did. He j ust surface 

hun te d  an d b rought b ack a fei·..- specirnens . 

This is what arous ed MY interest in t..}ie 

place . C: • 
� o ,  in 5 8 , when I was up · here on 
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1055 .  
E. Harp , er- ex 
(Hein tzrn.an ) 

Schultz Lake, my  old frien a ,  D'!:". 1·:iller, 

from 19 with whom I had nade a flying 

trip to Coronation �ulf in 1955 -- he 

popped up to visit  me for a week or so 

in his pla,e. S o ,  we flew to Grant Lake 

an d I spent several hours one afte rnoon 

there, again, s urface hu..nting the site 

and e xa�ining it a little m ore close ly.  

It  was on the basis o f  tl-iat new inforn:ation 

that Dr. Wright got interes te e in i t  and 

we nt back and did sor..e systematic e xcavation 

in monograph, which I suspect you have over 

there . 

Q. Ye s. �e have your 

work at Grant Lake. We have Dr. Wrigh t ' s 

work, and that is done unc.er the b ook The 

Grant Lake Site? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. I t ' s  by J . B. Wright ; 

you are familiar with that? 

A. Yes, s ir. 

Q. Do you accep t  

t..'-ie conclusions that Dr. �,Jright arrived at 

in h is ar1aly sis ? 

A. Yes ,  I do. 

Q. P.nd then on t'-ie 

same site --

MR • GOLDI::-1 : I ,,.101:der 
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105 6 .  E .  Earp, cr-e:: 
(Eeintzman) 

if my friend ought not to refer to a .1.. • cer 1..ain 

conclusion if there is more t...1-ian one so the 

witness does::, ' t  have to re fer to a couble 

meaning . 

THt COURT: It will 

give sor.e neaning to me if I understand what 

t...1-iey are . 

MP.. HEINTZM.A?J: I will 

come to each of them in turn, My Lord. I 

thought we better identify e,e locations 

before we get into the specific works. 

TEE COURT: I ass UF,e 

from t...11.e positiveness of Dr. Earp ' s  

acknowledgement th2.t he is indee L� familiar 

with the work anc. has it in mine. 

TEE WITNESS : Yes. 

THE COURT : Hi t..t-iout 

havins t'l-ie specific conclusions suggested 

to you? 

TH:S �HTNESS: Yes, 

My Lord. 

BY r-�. EEINTZT-tzlJJ: 

Q. And Dr. Brian Gore.on 

also cid sor.:e work on Grant Lake, at a site 

which he called Migod. Is that correct? 

A. Yes. I believe 

it was Hrigh t 1 .. 11'0 c.is covered t..c½a t 

c:eterr-,ined ,.-,he t.t1er it was inportan t enough 
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1057 . E. !I arp, cr-e:-'. 
(Heintzman) 

to go back for intensive work. Yes. 

Q. Both of those 

sites are at the nort.11 en d o f  Grant Lake? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And ther: at the 

A.be rdeen site it was the s arne one as one 

of your sites that r,!r. Wright went back to 

to do some fur��er work. I th ink you nen tioned 

that? 

A. Yes. Let ' s  see. 

Hh ere are we? \'lell, it is up in this cotmtry 

up here. Those :_:,articular sites 2.re not sar}-::ec. 

on this r::ap. 

Q. Do we not have all 

the sites you workec or. on this r:-:2.i:) ? 

all of the Beverly Lak e  sites which are b ac� 

in t.:.11rough h ere. Could you tell �e, ?lease, 

whic� one specifically you are referring 

to? 

Q .  i-:ell, let ' s  j ust 

look at �11e nonogram, the �_berdeen site by 

Dr. Wright. He describes it as your AL7 on page 

3. 

A. Yes. That shoHs 

on the b ottom map here -- actually it is 

on the narrows, just 2hove the Hes tern �nd 

of Aberc.een Lake. I don ' t  knrn--1 where one lu.)<-:e 
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105  8 .  E. Earp , cr- e:-'.: 
(Eeir:tzP1an) 

stops and the other one begins in the re. • I t ' s 

quite arbitra.ry about the n ar'.'.ing syster... But , 

that is the particular site � I t  is Of?Osite 

a lons stre tch of  narrrn·-1 s that goes for a 

coup le o f  2i les, then .._, . '-nere 1.s a si zab le islan c 

in the rd. ddle of th is narrows. It is a very 

heavil y  used caribou crossing. There was 

a h eavy concentration in prehistoric sites 

on both sides o f  the narrm-:s at t..1-i is - - in 

this particular area. 

Q .  Can you tel l  I".:e why 

that site isn ' t shown on the plan ?  

A .  no. I j ust  sugqest 

it is a minor oversight. 

Q. We l l, you hac a 

nllI:'ber of sites also on Beve rly Lake t..1-iat 

you investigated ;  is tl1at not corre ct? 

A. Yes, sir . 

Q .  .]),.re any of those 

pinpointed on the map ? 

A. No, I don ' t  see 

They would be down here south o f  

here , according to this map which we show 

here , which is incorporated in the Affidavit. 

Q. Do you know why 

they have been left off th is site ?  

ER. GOLDE�J : The r:1.ap 

was totally prepare d in our office an d  obviously 
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is an oversight. 

will put t."-1em on. 

1059. S. Earp ,  er- ex 
(Eeintzman) 

I f  you want them on, we . 

BY t-'.R . HEIN'I'Zi'-1A11 : 

Q. Could you arra�ge 

with Mr .  Golden, Dr. Earp, to put on the 

other sites that are not on the map ? 

arraT1ge it. 

A. Yes. 

MR. GOLDEH : I will 

BY .MR. HEINTZr-!At--· : 

Q. Just to touch on 

some other works t.1-iat ' s  been done in this 

area, before we get into your wor;-:, are you f"aniiliar 

with the work of Brenda Clark who ' s  done soBe 

work c.own near Rankin Inlet? 

A. Yes , I am , but 

not in as great detail perhaps as I an 

f anu.liar with sorr,e of the ot.."-1er people. I 

do know that she ' s  worked in Rankin Inle t 

with Dr. Linnamae. 

monograms? 

Q . Have you read her 

A. I haven ' t  read them 

as care fully as I ' ve read sorr.e o f  the ot.�ers , 

no. I nay not have seen anything very 

recent that she put out , but I am roughly 

2:.-1are of  what she hc?.s c1.one . 

Q .  She has published 
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1060. E. Earp, er-ex 
( Hein tznan) 

thr(?ugh the National Museums of Canac.a the 

development of Caribou-Eskimo culture? 

that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you read 

A. No. I have a copy 

of it at  hone but I have not read it. 

Q. 'Ihen in the scree 

area Dr. Irving has cone some work. Are you 

fa!!'iliar with his article contained in S cience , 

History and Hudson ; s Bay? 

A. Yes , sir. 

Q. It is a relatively 

short article. Do you accept t.."le s tater'.'.en ts 

made by Dr. Irving in part two ,  The Barren 

Grounds? 

A. Yes. 

MR. GOLDE,7: Perhaps 

r.,y friend -- I would ask my friend not to 

do that. Perhaps I should ask that he not 

do it any:".lore, in spite of this v1i tness ' s  

obvious keenness anc awareness . I think it 

is bad for all of us that a witness be askec. 

a general question, do you agree wi t-'1 all 

of his conclusions, because he may very well 

be unaware of soeething that was said i:r. 

that article t:i.at he would not be in agreer::ent 

with . He. is asking hin to co a quick total 
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instant a..r1alysis. 

10 6 1 .  E .  Earp, cr-e}-: 
( Ee in tz.r..an) 

I don't imagine t�ere is 

a.ny n,ore of  a wi t..,ess cap al) le of c.oing that 

but Dr. Earp, but --

THE COGR�: I must 

confess I an disturbed and worriec:. 2.bout t�is. 

I at', not for a sor..en t doubting Dr. I:arp ' s  

expertise a.'1c7. full ��nov1ledge. I have rarely 

met anyboc.y blessed Hith such tot2.l recall 

as he  really inferrec. or implies in those 

answers I eon't think we are being very 

fair. 

Q. I will come back 

to these reports later, but I just want to 

sketch who ' s  been wo��ing where before we get 

to the rrnre cetailed analysis. J\..re you 

f aD.iliar with the work of 1-�r. Burc:1 in 

s ar.e area? 

A. Yes, sir. I am 

far:1iliar �-, i th Dr. Burch's work. 

ale stucent o f  nine. 

career closely. 

I have followed his 

Q. Does he hole a 

c.octorate in anthropolos-y? 

of :?ennsylv2.nia? 

I L Yes,  sir. 

Q. From b,e University 

A. Is it �enn or is it Yale? 
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10 6 2 .  -c, 1 . arp, cr- e �: 
( Eeintznan ) 

I honestly c�o not kr:ow at the nonent . 

Q .  I think it is t�,e 

Cnivers ity of  Pennsylvania?  

as an undersracuate. 

A .  Ee went to Frir:ceton 

I took hiD into the fielc 

w ith 17:e in 19 6 2  to He\•1 foundland. Se learnea 

h is first field archaeology. An excellent 

man. 

Q • Is he cons i c-e re c:. to 

be a man of repute in his field? 

A. I bel ieve wicely , 

yes. I certainly regard h im as one of our 

brighter, more intelli gent yot.L�ger sc�olars. 

Q. Are you far::i liar 

with the work of  Dr. ncGhee of the National 

rr:useurn of !--!an ? 

A. Yes , sir. 

Q .  In tracing tI-1e 

ori gins of the Esk iro peoples ? 

A. Yes , sir. 

Q. Do you accept him 

as a man of repute in the field of arch2,eology ? 

A. Unquestionab ly. 

Dr. McGhee is highly thought o f  in the field. 

In h is case , as with Dr. Burch , that coes not 

mea..Y'l I ne ce ss arily agree with everything 

he wrote. 

Q. I appreciate t�at . 
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106 3. E .  Ear::,, er-ex 
( P.eintznan) 

Now, one of the groups o:: sites t!,at you were 

able to c:eterl7line when you •.-,ere ,·:or}: ins in 

the D a}:e ::- Lake area, you  classi fi ed as cor.:::1le :-: 

A. Do you recall that? 

!,. Yes , sir. 

Q. They cons isted of  

four sites on Baker Lake ? 

A .  May I refer to 

my booklet here ?  

Q. Yes. You refer 

to anyt.:.1'1ing t..:.11.at will help you. 

A. Yes. 

Q . They are on t.1-ie 

west end of Baker L a}�e?  

A.  Lake 16 ,  1 7 ,  

14 -- yes. 

Q. T�e next complex 

of  sites you classi fied as comp lex B ?  

A. Yes . 

Q . Is that correct? 

;;,._. Yes , sir. 

one si te at the Grant Lake , seven sites on 

Schultz L ake and four si tes on Beverly Lake? 

correct. 

A. That seems to be 

Q .  Is t..hat correct? 

A. Yes. 



H - l1 '"' . - ,:. 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

V 
E 
R 
B 
A 
T 
I 
� 

R 
E 
p 
0 
R 
T 
I 
:--1 
G 

s 

E 
R 
V 
I 
C 
E 
s 

R 

E 

J 
0 
H 
A 
� 
s 

s 

0 
� 

C 

s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 
A 

N 
T 
A 
R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
I 

7 
0 
3 

1064. E. Carp , er-ex 
(Eeintz!'."\an ) 

Q. The next group of 

sites you were able to put tosether was callee: 

by you con?le:-: C .  Is t.i'1at correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q .  You hac thre e sites 

on Aberdeen Lake, two sites on Beverly Lake 

and one site on Grant Lake .  Is that correct? 

A. Yes , sir. 

Q. And the final 

complex that you were able to put together 

fron t..'ri ese sites was called by you co!".',plex 

D? 

A. Yes. 

Q .  Is that corre ct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. They involved 

three sites on S c�ultz L2�e, one site each on Beverly, 

on Aberdeen and Baker Lake? 

Ji. . Right. 

0. If we start with 

complex A, your opinion was that those sites 

related to people being there from t..�e pre-Dorset 

culture . Is that correct? 

A. May I say sorr:ething 

about the notion involved in these complexes? 

Q .  Certainly. 

A . 'Ih is is j t:S t a 

classi ficatory cevicc that I use � to categorize 
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1 0 6 5 . :S. Earp, cr-e:,: 
(Ee intzman) 

some of this information -- some of these - data 

-- in a man age ab le group, and it has really no 

archaeoloqical or cultural or any other \:ind 

o f  siqnificance. It is an atter.,pt to h 
, , .... r1.ns 

some notion of order and relationship . ,_ in '--o 

e1ese diverse collections o f  inforr.i.ation from 

various sites. So, there is nothing sacred 

about these complexes in culture terns. I 

regard them solely as a stepping stone on 

the way to some ct.h er level of  interpreta.tion. 

They have no cultural signi ficance, no 

te�poral sisnificance worth talking about. 

Q .  I con ' t u,, dersta..1"l c1. 

·p,._ • It ' s s inp 1 y an 

attempt to re late -- in each site , for 

example archaeological site, it may be 

said to produce an asserblage of arti facts 

when you have excavated t'"l is site, and ,,.,hen 

you go and analy ze this collect.ion of 

materials -- this assemblage -- you try 

and determine the f�1"lction of  thes e tools --

y ou describe th �, the attributes of e ach 

o f  then and classify then into groups 

all of  the paring knives here, all of the 

r:1eat hooks here , so fort'1, so on. It is 

just an attempt to ore.er this �nowle<lce 

so you ca1"l c"\o sonething nore use ful with it 

by way of interpretation. Tha t ' & what is qoing 
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10 66. E. Earo, er-ex 
( Ee in tzman) 

on here. I am trying to pick out of this mess 

certain groups of sites whic;1 a;ipear to be 

more closely related to each other than they 

are to some other srouping ,  hopinq �� at out 

o:: this we can achieve sore e_;2,in toward 

cultural ide�tification later on . 

Q. So, taking complex 

A as a� exar.ple, you foQ� c  on e a ch of these 

sites sufficiently sinilar artifacts t hat you 

were able, ,,.,i th some degree of probability, 

to  put t�em into one group? 

case, yes . 

A. I ho�e this was t�e 

n Once you hac. done 

that you then lookec. around to  ot"ler 

archaeological sites, ot�er ooinions by 

other archaeolosists, other articles to tr1 

to fine out where a� c. into 1.,1hic:1 culture 

these artifacts fitted? 

A. Yes . 

Q .  i'7i th re S!?ect to co11'.ple� 

A, your c.ecision Has that they fitted into 

the pre-Dorset culture? 

A. Yes. Die I state 

this l ater on? I \·1as trying to ic.en tify 

these, yes. Yes. I enr,hasizec the possibi lity 

of whalins ar.ong these si tes -- or sugs;ested 

this as a related observation. 
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1 0 6 7 .  E. Far? , er-ex 
(Eein tz�an) 

Q. An I corre ct that 

you fo�1d that complex A related to pre- Dorset 

occup2,tion ? 

'fl. . Yes. Not a strong 

suggestion , mine. you , but de finitely a 

suggestion. 

Q. And that you catec 

the time when the people ,·,ere probably there 

as somewhere between 10 0 0  -3.c :  and 7 0 0  B.C.? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is b�at correct? 

1'.. Yes. Even t..'-10ugh 

t.h.ere i s  a lot - - I don ' t  regard this as 

terrib ly strong arc;unent , yet I advanced • .L. l �  

with some confidence because - - I lived 

for a year in Copenhagen on a Senior �ese arc� 

Fellowsh ip with my far,i ly , had an officG in 

the National !v!usetJ.D , 2.i.1d I hac. all of these 

collections over there wi t.,'1 ::r:e - - there fore , 

all of the key Danish s c11olars were ric;h t 

there look ing over my shoulc.er all t."le tir..e 

- - including Dr. Jorgen Heldgaard,  who ' s  

name I mention here - - he corroborated some 

of  these thoughts - - they c:idn ' t  always agree 

with me , mind you, but with t.heir support 

I coulc be more confident about th is. 

Q. Well , we are 

dealing with imponderables to sor.,e extent ;  



H-46  
\' 
E 
R 
B 
A 
T 
I 

\.I 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 
I " 
G 

s 

E 

10 R 
V 
I 
C 
E 
s 

R 

E 

1 5  J 
0 
H 
A 
:--i 
s 

s 

0 
:--i 

C 

20 
s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 
A 

0 
25 N 

T 
A 
R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
l 

0 
30 7 

0 
3 

aren ' t  w e? 

1068. E. !'-I2rp , er-ex -
(f:ein tzman) 

A. Very Fuch so. 

Q. Let �e just ask 

you a question about that particular 

complex. You fou,., d it was prohab le t.1.a t 

t.11ese people were r.ierely coming in lar.d ::or 

periodic periods of occupa.tion, probab ly 

seasonal periods of occupation ; is that 

correct? 

A. Ye s, I would think 

so. r-:ay I 2dd something? If you wi l l  recall 

when I very briefly described the p re-Dorset 

stage earlier in the morninq I mentioned the 

fact that it s eemed to be -- on the basis 

of our present knowledge -- �ost frequently 

oriented towards the interior and less so 

to coastal e�vironment. 'Iheref ore, this 

struck me as an interesting occurrence 

because it p laced some of these r,eople c,own 

;1ere on the beache s  in a position where they 

:r.ight have been able to carry on sor:1e s ea 

r:1.ar.m,al hunting, as well as at other times 

of the year hunting caribou right at tl1e 

back door. 

Q .  He ll , c.o I ,.mdersta,, d 

your finding was that it was probable thes e  

pre-Dorset people were in there on a 

seasonal bas i s  to h�, t  caribou? 
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1 0 6 9 . E. I�arp , er-ex 
( Ee in tz!:'.an ) 

A .  It ' s  h ard to say 

really . It is hard to he so con:ident about 

that , because in the spring �,e cus tor:'.ary 

here migration Doved right across that s ection 

of t�e lake , and clearly it would have been 

a good time for them to be L�e re .  

Q. Is that the most 

p robable lengthened period of occupation ? 

A. Yet at ��e sar.,e 

time there might have b een a school of 

white whales -- beluga -- S',•;irr-ming off the 

lak e ,  or seals because they were kn�-m to 

frequent the lakes in siza½le qu��tities 

in e arlier years. So, it is a coEplex 

situ ation. I t  r:tight have swu!!g either 

way or boH1 ways at different tir::es of the 

year. 

Q. �ould you j ust 

turn and look at page 62 of your artic le ? 

Pe rhaps 

we can have it made as an ex.I-i i.bit at this 

point? 

n o  ob j ection. 

I have 

TEE CO l:RT : I th in1i:: it 

has been  referred to so extensively that ,·:e 

are not going to be able  to avoic it. 
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10 70. E .  L�rp, er-ex 
( Eein tzr:,ar1) 

hesitate to even rise on t.'1is point because 

r:,y friend will get up and make his speeches 

about technical objections and things , 3ut 

the purpose of r:1y obj ection was not ta 1:Je te.c:mical,  

but the purpose of :r.1y objection was  this: if 

t.1-ie article -- it is r:1y submiss�on that it 

is perfectly proper for ne to put a question 

to an expert 'i-·1itness 2.nc. say, " Do you agree 

or do not agree with certain s taterr,ents o::::-

articles. " On occasion I have cited froM the Encyclope ia 

of Brita:1nica to a witness ana nobody eve r  suggested 

. +-1. - to ne before that the whole Encyclopecia 

Bri tannica go in as evidence. Fow, what I 

co obj ect to is the suggestion e1at t.�e articles 

so in as hollis-bollis . Fow, v,e t.11en fin c1 

in the Suprese Court of  Canada scmeD'1ing 

co2ing out of  it D'1at's being citec because 

it 'san exhib it in the case because it ' s  

evidence of t�at proposition - - it is 

contained in there anc. nobody re ali zec'. 

was there at that time. I think it is 

• J.. l L.  

perfectly fair for my friend to put questions 

to a witness, and he either agrees or 

disagrees. ?hat's perfectly proper 

cross-examination. Hrn·1ever, I do not agree 

with my frien d that any wor}� cited by sorr;ebody 

as hollis-bollis goes in as a'1 exhibit. 'I':ie 

procecure I think is quite improper. 
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1071 . E .  Earp, cr-e}: 
( Ee in tz:r..an) 

I f  it 

is satisfactory to Your Lordship, I don ' t  

o:.:> j ect to you having copies reac:.ily available 

for those portions referred to in our 

evidence. I think it is proper for D9 to 

refer you to the various parts of the 

article and say, "Do you agree with t.:.1-iat 

study in 19 6 1 .  " I must say that I do agree 

with Hr. Grahan that the whole article coes 

not become evidence. 

THE COCP.T : I don ' t  

know how on earth, myself or a�yone who 

might be reviewing the record at a later 

stage can possibly understand what complex 

A, D ,  C and D are without seeing the map 

that is included in the article you ' ve 

been talking about. That is evidence. 

l·!R . GRAHAI·1 : It I s  

Exhibit C to the Affidavit, sir, as I 

lLDderstand it. I hope it is the same cap. 

It is the sa�e map. 

THE COURT: It may 

be t.�e same map but there is not.�inq, t�at 

I can see in tl1e text, that would tell ne 

t�at t�ose are complexes -- there are five 

naps, figure two from page 8 of the report 

without t.'le text a verbal description o f  

what those maps are supposed t o  b e  they are j ust 
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1072. E. P.ar:, , cr-e;-: 
( Eein tzr.an ) 

five little naps. T:1ey are certain ly not 

described in the Afficavit. I woul d  like 

to have i t  in as an e y_1:. ib i t. I 2.cain asree 

and I wil 1 be very co1:scious of  th is . J!.qain , 

if nothing e lse worthwhile co�es out 0£  this 

j udgment there will be some remarks on --ex-s>ert 

evidence , the way it should be presented in 

this court under the Rule 4 82. I am very 

conscious of the problen that Hr. Graham 

h as raised but I don ' t  know how we can get 

around it. 

HR • GRAHJ. .. M : On that 

U..l"lderstancing, I wi thdraw rcy ob je cti on . 

Let ' s  raark it so you con re fer to it. 

hand the witness t�e photocopy ? 

one here. 

r;-,i...,.., 1 .,_ ... � 

COCRT: Yes. 

t'iI T't'TE S S : I have 

:SY t.m. HEilJTZ},fl07: 

Q. Can we prevail 

upon you to lend us your copy ? 

A .  Would you lD:e an 

original or a photocopy ? 

Q. His Lordship would 

like to have aJl orig inal, I ar.i sure , signed· 

b y  yourself. 

A. �·!ith my cmnplir.:ents , 
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Your Honour. 

I-6 . 

10 7 3 .  

THE COURT : 

E. Harp, er-ex 
( Hein tzrnan) 

That will be 

EXHIBIT NO. I-6 : Article : The 

Archaeology of the Lower and 

Middle Thelon by Elmer Harp, Jr. 

BY MR. HEINT ZMAN : 

Q. In looking at page 62 , 

at the top where you are describing complex A 

you say : 

"In complex A there is 

positive evidence of p re-Dorset 

Eskimo occupation around the 

western end of Baker Lake. The 

major  affinities of this 

point to the several stages 

of the central Arctic Sarqaq 

culture, and somewhat less 

directly to manifestations 

of the same tradition in west 

Greenland. The extent to which 

this culture may have been 

penetrated still farther inland 

is difficult to determine , but 

at Baker Lake it existed in a 

context which strongly suggests 

seasonal caribou hm,.ting. This 

is quite in accord with the 
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statements? 

10 74.  E. Harp, er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

dual inland-coastal nature 

of most Eskimo groups, past 

and present, for we know that 

a maj ority of them shifted 

easily and frequently from the 

ecology of coastal hunting to 

that of the interior, and back 

again. " 

Do you agree with those 

A. Yes . I would have to 

say now, in light of the years how many years 

since this came out? Almost twenty years. Yes, 

that sounds a little glib to me now . I sometimes 

get carried away with my words, as you no doubt 

recognize . 

We j ust le arned so much 

more in the las t twenty years that I wouldn ' t  

want to make such -- quite a flat statement. 

I would want to qualify a bit more perhaps. 

I think I was enthused by all of the caribou 

movement signs right arot.md this part of the 

lake. Without thinking further about it, this 

seemed to me the primary activity that was going 

on at all of these sites -- caribou hunting. 

However ,  at the same 

time I would have to recall that Baker Lake 

was also useful as a seal hunting and whale 
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1 0 7 5 . 

hunting area -- small  whales. 

E. Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman ) 

Q .  Le t ' s  turn then 

to complex B. So Your Lordship can catch 

up with us , the sites referring to complex 

B are found on page 44, Your Lordship. If 

Your Lordship looks at the top of the page 

you will  see Dr . Harp has listed the sites 

Grant Lake-Lower and then Schultz Lake 

2B , Schultz Lake 5 ,  Beverly 8 ,  etc . Is 

that correct , Dr . Harp? 

A. Yes , sir. 

Q .  Your findings 

with respect to that complex were that they 

related to northern Indi ans ?  

A. Yes , sir. 

Q .  Is that correct? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. On page 5 2  you 

talk about complex B in the middle of the 

page and say : 

" The affinities of Complex B 

are to be found in the interior , 

through a chain of sites that 

stretches from the High Plains 

area in the northern United 

States up into the present 

boreal forest country of 

central Canada , through the Yuko 
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1076. E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

and Northwest Territories 

( District of MacKenzie) , 

and down to the .�rctic coast. " 

A .  Correct. Thes e are 

the ones -- this is the Plano-Paleo Indian 

tradition. 

Q. Talking about people 

coming from way down below the forest up into 

this area? 

A .  Not necessarily . 

Q. I mean originally? 

A. I think they might--

We don ' t  know much about the forest as of  that 

time. As I s uggested to you earlier , these 

cultures , the Paleo-Indian cultures , were 

oriented to grasslands or hunting mainly in 

the south , southwes t ,  High Plains and ,  then , 

subsequently farther north when this cross over 

was made by some of them for caribou hunting . 

I don ' t  know how direct that relationship 

was , but it certainly is a comparable kind of 

economic exploitation herd htmting . 

Q.  Continuing on further 

wi th that complex , but turning over to page 

5 5 , the end of the first paragraph , where i t ' s  

talking about that complex , you say :  

" Furthermore, as no subs tantial 

trace of the Keewatin lanceolate 
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type has been found in 

other dire ctions , I be lieve 

it can reasonably be suggested 

that we have evidence here of 

a trait diffusion from the 

High Plains  of the northern 

United S tates deep into the 

central barren grounds almos t 

as far as the shores of  

Chesterfield Inlet and Hudson 

Bay . It  can also be inferred 

that this resulted not from 

a yea r-around occupation of 

the Barrens , but rather from a 

series of summer sorties into 

that country . •  

Is that corre ct? 

A. Yes , it says that . 

Q .  Do you still agree 

A .  We ll ,  again , I am 

sure it is a little more complicated than I 

have made it out to be . I guess I agree with 

that essentially . Again , the main prob lem is 

the gaps in the archaeological records . In 

fact , it is very di fficult to trace out through 

archaeological evidence and geographic ,  continuing 

them runn_ing from the High Plains up to what are now 
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the central barren srounds. We had little thought 

-- nodes o f  interes t and data that are strung 

out through a few sites . 

Q .  S trung out from 

southwest to northeast direction? 

A. Yes . It is a pretty 

good inference but it ' s  stretched out too . 

Q .  That ' s  all we have 

got to work with in the field of archaeology? 

A .  I ' m  afraid so . In 

this instan ce it ' s  more tenuous than other 

cases. 

Q .  An d  we find this on 

several sites in the Baker Lake-Aberdeen Lake­

Beverly Lake area? 

A. Yes . 

Q. All right. Then 

20 s turning to complex C ,  and t.'liat ' s  on page 56 , 
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you say a t  the beginning of complex C :  

" I f  Complex B is typified 

by some association with the 

early Archaic Stage of 

New World culture , Complex 

C appears to be an inland 

tradition of the later 

P.rchaic Stage . "  

Do I understand what you 

are saying is that complex C is a later addition 
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of the s ame Indian plain culture corning north? 

A .  I be lieve so . I think 

it  is safe to infer that it ' s s imply an 

evolutionary outgrowth of the earlier culture 

s tage in that general region . It constitutes more 

explicitly than we have seen before this 

new adaptation to live in the forest envi ronment . 

Q .  At the bottom of page 

5 7  you make the same point onto page 5 8  where 

you say :  

"Thi s widespread evidence 

suggests that Thelen Complex 

C represents a movement into 

the <:entral b_arren grounds of 

a caribou hrmting culture 

that was in some way distinct 

and separate from Complex B .  

As in the case of Complex 

B ,  it appears to have had 

basic affinities with a 

series of northern culture 

complexes that were adapted 

to bison hunting on the Canadian 

Prairies , caribou hunting on 

the tundra , and which probably 

could s ucceed equally we ll in 

intennediate zones of taiga . "  

A .  Taiga . That i s  a Siberian 
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word which relates to b oreal f ores ts -- open 

boreal f·orests. 

Q. Continuing on : 

" Judging from the ages of its 

immediate antecedents lying 

to the west and south, as far 

as they can be recognized at 

present, Complex C appeared 

in the Thelen country at a 

later time in Complex B . •  

A.  Yes. 

Q .  Are . those observations 

by you still  correct? 

A. To the best of my 

knowledge. 

Q .  Then dealing with comp lex 

D ,  which I believe was the complex relating to the 

Thule culture. Is  that correct? 

page 58 that : 

A. Yes • 

Q. It ' s  at the top of 

"As noted before, this 

grouping of sites lack the 

relatively sharp definition 

that characterizes the 

other complexes in the Thelen 

area . There is no strong core 

of culture traits that units it, 
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but rather a series of  

anomalies that suggests its 

separation from the others . 

The prob lem of its identity , 

whether single or diverse , can 

only be approached through 

analysis of the several 

peculi ar e lements which seem 

quite unrelated to the other 

complexes . "  

A .  I am spe aking there of 

the di fficulty of doing much worthwhile analysis 

with the s tone tool materials from these sites . 

You see , that was hard to get to . Normally , 

many Thule sites in the Arctic are loaded with 

bone and ivory debris of one sort or another which 

C are very helpful in this class ification process . 
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But up in these sites in the Barren Grounds , with 

no organic material ,  therefore , all this crude 

stone s tuff was hard to get at , except for a few 

anomalous traits , plus architectural information 

from houses , so  forth and so on , which I go on 

to mention . 

Q .  Are you saying 

A.  I am not changing my 

m ind . 

Q .  But are you saying that 

the conclusions that you can draw with respect to 
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complex D are more tenuous because of the · nature 

of the evidence? 

A .  No, I wouldn ' t  say that. 

I do not believe that. I believe t.r1is is j ust 

as good a logical construct as the others, if 

not better, because we have other kinds of 

information to supplement weak stone tools .  

Q .  If we turn on to 

page 60, you say at the bottom in the last 

two paragraphs : 

11 In the light of these 

observations, I think we may 

confidently 

nangiss at . . .  11 

suggest that the 

-- stopping there, that is the stones that Thule 

people used to play a game on? 

people . 

A.  Yes, these particular 

Q .  II were associated with 

the Thule culture . Furthermore, 

as additional scattered traits 

point to a penetration of the 

Thule people into the middle 

Thelon country, I think we may 

properly link the n angissat to 

their occupation there . 

Complex D, therefore, although 

lac�ing cle ar definition, 
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contains a positive - component 

of Thule culture . It can be 

assume d that its bearers 

entered the middle Thelen 

country via Ches terfield Inlet 

and Baker Lake for two 

purpose s ,  the fall caribou hunt , 

an d to collect driftwood for 

sledge parts , kayaks , frames ,  

e tc. This phase can tentatively 

be dated from A . D .  1200 to 

1400 . "  

Is that corre ct? 

A. Yes , sir . 

Q .  So again we see 

with respect to these  people that their occupation 

c was not continual but seasonal for the purpose  
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of caribou htmting and collecting driftwood ; 

is that not correct? 

A. �s I saw it, yes . 

I inferred driftwood here because they were 

virtually back in on the edge of the driftwood 

country. The beaches of Beverly Lake are loaded 

with driftwood. Most of it is trapped there. This 

is material that floats down from Thelon to 

the boreal fore sts .  Most of it is trapped on 

the Beverly beaches and in the narrows. There 

are a few sticks in Aberdeen .  Howeve r ,  belcw 
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Aberdeen I never saw any driftwood at all . 

Q. Yes. 

A. So, this was an 

important resource, you see, for the coastal 

people , and one that wasn ' t  too difficult to 

ge t back into. 

Q .  Just stopping there 

for a moment,  what we then have is use of the 

Barren Grounds up to and including the Baker 

Lake-Aberdeen Lake area by the Indian cultures,  

up to approximately 1000 B . C . ?  

A. Yes . I guess that is 

supported by Wright ' s  findings at the Aberdeen 

site , where he ' s  finding occupation c losing off 

about 1000 B . C .  

Q .  Then we have a period 

of use of this area for three hundred years in 

the p re -Dorset times ? 

A .  It seems to be . 

Q .  Is that correct? 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  Then a disappearan ce 

of the Ekimo peoples again from this area until 

1000 A . D .  -- sorry , 1200 A . D. , the time of the 

Thule people ? 

A .  That was --

Q .  And the use by that 

area again by the Plano-Indian culture s ?  
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A. The archai c people 

Q .  Yes. 

A. That ' s  the way it  

seems to  be, right. 

Q . One of the s ignificant 

things that you found or failed to find 

was the complete -- what was the Dorset culture 

in this interven.mg period between the pre-Dorse t  

occupation and the Thule occupati on ? 

A. True. I don ' t  know 

the true s ignificance of that fact, but it is 

absolutely certain that the country covered 

in this survey we s aw no sign of Dorset. I 

wasn ' t  particularly surprised by this, because 

up to that time every Dorset site that we knew 

about was coastal site -- a strong coastal 

orientation. It wasn ' t  until some years afterwards 

that the interior Dorset  s i tes  were found and 

investigated by Dr. Taylor up in around Ungava, 

up aroi.m d Payne River. 

Q. So,  the o ther concl_usion that 

can be clrawn, whatever group- we:- cJ.re talking about 

up until th is time, their  o ccupying these lands on 

a seasonal basis, coming in and going out? 

A .  That seems to me 

to have been an absolutely fundamental aspe ct 

of these northern people ' s  lives. 
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Q. Right. 

A .  You cannot sit in 

any one p lace and expect to subsis t on a twelve 

month aroun d calendar basis . You have got to 

move for seasonal exploitation. 

Q. The other thing that 

you concluded was that inso far as the Caribou­

Eskimos -- that is the people who were analyzed 

by Rasmussen and Birket-Smith they were , 

in fact,  derived culturally from the Thule 

R people ? 

E 

1 5  J 
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H 
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A .  Wel l ,  culturally 

I think one can say these people expressed basic 

continuity of Thule-Eskimo culture , except for 

whale hunting,  or particularly strong emphasis on 

any kinds of sea- mammal hunting. But, I am 

c n ot prepared to believe -- I don ' t  know of 
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any evidence aside from Birket-Srnith ' s  

monograms which s tate flatly they never hunted 

sea mammals -- I just don ' t  believe that . 

Q. Turning to page 66 , 

the thrus t of your report was , were these people 

who I now find living in the interior -- that 

is Birket-Srni th fou.nd living in tie interior. 

W here do they come from? 

A. I thought they came 

-- I still think they resulted from an interior 

movement up Chesterfield Inlet-Baker Lake and Thelon . 
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Q. F rom the coast? 

A. Yes . 

Q. That ' s  page 66. 

A .  Mind you ,  I know 

there are opposing views on this matter. 

Q. We will come to 

those in a moment . 

A. Okay . 

Q .  But at the top of 

page 66 , after discuss ing Proto-Eskimo theory 

that the Eskimos had come from the B arren Grounds 

and gone outwards , starting with the paragraph : 

" Thus , I contend that the 

Eskimo practice of such a dual 

economy has always been confined 

to a relatively narrow zone of 

tundra stretching along the 

Arctic �oast,  and that there 

has never been in the New World 

a Proto-Eskimo stage which was 

totally interior-directed and 

which shifted eastward along 

the treeline. This argument 

it follows that the Eschato­

Eskimos , characterized as 

Proto-Eskimos who left their 

original interior environment 

and advanced to the sea, did 
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not exis t. " 

E. Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

In other words , you are 

throwing out the window all of those older 

theories ? 

A. Yes . 

Q. II als o ,  from this 

point of view the Caribou­

Eskimos are bereft of Proto­

Eskimo ancestry. But if they 

did not in fact derive from such 

a stage , whence did they come , 

and who were their forebearers ? "  

T.i'-1e answer to vour question 

is they came from tne coast , the Thule people . 

yes. 

A .  That ' s  essentially it , 

Q. Is that correct? 

A .  Yes . 

Q. And your conclusion is 

that they are not derived from a people residing 

and living in the interior ? 

A. Yes . Certainly not 

people -- this is a delicate point,  I understand 

-- certainly we are not talking about people who 

did not reside in the interior all the time -­

twelve months of the year. 

Q .  Yes . 

A. They came from coastal 
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people , who were ancestral Eskimos. 

Q .  Right. But I would 

like to do wi th you then is review the articles 

that have been written s ince your revolutionary 

article , if I can call it that,  in 6 1. I want 

to go through them individually , and at the end 

try to put them together . 

Bef ore I do , I want to 

refer you to Mr. Hearne ' s  travels in the interior. 

Samuel Hearne ' s  travels took him on three trips 

to the Barren Ground s .  Is that correct? 

A. I only remember two 

at the moment. Let ' s  see . He sorties out of 

Fort Churchill and this was all in looking for 

the Coppermine. His first trip was up around 

Lake Dubawnt and because he dropped his compass 

on transit he didn ' t  

Q .  Right. 

A. Did he make another 

trip up in there? This is the part I do not 

remember. 

Q. I have a larger map , 

but unfortunate ly I have written some things 

on it , so we may have to -- because I was trying 

to figure out where all these archaeological 
-

sites were. May be we can use it for the time 

being. If we can ' t  I may have to get another 

copy and start with a fresh one. 
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THE COURT : Perhaps that 

other thing should come off there . 

BY MR . HEINTZMAN : 

Q. Now, perhaps we can 

show this to His Lordship after I go through 

this with you. What I have marked -- these 

s are my markings -- are the sites on various 
E 

J O  R rivers and sites where all of the archaeological 
V 
I 
c findings have been made 
E 
s A .  These mus t be sites 
R 

E 
that Dr. Irving found back in Malton, places 

like that. 

Q .  I have marked them at 15 J 
0 
H 
A the bottom. Gordon is in red, blue and green. 
N 
s 
s 
0 
N 

Harp is in purple and then looks like I have 

you as purp le again. I have tried to put on 

C here all of the sites. Perhaps over the lunch 

20 s hour if you would be so kind to see if I have 
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got them approximately at the right location, 

I would be very grateful. 

A. I would be glad to 

help, if I can. 

Q .  Now, what I have 

marked on here is, what I understand from 

reading Mr. Hearne ' s  book, to be where Mr. 

Hearne travelled on his second expedition. 

His first expedition 

30 7 got a few miles out of Churchill and had some 

.3 
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whi te men with him and they went back because 

Hearne found that he could be the only white 

man in the group . I f  there were any more 

everything collapsed . That ' s  as I read it .  

The second trip on the 

way to the Coppermine , which is way up here 

on the coast ,  took him into the area that we 

are talking about in this action , I s  that 

correct? 

A .  Approximate ly so , 

yes . I t  is around the Dubawnt Lake . 

Q .  And there is  a map 

at the beginning of the book . At the text,  

starting at page 23 he comes up to Yathkyed 

Lake . You might want to read that . 

A .  We ll , I remember 

c his approximate route in here . 
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Q .  And we can see 

Yathkyed right here ? 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  I t ' s interesting 

that i t  is  an Indian name rather than an 

Eskimo name ; is that not correct? 

A .  I 'm not sure . 

Q .  Anyway , he went 

up the west  s ide of Yathkyed Lak e ,  over and 

down the west  side of Dubawnt Lake . What I 

30 7 would like you to do i s  look at that man and te ll 
0 
3 
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me whe ther you accept , within broad limitations , 

the accuracy of my betrayal of Samuel Hearne ' s  

trip , or if  you like to do that over the lunch 

�our with the aid of  his j ourna l in front of  you . 

A .  No . I am willing 

to accept that as a rough approximation of 

hi s travelled route , yes . The only point I 

am not certain about is whether this was the 

first trip or second trip . That ' s  j ust  a 

faulty memory . 

MR .  GOLDEN : Before the 

wi tness becomes so agreeab le , my friend has 

drawn some other circle arotm.d another lake 

rather than Dubawnt.  I think he better not 

be so ready to agree . 
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E .  Harp, er.  ex . 
(BEINTZMAN) 

BY MR. HEINTZMAN: 

Q .  Doctor Harp, you will see 

in his map he is showing him going around the lake to 

the northeast of Dubawnt Lake and just south of a 

river that appears to be the river flowing northeast 

from Dubawnt Lake. What I would like you to do , since 

I am sure you are more experienced in these matters 

than I am , to look at that map and look at the text 

over lunch hour and see if you can agree with me that 

it is the approximate location-- in that vicinity-­

of Samuel Hearne's j ourney. 

A .  Can I call on some outside 

expert help to establish that? 

MR. GOLDEN: We have it on a 

bigger scaled map behind . We have these areas . 

Perhaps it would be more helpful if we use the bigger 

map, which is already Exhibit P-10 . 

THE COURT: That ' s  fine with 

me . I am not sure I remember what else is P.1arked on 

P-:-10. 

MR. GOLDEN: There is nothing 

marked ori it. It was the background map for the 

tracings. The difficulty I have is that this is like 

a ·school boy ' s  map. It is a very minor scale.  

MR. HEINTZM.:n.N: I wo�ld be most 

content if Doctor Harp would transpose onto the other 

exhibit·'.'"."' the larger one-- the same line depicting 

Samuel Hearne ' s  journey. 

Now, the book that Samuel 

Hearne wrote indicates that he was in the vicinity in 

1970--:-
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.r... . Earp , c::::- . -=: :< . 
( nE DlT Z.'-B� ) 

THE COURT : Seventeen , su=ely . 

M.._-q • HE INT Z�.AN : Seventeen . 

cannot get out of the present . He spent July and 

I 

August on this particular tri? in this area . It ' s  true , , 

is it not ,  that he found living in that area the 

Chipewyan Indians? 

recall , yes . 

says: 

THE WITNESS : As far as I 

BY MR. HEINTZMAN : 

Q. For instance on page 23 he 

" On the twenty-sixth , all that 

remained of the musk-ox flesh 

being properly dried and fit 

for carriage,  we began to 

proceed on our journey Northward , 

and on the thirtieth of June 

arrived at a small river , called 

Cathawhachaga, which empties 

itself into a large lake called 

Yath-kyed-whoie , or White Snow 

Lak e .  Here we found several 

tents of  Northern Indians, who 

has been some time employed in 

spearing deer in their canoes , 

as they crossed the above 

mentioned little river . Here 

also we met a Northern Indian 

Leader , or Captain , called 

Keelshies, and a small party of 
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his crew , " 

r. . Har p ,  er . ex . 
( HEINTZ:.:'1..Z\.N ) 

-- so we know when Samuel Hearne went there in 1770 he 

found Chipewyan Indians . 

A .  Yes . 

Q . Is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Then if we cGrtinue 

reading through page 24, 25, he is still there in 

August , breaks his transom, as you will recall. Then 

when he's on thew;:st shore of Dubawnt he says this on 

page 30: 

"The day after I had the misfortune 

to break the quadrant, several 

Indians joined me from the 

Northward, some of whom plundered 

me and my companions of almost 

every useful article we had , 

among which was my guni II 

So, here he is un on Dubawnt Lake and he met 

Chipewyan Indians coming from the Northward; 

not correct? 

is that 

A ,  Chipewyan, it seems to me, 

correct , 

Q. When he says , " Indians" ,  

he doesn ' t  mean Eskimos because we have some rather 

gra?hic descriptions of what the I ndians did to the 

Eskimos from Mr. Hearne. 

A. Yes. 

Q. So , to an archaeologist, 

this is a piece of evidence that we can put into the 
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E .  Harp, er. ex . 
(HEINTZMAN) 

equation to tell us that in the late 1700's the 

Chipewyan Indians were living north of Dubawnt, north 

of Yathkyed, in areas which they had transitionally 

hunted for those thousands of years ; 

correct? 

is that not 

A .  Well , yes, I guess it is . 

Again , I would simply want to qualify this and say 

they were probably up there on seasonal hunting basis. 

this from occupancy. 

it seasonally? 

Q. Yes? 

A. In my own mind I separate 

Q. Well, they were occupying 

A. Well, they were moving in 

and out. I don ' t  occupy country when I go hunting in 

it. But , then , maybe it ' s  too fine a point to worry 

about . 

Q. As you told us ,  this is 

the way the people occupied land in this area if they 

are going to live off of it? 

A. They nove in and out and 

use it on this nomadic basis . What we don ' t  know, of 

course , is just how long this endured. 

1770? 

Q. You mean how lon� after 

A. Yes. 

Q. You accept that the 

Chipewyan Indians were living in that area and to the 

north of it in 1770? 

A. I guess we have to on the 
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basis of Hearne 1 s evidence. 

E .  Harp, er . e x .  
(HEINTZ�1AJ.�)  

Q.  And do we not have also to 

accept that if they were doing so they were living off 

the caribou? 

A. They must have been, yes. 

Q . I f  they were living off the 

c aribou they were occupying the same kinds of crossing 

G places that you visited in your travels. 
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A .  I would expect so. 

MR. HEINTZ�AN : �y Lord, this 

is a convenient time to break if I can impose upon 

your Lordship. 

THE COURT : You are not 

imposing upon me. Have you any idea how long it is 

likely to take to read this passage from Hearne ' s  

Journals and get this onto the map? I think the 

wit ness requires the lunch hour too in �ddition to the 

work assignment that he has undertaken during the 

period. 

MR. HEINT ZM....Z\l� : Can we say 

two -thirty , my Lord? 

'!'HE COURT : I will probabl y  be 

back in my of fice before two-thirty. If  everybody 

else is here and we are ready to go a bit earlier, 

then , I wil l  be read y. We wil l  recess to two -thirty. 

-��� recessed for lunch 

MR. GOLDEN: Before my friend 

continues his cross- examination, there is a question 

on marking of the map. 
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:i:; • Harp , c r . ex . 
( HE IN'l' Z:½..;;.N) 

- 1098 -

THE COURT: Yes? 

MR. GOLDEN '. It is my 

suggestion ,  my Lord, that we mark. :Sxhibit P-10. 

Because of the scale of the map it makes it a lot 

easier. The map that Mr. Hearne drew is rather 

tortured in its dimension. It is difficult enough to 

pick out which lake is which route on a map of such 

small scale. Even on the large one it is not that 

easier. But, it would be easier to set it on a larger 

map than it would be on a smaller one. 

comment? 

THE COURT '. Have you any 

MR. HEINTZ.MAN: I have asked 

Doctor Harp-- perhaps we should ask him-- as I 

understand it, you are satisfied with my marking of 

Hearne ' s  journey on this other map , Is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. I 

have tried briefly but with the help of some experts 

in the room to sharpen this man up a little bit. We 

find we canno� do it in this short time. It is a 

ma7 or piece of work, even though it is a small job. 

We end up with one or two confusions, but by and large 

the routes shown here by Mr. Heintzman seems to be 

pretty decent-- pretty decently shown. A lot of this 

devolves back on Samuel Hearne , his poor instrumentatio 

and his inability to make accurate observations. 

THE COURT: Do you think you 

could do any better on the bigger map? 

THE WITNESS: Probably not 

because he refers to a few features and lakes by name 
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but we don ' t  have these names . 

E .  Harp, er . ex . 
(HEI�T ZJ.1.A�) 

THE COURT : I take it really 

it is the general neighbourhood that is really 
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MR. GOLDEN: It will be 

important later on to have some sense as to what the 

distances are , Samuel Hearne travelled in an area that 

is not that close , really, but Greenland looks close 

to Alaska on this map so I did not want to argue 

distance based on a map, which is , frankly, more of a 

school boy ' s  map than one that might be relied on for 

any scientific research. 

THE COURT : If Doctor Harp 

do=sn ' t  feel he can do much better on the bigger map-­

MR. GOLDEN : We can still 

plot the distances on the big map . 

THE COURT: Okay . 

BY �R. HEINT ZMAN : 

Q. The next journey that 

Mr . Hearne took , Doctor Harp , took him from Churchill 
0 
T which we see down at the bottom at the right hand 
T 
A corner of this map. 
w 
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THE COURT: Again, may I 

suggest you hang the Arctic ""Is land$... 0-'.t.e:r:._ t:ie -top , 

unless we are g-oing to get that f·ar. 

.'1-.ffi. HEINTZ�1AN : Let ' s  do that. 

THE COURT: Now I can see it , 

too , 

BY MR . HEINT ZMJ....N : 
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E .  Harp, e r .  ex . 
( HE BTT Z.�N ) 

Q. This was from Churchill , 

which we see here on Hudson ' s  Bay, and he ended up at 

the ·mouth of the Coppermine, which we can see on 

Coronation Gulf. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Then the map would 

indicate that he went across j ust north of Great Slave 

Lake and then up a series of lakes to the Coppermine 

and then on the way back he then came down across 

Great Slave Lake and down in the direction and back 

to Churchill. Have I sort of roughly sketched in the 

j ourney that Hearne took on his second trip? 

A. I think that ' s  reasonably 

good. 

Q .  Is it not correct that on 

that j ourney again he failed to see any Eskimos until 

he reached the mouth of the Coppermine? 

A. I believe it is. 

MR. HEINT ZMAN : My Lord, I am 

wondering, for the sake of the record, •,.,rhether we 

might have leave to mark a photocopy of the two 

chapters of Mr. Hearne ' s  book relating to the voyage 

into the Dubawnt-Yathkyed country to which the 

witness has referred during the lunch hour? Is that 

satisfactory? 

M..�.  GOLDEN : I think aloud 

I was �.iondering at one point in our discussion what we 

would do about historical documents. It is my 

feeling that there are a number that will be-- mostly 

in support of legal argument-- that we will be 
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s .  Harp, er. ex. 
( HE INT ZJ\1AN) 

They are essentially historical 

documents of fact, such things as treaties , so on. T'ifhe 

it comes to-- I am quite prepared to have them put in 

on any basis-- I don ' t  think anyone can vouch for the 

authenticity or the truth-- all we can say is that 

these are writinqs of which almost j udicial notice 

can be taken-- I assumed judicial notice could be 

taken. If Hearne : s  diary , in effect, is being put in 

on that basis then I have no concern about it being 

tendered-- the book being tendered to your Lordship, 

whatever. This witness , for example, cannot testify 

as to the truth of Hearne's diary any more than anyone 

else can . 

THE COURT : No. 

MR. GOLDEN: I thought we would 

develop procedure where that could be done easily , 

rather than start identifying chapters and xeroxing and 

having it as part of the general record.  Perhaps we 

can agree , your Lordship? 

THE COURT: As far as the Court 

is concerned, I am quite agreeable to any of these 

historical docu_rnents coming in on any basis that you 

gentlemen are agreed on , I hope that if we go to the 

Hudson Bay Company archives, for example, we _will not 

find ourselves in the position of subpoenaing somebody 

from Winnipeg to prove that that ' s  w�ere they came 

from and so on , unless there is some challenge as to 

it being the authentic edition of Hearne's Journals . 

MR. GOLDEN : Perhaps what we 

can do--
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S .  Harp, er . e;<. 
(HEINTZMAN) 

THE COURT: I would be glad to 

MR. GOLDEN : My friends can 

cross-examine on it and deal with it and perhaps 

simply supply to your Lor dship a copy of the book at 

some appropriate point and not mark it as an exhibit, 

but simply that maybe your Lordship could read • J.. l. I.. and 

take notice of it in the ordinary way . I will do the 

same with respect to any treaties or other material 

that we will put in, whether or not it has been put 

to a witness. 

THE COURT: Do they come into 

the r ecord satisfactorily or does that put them in 

the status of documents submitted during argument? 

MR. GOLDEN: I would think, my 

Lord,· that they should not be made part of the record 

as such. It can get very voluminous. As long as they 

are matters which your Lordship takes judicial notice, 

to deal with the diary of Samuel Hearne-- we have 

three editions published-- it is historical even in 

published editions-- they go way back-- I would 

treat that as a historic document and agree that your 

Lordship can take j udicial notice of it . I think 

there are probably a lot of other documents in that 

category. 

M.."R. . HEINTZMAN: My Lord, I 

think it would be better for the record if we 

photocopied the two chapters that deal with the map 

t hat Hearne made . I would be delighted to supply a 

book,- a copy of the book for your Lordship, but I 
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E .  Har? , er . e:-: . 
( HEINTZMAN ) 

do think it is easier for the record to have it done 

that way. 

THE COURT: I am inclined to 

agree with that , Mr . Golden, that really the volume of 

the record would be reduced if we don ' t  have the whole 

book if indeed only t•vo chapters are what we are 

concerned with here. That would limit it . Let ' s  

limit it to what is in those two chapters. 

MR. GOLDEN : We may adopt 

edited 9ortions for record purposes, as well as 

historic documents. 

THE COURT : That is presumably 

a bridge you will cross after , Right now, I have only 

academic interest in the matter. 

M...� , GOLDE� : Yes. 

BY MR . HEINT ZM.A..�: 

Q. I will make a photocopy of 

that and produce it tomorrow. That will be marked. 

1958 .  

THE COURT : Yes. 

MR. GOLDEN : Which version? 

MR .  HEINTZ.M...Pi.N: Glover edition, 

Q .  I take it , Doctor Har p ,  

you have not had a chance to eyeball some of the sites 

which I have ro�r ked on this large map of the 

Territories yet? 

A. I have done only that. 

You are referring particularly to the ones in the 

southern reaches of the country here? 

Q. Well, I have marked on 
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E .  Harp , er. e:<. 
(HEINT ZMAN ) 
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your sites and Gordon ' s  sites. 

A. Yes. The Gordon sites are 

over. in her e , and the Irving sites are over in here. 

Q. Right . 

A. And my sites are up in 

through here. 

Q .  So , looking south and 

west of the Thelon Game Sanctuary, we have the sites 

that Gordon has investigated. Over down here is 

Ennadai that Mr. Irving examined. Then up along the 

Aberdeen Lake-Beverly Lake area we have the sites that 

both you and--

he did one on Aberdeen? 

A .  Gordon. 

Q. and Wright? I think 

A .  Well, Gordon came down in 

through here. Gordon must have done these on the 

Thelon j ust above Beverly Lake because I did not get 

beyond the Beverly Lake to the west. 

Q. Let ' s  go through some of 

those now . 

First of all , starting with 

Doctor Gordon ' s  book called The Migod Eight Thousand 

Years of Barrenlands �re-History . I have only got 

one copy of it since it is so big. I am going to ask 

your Lordship that we be able to photocopy some parts 

of it because these documents are very hard to get a 

hold of and I have to return this to the Arctic 

Institute Library in Calgary . If  we start at page 107-

first of all , we better establish where Doctor Gordon 
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E .  Har:? , er . ex . 
( HEINTZMAN) 

was working on this occasion . 

A .  Right at the northern end 

of Grant Lake. 

Q. He has it shown on page 10 

of his book . 

A. Marjorie and Grant Lake is 

right in here. I would take that to be that blue mark 

right there. 

Q. I have placed those marks 

mostly on the east shore but some on the west shore-­

one on the west shore to demonstrate the one site that 

he has on the west shore and , then, a number of sites 

which he had on the east shore? 

A. Yes. 

Q .  It ' s  j ust at the north 

entrance of the Dubawnt River to Grant Lake? 

approximately right? 

Ji... Yes. 

Q ,  If I look here , are those 

A .  Approximately , yes . 

Q. Let ' s  read together some 

portions of this report. First of all , on page Roman 

numeral IV Doctor Gordon says as follows: 

" The Migod site at Grant Lake on 

the lower Dubawnt River , N. W.T . 

has been occupied during the 

summer and autumn by caribou 

hunting and fishing peoples for 

the past eight millennia. 

Situated at a prominent water-
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E .  Har? , er . ex . 
(HEINTZMAN) 

- 1 106 -

crossing and fishing spot, it was 

first occupied following drainage 

of the immense glacial Lake Hyper­

Dubawnt by Northern Plano Agate 

Basin peoples about 8 , 000 years 

ago. Following a 1,700 year 

period showing no �vidence of 

occupation, Shield Archaic 

hunters and fishers persisted 

until 3 ,700 years ago, moving 

south into Manitoba after 3 , 500 

years ago perhaps in response to 

a prolonged cold period. The 

Pre-Dorset culture of the Arctic 

Small Tool tradition occupied 

Migod about 3 , 000 B. P. in the 

form of a small hunting band 

driven south by highly 

unfavourable hunting, sealing 

and fishing conditions between 

Coronation and Queen Maud Gulfs. 

With climatic amelioration in 

the first few centuries before 

Christ , the Athabascan peoples 

of the Taltheilei tradition 

entered Keewatin District from 

the southwest, evolving into the 
-

eastern branch of the Chipewyan 

Indian tribe. During the 18th 

century the Chipewyan were 
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heavily decimated by White­

introduced diseases , and the 

survivors later migrated to 

recently abandoned Cree lands 

to the south, leaving the 

Keewatin District to the 

historic inroads of the Caribou 

Inuit from the coast. '1 

At this particular site-- have I correctly stated that 

abstract? 

A. Yes, you have. 

Q. On page 201  of the report he 

deals particularly with one piece of evidence-- I am 

looking at page 200 where he identifies a modern 

Chipewyan. I don 1 t know if you recall that particula� 

piece. 

A. No 1 I don 1 t. 

Q. He says that this ace of 

spade point is attributed to early historic Chipewyan . 

A. Yes. 

Q. That 1 s page 20 1 .  Then on 

page 255 he says: 

''Table 2 7  lists 27 artifacts and 

flakes of Aberdeen Lake red 

quartz ite taken from �igod 

strata . They emanate from Shield 

Archaic, Arctic Small Tool and 

Taltheilei levels and sublevels. 

The high quality of artifacts 

of this material are evident in 
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the plates, whi le the presence 

of flakes suggest either transport 

of raw materials from Aberdeen 

Lake or refashioning or 

resharpening of finished tools 

at Migod . In any event, fini�hed 

tools or raw material were brought 

from Aberdeen Lake south along the 

caribou migration route to Grant 

Lake from 3500 B.C. to the 

historic period. " 

Have I correctly read this? 

A. You have . 

Q .  What he is sayinq is that 

the Indian people were bringing tools that they had 

made up in Aberdeen Lake down past Grant Lake during 

this period? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Then on page 257 he starts 

his conclusions , and I would like to read substantial 

portions of these to you , and it is as follows : 

"The barrenlands of Canada 

comprise approximately one-half 

million square miles, the central 

portion of which is noted for 

its isolation throughout historic 

times , However , such people as 

William Stewart and Samuel 

Hearne brought to light t he vast 

importance of its interior to 
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the early Chipewyan. Hearne 

described important aspects of 

Chipewyan life prior to 

extensive acculturation and 

emigration from the barrenlands 

to more lucrative southern fur 

trapping areas newly abandoned 

by the Cree , His description 

occurred before the general 

historic influx of Caribou 

Inuit from Hudson Bay. In the 

early 19th century, Birket-Smith 

described the Caribou Inuit with 

their barrenland adaotation from 

the perspective of an ancient 

inland affiliated culture. Their 

interior adaptation was short­

lived, however , and they were 

relocated to maritime settlements 

under White economy after 1 950 

due to starvation resulting from 

failure of the caribou. Their 

exodus left the barrenlands 

uninhabited , probably for the 

first time since deglaciation , "  

Then he starts into the. 

historical analysis . I will read part: 

" Prior to excavations at the 

Migod site at Grant Lake in the 

central barrens, it was believed 
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that full deglaciation occurred 

about 5000 B . C. at the Keewatin 

Ice Divide just east of Migod � 

However, radiocarbon estimates 

from Grant Lake suggest Northern 

Plano Agate Basin caribou hunters 

occupied the barrenlands prior to 

6000 B.C." 

This is some of the evidence 

you were referring to before that comes out of Doctor 

Gordon's work that the Indian predecessors were there 

before it had otherwise been assumed they were there? 

A .  Possibly, yes . Yes. 

Q .  Now, I do not want to 

read all  of this. Let ' s  get us down to more recent 

times. I am looking now at page 258 . 

to bore his Lordship with al l of this . 

I do not want 

I may have 

this summary marked . However , at the end of the 

summary, page 273 , he sets out a table showing his 

analysis of the period of occupation. He says on page 

273: 

"In conclusion , this research has 

described the fluctuation of 

cultures, caribou and climate 

at �igod site for the past 8, 000 

years . The inter-dependency of 

the three factors in barrenland 

prehistory continued to the 

historic period. Finally, a 

capsu le summary of major 
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barrenland events is given in 

Table 2 8 . "  

Then he sets out Table 2 8. He 

has the Taltheilei- - the Chipewyan Indians- - in the 

vicinity from 650 B. C .  to 8 50 A. D .  and , then , from 

1250 A. D .  to 1750 A. D. Is that correct? 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  So , so far as the Arctic 

Small Tool pre- Dorset period, he has them at the site 

between 700 B . C. and 1500 B.C. I should have those 

numbers in the reverse for that period. Is that 

correct? 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  Then before that he �as 

the Shield Archaic people- - those you have told us 

are the predecessors of the Indian people? 

3 000 B . C .  and 1750 B . C. 

A. Yes. 

Q. They were there between 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is  that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Then going back into 

early histor y he has got various-- Northern Plano 

Indians or Shield Archaic peoples right back to 

4000 B. C.? 

A. He has an early period of 

Shield Archaic from 4000 to 3 000 and , then: he 

identifies the Northern Plano back as far as 7000 to 

4000 B , C. 
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Q. Then if we look at Doctor 

Wright 1 s Study of the Grant Lake site, which is 

basically the same area, it 1 s entitled The Grant Lake 

Site, Keewatin District , Northwest Territories. 

A. Yes . 

Q. I would like to read with 

you some 0f his conclusions. I am looking with you at 

page 97. Perhaps we should first look at the area he 

was working in to establish that we are talking about 

the same area , You see on page 3 the picture of the 

north end of Grant Lake? 

A. Yes. 

Q. The sites that he is 

looking at are on the eastern side of the river, j ust 

above Grant Lake? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s  that correct? 

A. Yes , 

Q. So , we are basically in 

the same area as the last report? 

A. Several miles farther 

south along the shore of the lake . 

follows: 

Q. On page 97 he says as 

11 In terms of the general culture 

history of the Barrengrounds the 

initial human occupation of the 

region appears to have taken 

place between 7 , 000 B . C. and 

6 , 000 B.C . when a band or bands 
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of the Agate Basin complex began 

exploiting the rich caribou 

resource. Their descendants , the 

Shield Archaic , maintained the 

same exploitative pattern until 

around 1550 B. C. to 1250 B . C .  

when cooling conditions , that 

lasted until O A. D. (Nichols n . d . ) ,  

forced the treeline south and 

altered the caribou calving­

migration-wintering pattern in a 

fashion that could not be 

accommodated by the earlier hunters. :, 

Stopping there, the Agate Basin complex are the 

prehistoric , pre-Indian cultures? 

A .  What we call Paleo-Indian 

or sometimes P lano-Indian referring to this grass land 

hunting complex of High Plains. 

Q. And then: 

" In their place , Arctic Small Tool 

tradition hunters appeared from 

the northwest and occupied the 

region from approximately 12 00  

B , C • to 7 0 0 B • c . . . . " 

he refers to Gordon�-

II Sometime prior to 500 B. C. 

and approximately  500  years 

before the warming trend , a 

band or bands of the Taltheilei 

trac.i tion . . . " 
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refers to Noble and Doctor Gordon--

" . .. occupied the region and 

maintained their hold until the 

historic period when they are 

identified as the Chipewyan. 

And, finally . . .  " 

he is quoting himself from a prior article--

" ' ,  .. it is speculated that 

due to a reduction in population 

.resulting from exposure to 

European diseases or a desire to 

be closer to the European trading 

locations the more northerly Cree 

abandoned their lands and moved 

further south. At approximately 

the same time the Chipewyan had 

been drawn i�to the fur trade and 

since their lands were poorly 

provided with valuable fur 

animals they shifted into the 

abandoned Cree territory to 

obtain the furs necessary to 

meet their needs for European 

goods. Similarly, the large 

areas of the barrenlands vacated 

by the Chipewyan was occupied 

by Eskimos ' , " 

Have I correctly quoted him? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Then let ' s  turn to 
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Mr. Wright 1 s analysis of the Aberdeen site . Let 1 s turn 

to page 82 of that analysis . Maybe we need to start 

on page 8 1 .  Let 1 s start at the bottom of page 81 : 

"The Aberdeen sit e ,  however, and 

Keewatin District in general 

appear to have been in a very 

peripheral position relative 

to the events taking place to 

the west . Indeed, the Aberdeen 

site was for all intent s and 

purposes abandoned during this 

period . The climatic events 

that resulted in the abandonment 

of t he area by the Shield Archaic 

populations and t heir replacement , 

albeit incipient , by Arctic Small 

Tool tradition hunters must have 

had a significant effect upon the 

migration routes and calving 

areas of the caribou. Whatever 

the reasons the area was largely 

deserted by man with the Indian 

hunters presumably operating 

further to the south and the 

Eskimo hunters exploiting the 

areas to the west and northwest 

and only making a rare foray 

into the region . 

It is not until sometime 

around the birth of Christ that 
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hunters returned in significant 

numbers to the Aberdeen site.  

These hunters however, were not 

the descendants of the Shield 

Archaic returning to their old 

territory but rather they were 

the ancestors of the historic 

Chipewyan who came out of the 

west . Without W . C .  Noble ' s  

extensive research in the central 

District of Mackenzie it would 

not have been possible to say 

much about the newcomers. The 

Taltheilei Shale tradition of 

the central District of �ackenzie 

is estimated to date as early as 

200 B . C .  and to terminate with 

the historic Yellowknife (Copper) 

Athabascans (Noble) . As has 

been remarked earlier 

approximately one-third of the 

projectile point varieties 

recovered from the surface of 

the Aberdeen site and from 

Level I of the excavations are 

equated with projectile point 

varieties characteristic of the 

Taltheilei Shale tradition . 

Other items from the Aberdeen 

site such as the chithos and 
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bi-pointed biface blades . . .  " 

-- chithos, what does that mean? 

A. Chithos, it is a skin 

scraper made from a very thin generally circular or 

ovide rock-- thin platy rock which is roughly around 

the side. It can be used to clean, scrape , so on 

without a danger of cutting. 

Q. Is that a tool that ' s  

associated with the Indians? 

A. It'·s an Indian name. It's 

kind of a tool widely used-- particularly this style 

has a rounded ovide tip associated with the forest 

Indians. 

Q. Starting that sentence 

again : 

"Other items from the Aberdeen 

site such as the chithos .. . " 

have I got that right? 

,, 

A. Chithos. 

Q. 

and bi-pointed biface blades 

most likely relate to the 

Taltheilei Shale tradition. 

Indeed, when the detailed 

attribute data become available, 

I strongly suspect that many of 

the ubiquitous biface blades, 

scrapers, and other tool 

varieties will turn out to be 

distinctive and it will be 
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possible to make a more sophisticated 

separation of the mixed Taltheilei 

Shale tradition and Shield Archaic 

tradition materials at the Aberdeen 

site.'' 

Now, I do not want to read all of this. 

Turning now to the bottom of page 83 : 

" ... Northern Saskatchewan, northern 

Manitoba, and central and southern 

Keewatin District were occupied 

historically by the Chipewyans or 

Caribou Eaters . "  

Sometimes the Chipewyans are referred to as Caribou 

Eaters? 

A. That ' s  right . 

Q. 

"This fact suggests that the 

Yellowknife and Chipewyans 

shared basically similar cultural 

traditions , a situation that is 

not at variance with the 

available linguistic and 

ethnological evidence. The 

Caribou Eskimo occupation at 

the Aberdeen site was historic.'' 

That means after white men ; is that right? 

" 

A. Yes. 

Q. 

and consisted of recent 

tent rings containing wood 
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chips, the odd wooden artefact, 

cloth and sod caribou antlers. 

J .  Tyrrell's comments regarding 

the aboriginal occupation of the 

Sarrenlands curing his visit in 

18 93 . .. .  , 

stopping there , �r . Tyrrell was an explorer who 

went through the same area as Mr. Hearne? 

A .  He duplicated some of the 

same areas. 

Q .  And in 1893? 

A. Some of the same coverage . 

He was a famous Canadian geological surveyor .  

Q. 

" During his visit in A . D. 1893 

and Samuel Hearne ' s  voyage to the 

same country in A.D . 1770 is 

pertinent . . .  " 

and he quotes Tyrrell--

" . . .  the conditions which I have 

found were j ust as he described, 

except the inhabitants changed . 

The Chipewyan Indians, whom he 

found occupied advanta9eous 

positions everywhere as far as 

the north end of Dubawnt Lake 

had disappeared, and in their 

place the country had been 

occupied by scattered bands 

and families of Eskimos,  who 
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had almost forgotten the ocean 

shores from the north from 
which they had come. The 

historical mova�ents of the 

Chipewyan out of the Barrenlands 

and to replace them by Eskimos 
has been considered in a recent 
paper . . . " 

then he quotes Wright , The Recent Historical 

References , which are in essential agreement with the 

available archaeological evidence indicating a series 
of population movements for which reasonable 

explanations exist. The Cree , with early contact 

with Europeans , 

" it is speculated that due to 

the reduction in population , 

resulting in exposure to 
European diseases or a desire 
to be closer to European trading 

locations the more Northerly Cree 

abandoned their lands and moved 

further south. At approximatel y  

the same time the Chipewyan had 

been drawn into the fur trade , 
and since their lands were 

purel y provided with valuable 
fur animals they shifted into 

the abandoned Cree territory 
to obtain the furs necessary to 

meet thei r needs for European 

goods. Similarl y ,  the large 

area of the Barrenlands vacated 
by the Chipewyan was occupied 

by Eskimos.n 

Have I correctly quoted 

that article? 

A .  Yes , sir. 

Q. Then Doctor I rving has 

published his findings in a book entit led Science , 
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History and Hudson ' s  Bay, and in particular part two, 

the Barren Grounds . It deals, particularly on page 49, 

with Caribou-Eskimos and their origin. I don't want 

to read the whole article ,  but at the bottom of page 49 

he says-- he comments about Birket-Smith ' s  theory that 

the Caribou-Eskimos were the original people who went 

out to the coast , rather than vice versa , as you 

demonstrate.  I am quoting from page 49: 

"From a different standpoint, 

Birket-Smith observes that, 

of those Caribou �Eskimo traits 

that appear to come from Indian 

culture, most were borrowed from 

the Cree at a very uncertain 

date , rather than from the 

Chipewyan at a later one , after 

their hypothesized eastward 

expansion from the west toward 

Hudson Bay ; this suggests 

for the Caribou- Eskimo a long 

period of residence in the 

southern Keewatin . Alternatively, 

the Caribou-Eskimo may have 

picked up traits from the Cree, 

along the coast of Hudson ' s  Bay , 

before they moved inland , shortly 

before the 19th century, when 

the interior Barrens were occupied 

mainly by the Chipewyan , The 

complete absence of anything that 
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might be a prehistoric Caribou ­

Eskimo grave from the parts of 

the Keewatin interior surveyed 

by the writer and C .  Merbs , 

where there were many Eskimo 

burials from dating after 1850 , 

and finally , it swings the 

weight of evidence to favour a 

recent movement by these people 

into the southern Barren. " 

Have I correctly quoted 

Doctor Irving? 

A. Yes. 

Q .  Then I want to read to 

you from Brenda Clark ' s  study The Development of the 

Caribou ,Eskimo Study. Starting at page 116 you will 

see the heading The Caribou -Eskimo Period. What I 

am trying to get is her analysis of that period. 

A. Yes. 

Q. I am reading from the 

middle of page 117 : 

" Essentially , all of the 

information concerning Caribou · 

Eskimo culture comes from 

historical accounts and the 

work of Kaj Birket- Smith , a 

member of the Fifth Thule 

Expedition. From these 

sources , the chronological 

placing of the Caribou �Eskirno 
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.i:., .  Harp , er . ex . 
( HE INT z�1AN ) 

culture period and the nature 

of the seasonal round of 

activities can be determined. 

Sometime near the end of 

the 18th century or the 

beginning of the 19th century ,  

some groups of the west coast 

Hudson Bay Inuit population 

began to inhabit the interior 

barren grounds on a year- round 

basis. This , according to our 

definition mentioned previousl y , 

was the beginning of the Caribou ­

Eskimo culture period . Four 

geographic sub-groups were 

recognized within the major 

grouping of Caribou �Eskirnos 

CBirket-Smith 192 9a) , Qaernermiut, 

Hauneqtormiut ,  Harvaqtormiut and 

Padlimiut . "  

Then she goes on:  

11As Birket-Smith points out , it 

is difficult to designate clear 

boundaries between these sub-

groups . "  

Brenda C lark? 

Have I correctly quoted 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  Let ' s  read page 12 6 ,  

"Archaeological evidence has 
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2 .  �ar? , er . ex . 
(HEI�TZMAN ) 

shown that the barren grounds 

have always been a marginal area 

as far as cultural develonment 

is concerned. The interior has 

never been occupied on a 

continuous year -rou�d basis · 

except by some bands of Caribou ­

Eskimos. Nor has any one 

cultural group continuously 

occupied the barrens. Harp ' s  

four cultural traditions, 

including Paleo and Archaic 

Indian occupations, show the 

varied and discontinuous 

habitation of these regions 

until the late 18th century. 

According to the archaeological 

evidence , none of these cultures 

originated or developed on the 

interior barren grounds.  Thus, 

there is no evidence to support 

Birket-Smith ' s  hypothesis of 

a ' proto-Eskimo ' stage of Inuit 

cultural develooment in the 

area ; it follows that the 

Caribou EskiMo cannot be the 

remnant group of this ' proto­

Eskimo 1 stage. Another origin 

for the Caribou-Eskimo culture 

must be sought. It . might be 
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E .  Harp, er . E: X . 
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assumed that the Thule culture 

variant that is known to have 

occupied the area is ancestral 

to the Caribou• Eskimo culture . 

Archaeological evidence from 

the west coast of Hudson Bay 

has shown a continuous occupation 

from A.D. 1 200 to the present. 

(Classic Thule sites are limited 

to the northern part but modified 

by Thule 1200 to 1610 A.D. , 

historic Thule 1610 to 1775 A , D. 

and the Caribou-Eskimo period 

represented on the barren and 

coastal regions of the west 

Hudson Bay) .. . " 

and then I read as follows: 

" the development from the 

Thule culture to the Caribou­

Eskimo culture, as defined by 

Birket-Smith, occurred at a 

dramatic rate.  An explanation 

will be offered to account for 

the development of the two 

major defined characteristics 

of the Caribou-Eskimo culture , 

a unique economic orientation 

and the stylistically primitive 

appearance of the material 

cultured complex . "  
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again? 

- 1 126  -

Have I 

E. Harp, e r .  ex . 
( HE INT Z.M..AN ) 

correctly quoted her 

A. Yes . 
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1127. E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

Q. Then in her con.cl us ion 

on page 151 and 52 -- I don ' t know if we have to 

read the whole of the thing -- at the bottom of 

page 151: 

"Archaeological evidence 

indicates that there was 

an ongoing degeneration in 

technology since the classic 

Thule s tage (A. D. 9 00-

120 0 )  which was initiated 

by certain historical 

processes including , 

probably , a change in social 

values affecting Inuit 

views on craftsmanship. 

It was proposed that the 

deterioration in the quality 

of manufacturing technique 

through time could perhaps 

be used to as sist in the 

relative chronological 

placement of Thule 

assemblages. The 

technological degeneration 

was also influenced by the 

acquisition of items of 

European technology . 

The conclusion offered is 



L-2 
V 
E 
R 
B 
A 
T 
I 

M 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 
I 
J',; 
G 

s 

E 
10  R 

V 
I 
C 
E 
s 

R 

E 

1 5  J 
0 
H 
A 
N 
s 

s 
0 
N 

C 

20 s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 
A 

0 
25 N 

T 
A 
R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
I 

0 
30 7 

0 
3 

1 128 . E .  Harp, er-ex 
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that the origin of the 

Caribou-Eskimo culture, 

as defined by Birket-Smith, 

occurred about A. O. 1775 

when the effects of culture 

contact between the 

aboriginal Inuit and 

Europeans caused a change 

in the Inuit exploitative 

and settlement pattern and 

subsequently accelerated 

the deterioration of the 

material culture of the 

west coast Hudson Bay 

Inuit. " 

Have I correctly quoted her? 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  Have all of 

these authors relied upon your findings as 

sort of a start of their work? 

A .  I believe so. 

Q .  Is that correct? 

A. Yes . 

Q. We see a trend 

in all of those archaeologists -- a belief 

that the interior of the Keewatin became 

occupied by the Inuit about the end of the 

seventeen hundreds . Is that cor_rectly 



V 
E 
R 
B 
A 
T 
I 

M 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 
I 

1129 . E .  Harp, er-ex 
(Heintzman ) 

s ummari zing the articles which we have read 

together ? 

A. I think it does , 

so long as you -confine . this trend to the 

country lying south of the Thelen because I 

N think it ' s  less appli cable in the northern 

s 

E 
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V 
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section. 

Q .  Wel l ,  Aberdeen is 

on the Thelen? 

A. Okay, but Aberdeen 

R I would then place off on the western 
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extremity . In other words, there seems to 

me to appear to be some kind of geographic 

separation -- it ' s  not because of any natural 

or normal boundaries or anything of that 

sort -- but for whatever the reason, it 

appears to me that it ' s  quite obvious the 

Eskimo occupation of the southern barren 

grounds is or was relative ly recent in the 

eighteenth century, whereas we continue to 

have this earlier evidence of Eskimo 

occupation up on the latitude of Baker Lake, 

Chesterfield Inlet, the lower lakes of the 

middle Thelen -- when you get as far as 

A berdeen and Beverly then you begin to 

run into these earlier Indian signs again .  

Q .  What we have are 

signs of Thule periodic occupation back 
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1130. E. Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

between twelve and fourteen hundred ,  in those 

areas ; is that not correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What we have -- I 

have read to you from all of these j ournals 

MR. GOLDEN : Those 

areas -- I don ' t  know what he means by 

" those areas".  We have been talking a bout 

two separate areas. 

THE COURT : There may 

be need for a bit of precis ion. 

MR . GOLDEN : It ' s  j ust  
• I 

like the word barren. It is a big word . 

I am concerned. 

THE WITNESS : This 

whole area , in through here , north of the 

20 s tree line is a vast triangular area running 
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from roughly the 60th parallel or even as 

far south as Churchill  up on a northwesterly 

line. 

THE COURT : You are 

drawing a line from about Churchil l ,  Manitoba , 

up past Coppermine , up in the Artie? 

THE WITNESS : Yes , 

approximate ly so , My Lord , and eastwards to 

incorporate all of this country. That is 

the section that is conventionally known as 
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the Barrenlands 

1131. E. Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

or the Great Barrens. 

THE COURT : The mainland 

is lying to the north and eas t of that 

Churchill-Coppermine line? 

THE WITNESS : Yes. 

THE COURT : That is 

what you are referring to generally as the 

Barrens ?  

THE WITNESS :  This 

border line is essentially -- follows the 

tree line . 

THE COURT : I see. 

THE WITNESS : That 

is a name that is -- I don ' t  know how long 

that name has been attached to it because 

I don ' t  know who originated it, really. 

However , this is the section of country that 

I suggest we , somehow or other , have to 

divide up because of the difference I 

think we see in these early occupation 

sequences. It looks to me like the Indians 

may have priority in the southern reaches of 

this area and the more westerly portions of 

it; whereas the Eskimo, in my way of thinking , 

have a comparable priority for the northeas tern 

section . 

BY MR. HEINTZMAN : 

Q .  Let ' s  deal with 
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Aberdeen Lak e .  

1132. 

A .  Okay . 

Q .  We know 

E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman) 

at least 

the opinion of these authors is that the 

Inuit -- I 'm sorry, the Indians were 

continuing to go up and use sites in that 

are a , up to and including the his toric 

period; is that not corre ct? 

A .  Yes ,  I believe 

so . 

Q .  And we can expect 

them to be using the same sort of crossing 

place s ,  in the vicinity of Aberdeen Lake , 

that you examined, 

is that not correct? 

if they were there ; 

A .  I think s o ,  yes. 

Q. Now , the theories 

and opinions that we have gone through would 

tend to indicate that if the Caribou-Eskimo 

-- and I am using that to des cribe these 

people who live inland rather than living 

on the coast and going inland to hunt caribou 

came from the shore s of Hudson Bay some time the 

late seventeen hundred; is that not correct? 

A .  You are speaking of 

the southerly area now? 

Q .  Let ' s  talk about 

30 7 Aberdeen Lake . We want to get specific . 
0 
3 
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1133. E. Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

A .  All right . 

Q. Do you accept that? 

A. Please re s tate i t .  

Q. That the Chipewyans 

continued to use the area up to and including 

Aberdeen Lake -- up to and including the 

early historic period -- and it was sometime 

around the end of the seventeen hundreds , 

early e ighteen hundreds-- that the Inuit came 

inland from Hudson Bay. That is the theory 

that all o f  the se people , re lying on your 

earlier studies , have arrived at? 

A .  Yes , I think you ' re 

right in corroborating that.  

Q .  I s uggest to you 

there are two facts in particular that allow 

us to be fairly s pecific a bout this. First 

of all, we know the Chipewyans were decimated 

by small pox in an epidemic in 1781 and 82 ; 

do we not? 

A. I have so read.  

Q .  Do you accept that 

as being a very significant factor which 

removed the traditional occupiers or users 

o f  that area and allowed the Inuit to move 

inland? 

A. I don ' t  know this 

from first hand research, but I understand 
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certainly this could have happened .  I am 

wil ling to accept the pos sibility . I know 

what European di seases have done to native 

groups elsewhere . 

Q .  The other document 

phenomena that we can pinpoint is the fact 

that the Eskimos were given firearms by the 

Hudson Bay Company in 1773 , which permitted 

them, for the first time in their his tory , 

to deal  with the Chipewyans on equal terms . 

Are you aware of that? 

A .  Yes , I have read 

th is . 

Q .  Would you not also 

agree that that is another significant th ing 

that we can point to as being a factor which 

c led to the Inui t ' s  abi lity to move inland? 
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A .  Yes , I would believe 

so.  

Q .  There is  another 

theory as to the origins  of  the Inuit people 

whi ch Mr . Burch has recently espoused. Are 

you aware of  his recent theories?  

A .  I believe I understand 

them all.  Ye s .  

Q .  And Mr • Burch now 

believes that , in fact , in or around the 

1600s  and 1700s there were no Inuits living 
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1135 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

on the west coast of Hudson Bay at all? 

A. Yes. 

Q.  That, in fact, 

what happened was about that time the Inuit 

came from the Coppermine , down their traditional 

river routes,  into the central barren out 

to the west coast of Hudson Bay , where they 

resided for a short period of time before 

moving inland. Is that correct? 

A .  May I ask you a 

question , Mr .  Heintzman ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I thought that was 

country you just assigned to the Indians. 

over there you speak of traditional routes , 

Coppermine , down and then east--,;.a.xd au t to 

Chesterfie ld Inlet as a path for 

the Eskimos ;  but that is counter to what you 

maintained before this. 

Q. Maybe I can do 

the asking and you can help me with the 

answering. 

to if I can. 

A. I will be glad 

THE COURT : Obviously 

your questions are tougher than his. 

BY MR. HEINTZMAN : 

Q. Wel l ,  - if the 
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Chipewyans had gone by that time that would 

have permitted them to do that? 

A.. Yes .  

Q. Is that not corre ct? 

A.. Yes ,  but this is 

an extreme possibility because I don ' t  think 

you have suggested anything that has any -­

I don ' t know of any factual data that would 

support a hypothesis of this nature . 

Q .  Well, Mr. Burch 

has written an article of 3 8, 40 pages ? 

A. .  Yes, but that 

doesn ' t  alter my skepticism. 

Q. Will you agree 

with me that Dr. Burch is a renown 

Artie anthropologist? 

A.. Oh yes. He is 

20 s d a very goo man. 
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Q. And that his 

opinion is one --

A. To be listened 

to . 

Q. -- one to be listened 

to? Right. It is one which, so  far as he 

is concerned , has a cons iderable amount of 

evidence to support it? 

A. I would question 

30 7 that. 
0 
3 
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Q. Perhaps we can go 

through some of his findings. So His Lordship 

can follow it , maybe I can provide Your 

Lordship with a copy of the article entitled 

Caribou-Eskimo Origins , An Old Problem 

N Reconsidered. 
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Again, I do not want 

to go through this thing in great detail. 

MR. GOLDEN: May I 

give the witness a copy? 

have an extra copy?  

you. 

MR. HEINT ZMAN : Do you 

MR. GOLDEN : Yes. 

MR. HEINTZMAN : Thank 

MR. GOLDEN : May I 

explain, My Lord, that we did not reproduce 

them out of any great loyalty to the author, but a 

secretarial mistake that resulted that in bei ng 

reproduced rather than Dr. Harp' & article. We have 

extra copies for that reason. 

BY MR. HEINTZMAN : 

Q. Is it fair to say 

that Dr. Burch rationalized two theories: 

a theory put forward by Dr.  Taylor that the 

Caribou-Eskimo were derived from people 

on the A::-ctic coast near the Coppermine ;  

then the theory o f  yoursel f and -people 
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113 8 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman) 

following you that they came from the west 

coast of Hudson Bay? 

A .  Yes .  He was 

re-examining both of these . In the end ·he 

came up wi th some kind of accommodation . 

Q .  Yes , he came up 

with the accommodation that they did come 

from the Copperrnine , but , yet ,  they did 

settle on the west Hudson Bay and then 

immigrated or migrated inward·. That was 

the theory he came up with?  

A .  Yes ,  from the 

northwest .  

Q .  Yes . 

A .  Yes , into the 

Thelen country . 

Hudson Bay coast? 

Q .  To the wes t  

A .  Ye s .  

Q .  And then came 

inland? 

A.  Farther south . 

Q .  But that when he 

as sumed the proppsition , which I ' ve been 

putting to you , and accepted the proposi tion 

which I ' ve been putting to you , namely , 

that the occupation of the interior by the 

30 7 Eskimos on a year round bas is occurred sometime 
0 
3 
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1139 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman ) 

during the 1700s  or 1800s . That was taken 

as an accepted and acknowledged and agreed 

fact.  

A .  Referring to  ·the 

his�oric Caribou-Eskimo , yes . 

Q .  He s ays on page 

2 -- do you see his article ? 

A .  Page what? 

Q .  Page 2?  

A. I have it.  

Q .  He says on the 

right-hand side jus t  underneath the pi cture : 

" Taylor hypothesized that , 

ins tead of following the 

coastline east then south 

along the west coast of 

Hudson Bay , the immediate 

ancestors of the Caribou­

Eskimos migrated over land 

to Hudson Bay vi a the Thelen 

River/Baker Lake area sometime 

around A . D .  1650 . They 

subsequently expanded 

inland to their known historic 

distribution . A s light 

variance of this point of 

view (Dr . Irving) holds 

that this  overland migration 
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1 140. E. Harp , er-ex 
( Hein tzrnan) 

came out of the Netsilik 

Eskimo region to the east 

o f  Queen Maud Gulf. The 

Taylor hypothesis was not 

s trongly advanced 

initially , and has not been 

subjected to systematic 

evaluation. " 

S o ,  he is s aying 

originally these people came from Coppermine,  

over to the Hudson Bay coast and then moved 

inward? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Whereas Dr. Irving 

is suggesting a movement from the Queen Maud 

Gulf area , south to the west coast and then 

inward? 

A. Yes . 

Q. It ' s  interesting 

in this cas e ,  Dr. Harp , that a considerab le 

number of the witnesses who have testified 

have actually come from the north coas t. 

A. I understand that 

in histori c  times there has been relatively 

free and common movement back and forth 

through that country , yes , but not by great 

numbers o f  people but , at leas t, by individual 

hunters and fami lies. In fact , •that sort of 
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1141. E. Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

thing doesn ' t  real ly surprise me at all 

because in all t..�at we know ab out Eskimo 

the Inuit culture -- everything s ugge sts 

mobility -- the utilization of various 

neighbourhoods or environment or areas 

within this great region on a seasonal 

basis. I have never considered these people 

as sedentary in any way at all,  at least 

before the coming of modern settlements. 

So , movements of this sort don ' t  -- are not 

upsetting . 

Q .  On page 4 o f  his 

article , the last paragraph before he dis cus ses 

Mr. Munck , Dr. Burch s ays : 

"It is worth noting at the 

outset that the major early 

historical sources on the 

Caribou-Eskimo area are 

well-known and that I have 

no new ones to add to the 

discussion. Furthermore , 

these sources have been 

examined previously with 

regard to the light they 

might shed on the question 

of Caribou-Eskimo origin . 

However , I subject them to 

more rigorous scrutiny than 
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1142 . E. Harp , er-ex 
( He int zman ) 

they have received in the 

past. I show that , when 

they are carefully evaluated , 

they fail to support the 

claim th at the Eskimos had 

been long time inhabitants 

o f  the west coast of Hudson 

B ay prior to A . D .  1717. 

I f  anything , they suggest 

j ust the opposite conclusion. " 

S o ,  that ' s  his theory ? 

A .  That ' s  the theory , 

but I cons ider that an entirely negative 

statement. Would you like to question further 

on that point? 

Q. You mean it doesn ' t  

c add up to anything? 

20 s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 

A.  It  doesn ' t  add up 

to anything as far as I am concerned . 

Q. Well , what Dr. 

Burch does is analyze all of the historical 

A contacts between the explorers on the west 

0 
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coas t of Hudson Bay and Inuit? 

A .  Yes. 

Q.  I s  that correct? 

A .  Yes . 

Q. I s  it fair to 

s ay that until the 1700s  he doesn ' t  find 
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1 1 4 3 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman) 

anr hard evidence of contacts with Inuit or 

Eskimo people. Isn ' t  that his conclusion? 

A. Yes , but there are 

reasons for that,  I think , or counter s uggestions 

that can be made . 

Q .  What are they? 

A. Wel l ,  in the first 

place some of these people ranged up and 

down -- that is a bad coast to s ai l  - - it  

is very shoal -- some of them stayed 

so far out to sea they could bare ly see 

the land, apparently , and presumably would 

have had very little opportunity ,  if any , 

to see people , even i f  they had been there . 

One or two of them did touch in at specific 

spots and did stay for certain lengths of  

time . There are conflicting reports of  

20 s cultural remains . For example ,  what we found 
R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 

around the mouth of the Chur chill River 

hardly any two of these agree on what these remains 

cons::i..tuted or where t.�ey were even located 

A specifically . So ,  I had not covered all of 
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the se example s ,  but i t ' s  s imply to suggest 

to you that there are a series of reports , 

most o f  whi ch I would inunediately wash out 

as evidence because a few of these earlier 

explorers didn ' t  see any -- they hardly knew 

what they were looking for in the first place 
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1144 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

and i t  doesn ' t  mean to me that the country was 

unoccupied or empty . Moreover at the time of 

year , some of them passed up and down this 

coast -- people that have been back in the 

interior. 

Q .  Do you accept his 

con clus ions from the histori cal --

A .  I don ' t like it ,  

no . I would perhaps accept bits and pieces 

of i t ,  but certainly not as a maj or explanatory 

case . 

Q .  Wel l ,  do you 

A. I j ust  don ' t  

he ' s  proposing this in the form of negative 

evidence . In our bus ines s ,  archaeological 

field research , you cannot wander through a 

piece of country , and if  you do not find 

anything , develop a theoreti cal s cheme to 

account for thi s , emphasi � ing the absen�e of 

people . It  is just impossib le to do . 

Q .  So you ' re s aying , 

A despite the fact that he says -- when you 
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read these reports-- that these  people did 

not see any Inuit tney may have been 

there in other place s ?  

A .  Yes . 

Q .  Do you accept 

his conclusions that these people did not 
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1145. E. Harp , er-ex 
( He int zman) 

see any Inuit? 

A. I guess I would have 

to , yes. 

Q. In fact, Jeremie 

in 16 --

A. Jeremie was one of 

the ones who did see something. 

Q. He saw some Indians? 

A. Yes , in the 

neighbourhood of Churchill or a little north 

of that around Eskimo Point, was it? I don ' t  

remember the exact spot. 

Q. Chesterfield Inlet. 

Look at the bottom of page 8. 

A .  Yes. 

Q .  " Other sections 

of Jeremie ' s  accotmt imply 

that the mouth of the 

Churchill was within Cree 

territory , and that the 

Cree were at least vague ly 

familiar with the west coast 

of Hudson Bay as far north 

as Chesterfield Inlet. The 

Chipewyan, on the other 

han d ,  lived toward the 

north wes t ,  beginning on 

the upper portions of the 
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1146 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

Seal River .  They , too , 

occasionally vis ited Munck ' s  

old site to obtain iron . It  

A. I would be willing 

to accept ,  without further ques tion , the 

suggestion that the Cree occupied that as 

far north as Churchil l ;  but I want to see 

some factual documentation of their existence 

farther north beyond that point . I mean , 

i t  sounds great but I would like to see some 

facts . 

Q .  Well ,  maybe Brenda 

Clark can help us . 

A .  Okay . 

Q .  On page 11  of her 

report she s ays that in 169 4 to 1714  that 

the Indians were the first to move in for 

spo_i ls left behind by Munck , upon entering 

a small hut that had been erected by the 

Danes in the mainland .  The Indians 

acci dentally set fi re to a keg of gunpowder 

and blew everyth ing ,  including themselves , 

to pieces . Later several other Indians 

crune to salvage the iron which �as. all  that 

survived -the explos ion- .  

A .  Where is  that 

exactly? Where did that happen?  

Q .  Didn ' t  Mr . Munck 
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go down --

1 14 7 .  E. Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman) 

A .  He said down the 

west coast , yes . I don ' t  recall where this 

supply depot of his was. 

Q. It ' s  just north 

of Churchill ,  as I understand it . Would you 

accept that? 

A. Wel l ,  I wish we 

could locate it a little more precisely. 

MR . GOLDEN: It ' s  

called Munck Haven .  It ' s  page 10 . 

THE WITNES S: Page 10 . 

MR . GOLDEN: Page 10 

of Clark ' s  article . 

MR .  HEINTZMAN: I 

cannot be anymore specific than that. 

MR . GOLDEN : I wish you 

20 
s would be because it ' s  mis leading . 
R 
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MR. HEINTZMAN: We have 

got to grapple with the materials available 

to us. 

MR . GOLDEN: I ' m  sorry , 

My Lord , it ' s  a misleading question. My 

friend has Miss Clark ' s  paper and he was 

reading from page 11. Page 10 indicates 

the location and the witness wants to know 

the location site of Miss Clark for that 
0 

30 7 statement . I th ink it is only fair to ask 
0 
3 
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114 8. E. Harp, er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

my friend to read the last paragraph on page 

10. 

BY MR. HEINTZMAN : 

Q. Do you know where 

Munck Haven and Churchill River area is? 

A. I know the Churchill  

Rive r are a ,  yes,  but I don ' t  know where Munck 

Haven is  specifically .  

Q. That ' s  apparently 

where Mr. Munck --

A .  Wel l ,  it will not 

show on that small  scale map. 

Q. We ll , if Dr. Burch 

is  correct that the Indians were over near the 

Chesterfield  Inlet area in 1690 to 171 4 , 

would you agree with me ? 

A. No. What is his 

source for that? This is stil l  not clear 

to me. I see In dians down here in northern 

Manitoba ,  but how do we get them up aroun d 

Chesterfield Inlet ,  aside from this gunpowder 

incident? 

Q. That ' s  what he says 

at page 8 of his article ; is that not correct? .  

THE COURT: We l l ,  I 

take it that is one of his hypothesis with 

whi ch the present witness is in disagreement. 

THE WITNESS: He keeps 
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- 1149 -

E .  Harp, er-ex 
(HEINTZMAN ) 

mentioning Churchill here. I would be glad if 

you could point that out to me. 

THE COURT: If you look 

at the first full paragraph in the left-hand 

column on page 8 of this Burch report you 

perhaps could get some precise idea of where 

Mr. Munck ' s  powder supply was --

MR. HEINTZM])...N: I thought 

there was some reference to it. 

THE WITNESS: He says over 

on the preceding page, page 7, that: 

II Jeremie presents an 

extremely accurate description 

of the mouth of the Churchill  

River, and also of musk-oxen, 

which were found north of 

the Churchill River. On 

the basis of this account 

one must assume either 

that 1) Jeremie and/or his 

associates personally had 

explored the coast for some 

distance beyond the 

Churchill mouth, or that 

2) their Cree contacts had 
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described the district to 

them in considerable 

detail. " 

E .  Harp, er-ex 
(HEINTZMAN) 

In either case it is significant that he says 

nothing at all about Eskimos residing in the 

area. 

"Jeremie ' s  only clear 

reference to Eskimos concerned 

those living along the shores 

of Hudson Strait. " 

Yes , he made that report 

and I guess it cropped up again in the journals 

of Knight, to the effect that certain Eskimo 

groups were coming into the Hudson Bay--

through Hudson Strait-- whether these people 

coming from Baffin Island or Ungave which isn ' t  

reported-- over here to the west side of the 

Bay for purposes of trade. Everybody who 

mentioned that, who knows anything about 

those waters up in here, is I think astounded 

by such a feat to think that kayaks could 

probably go whipping across those stretches 

of water. That is something if it happened. 

R 
I f-

BY MR. HEINT ZMAN : 
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Q. Well, he's concluded 

A. Even if you did 

island hopping it is still--
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115 1 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

Q .  Incredible ? 

A .  I t ' s  an 

unimaginab ly vigorous trip , yes . 

Q .  Well ,  looking at 

his conclusion so far as the French sources 

are at the bottom of page 8 at the right-hand 

corner he says : 

"The Fren ch sources , in sum ,  

are problematic .  Their import 

rests to a considerable extent 

on the interpretation of 

the terms ' Ikoviriniouch ' and 

' Hakouhirmiou ' .  I f  they are 

simply different renditions 

of a single word, and if they 

refer to Chipewyans rather 

than to Eskimos , then there 

is no suggestion in any of 

the French sources of a 

resident Eskimo population 

on the west coast of Hudson 

Bay . The only clear re feren ce 

to Eskimos locates them 

somewhere to the north of 

Chipewyan country . That 

view is plaus ible since al l 

of the writers concerned 

were familiar with Ekimos 
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1152 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

in Hudson Strai t and/or 

the Atlantic coas t ,  to 

whom they applied the 

speci fi c term ' Eskimo ' . 

I f  Eski�os had live d in 

the area o f  con cern here 

the French would have knCMn 

about them and would have 

referred to them as Eskimos 

and not as something else . "  

Do you accept that 

statement? 

A .  That is a lot of  

verbiage in  there that I do not accept 

eas ily at all .  I think they were just 

having a wonderful time playing with some 

C ideas here and trying to rationalize something 

20 5 out of  it and it doesn ' t  come off to me , 
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because it ' s  so  -- there is  s uch a paucity 

o f  good imperialical  facts . He is  toying 

with these  observations -- these  French 

bastardi zed renditions of  native words . 

convincing .  

Q .  Well , do I understand 

A .  It ' s  not too 

Q .  What you are saying 

is you accept his evidence that these  people 
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di d not see any Eskimos , but you don ' t  accept 
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were not? 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  I s  that correct? 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  Then on page 12 

of the arti cle at the top right-hand corner 

he says : 

" In my opinion , the historical 

sources provide no evidence 

whatsoever of an Eskimo 

occupation of the west coast 

of Hudson Bay during the 17th 

century . The information on 

at  least the area south of 

Eskimo Point is good 

enough to rna�e that 

interpretation firm for 

that area . Foxe studied 

the coas t closely in 16 31 , 

Kelsey traversed the area 

on foot in 16 89 , and the 

French probably sailed as 

far north as Seal River 

at least once between 1 6 9 4  

and 1713 .  The evidence is 

parti cularly good for the 
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1154. E. Harp, er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

mouth of the Churchill 

itself, which is visited 

by Munck in 1619 - 20, 

the Hudson Bay Company 

people in 1686 and 

1689 , the French between 

169 4 and 171 3 ,  and Stuart 

in 1715 and again in 1716. 

During all  of this time 

no Eskimos were seen. 

Why not ?  Because , I 

submit,  none were there. 

Eskimos may have been 

there earlier , and they 

were certainly there much 

later , but between 1619 

and 1716 , the west coast 

of Hudson Bay south of 

Eskimo Point was devoi d 

of Eskimo inhabitants. 

The only area of doubt 

is whether people from 

Hudson Strait were 

visiting Munck ' s  old 

site during the summer." 

Again , do I understand 

you accept his evidence , but you do not accept 

the conclusions that j ust because they did 
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1155 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

n ot see anybody that nobody was there ? 

A .  He seems to be 

a little farmer in the development of th at 

paragraph . I still do not find it  

perfectly sati s factory at all .  

Furthermore , he has 

not expanded himself all the way up the wes t 

coast of  the Bay .  He has moved up a short 

distance -- he ' s  talking about the stretch 

of  country as far as Eskimo Point that he 

identifies there and Seal River. Where is 

Se al River? 

Q .  Seal River is 

j ust  north of  Churchil l .  

A .  Oh yes . That ' s  

N right . 
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there . 

Q • It  ' s  right in 

A .  Okay . But you 

see ,  that ' s  not terribly far north , really . 

Q .  All right.  

THE COURT : Mr . Heintzman , 

I think before we finish this line of  

questioning we will have to take our mid-afternoon 

break . 

---Short Re cess 

---Upon Resuming after Recess 

THE COURT : Mr. Hein tzman? 
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1156. E. Harp, er-ex 
(Heintzman ) 

MR . HEINTZMAN : Thank you, 

My Lord. 

Q. Then in the 

archaeological part of this article -- do 

you have it, sir? 

A. Yes,  sir. 

Q .  Dr. Burch reviews 

the various sites that have been studied 

archaeologically -- and I am not going to 

quote all of those -- then he comes to page 

16 and give his interpretation. Perhaps we 

can read those together. 

" The locations of the 

maj or Thule sites in the 

Caribou-Eskimo area 

s urveyed or excavated 

through the end of the 

1976 field season are 

indicated in figure four. " 

That is the map that he has in the article. 

"The sites shown on the map 

are listed, along with 

reference data, in table 

two . The total number 

of known sites actually 

exceeds that listed by 

a considerable margin, 

but the sites are too 
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1157 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman ) 

numerous an d too close 

together - particularly 

in the Rankin Inlet are a 

- to permit complete 

ennumeration here . 

The number and density 

of  sites indicate that 

th ere once was a fairly 

sizable ( by Eskimo 

s tandards ) Thule population 

along the coast from Rankin 

Inlet to Roes We lcome Soun d .  

Th is population probab ly 

extended farther south , 

pos sib ly as far as 

Church il l ,  but the research 

required to con firm t.�at 

possibility had not been 

conducted by the end of 

the 1976  field season . 

Beyond that , present 

evidence suggests that 

the spre ad of Thule 

people into the interior 

was restricted to the 

Baker Lake - Lower Thelen 

River are a and that it  

was of limited scale 
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1 158. E. Harp, er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

even there. The 

archaeological evidence 

also establishes that 

the southern and western 

margins of Caribou-Eskimo 

cotmtry were completely 

dominated by people 

representing the 

Taltheilei, Chipewyan 

culture - tradition 

from as long ago as 

5 0 0  B.C .  to recently 

as early 20 th century . 

The attention then shifts 

to the sout.�ern interior ,  

for which the 

archaeological evidence 

is still sparse . The 

limited indications are 

that the human population 

was never very great in 

this area and that the 

late prehistoric --

early historic Chipewyan 

were once presen t ,  

followed by the Caribou­

Eskimos for a brief period 

of time. Anticipating 
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1159 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Hein tzrnan) 

a further publication 

of the res ult of my own 

historical research , I 

can state more spe ci fically 

that the Caribou-Eskimo 

occupation is 

archaeologically thin 

in the interior which 

does not even begin 

until the early 19 th 

century when the coastal 

population began to 

expand inlan d .  It was 

s igni fi cant for only 

about one hundre d 

years ( from 1 8 6 0  to 1 9 6 0 ) . 

The se arch for Caribou­

Eskimo origin obvious ly 

must focus i tself  on 

the Hudson Bay coast 

rather than on the 

interior . "  

Have I correctly read his 

con clus ions ? 

A .  Yes , you have . 

THE COURT : I appre ciate 

your des ire to get along quickly , but we 

mus t have some sense of  compass ion for the 
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1 16 0 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman ) 

reporter . You might slow your reading down . 

I t ' s very hard to get that down verbatim . 

MR .  HEINTZMAN : Yes , 

My Lord . I promised the reporter I would 

stay behind to make s iu-e she gets the portions 

that I have read down correctly . 

Q .  What Dr . Burch 

is con cerned about is inland living people ,  

whether north or south -- he says that inland 

living people have only been living in land 

relatively recent .  That ' s  h is con clus ions ; 

is i t  not? 

A. Yes .  Now , may 

I say something? 

Q .  You certainly may . 

A .  I suspected as 

far as he ' s  referring to the southerly 

portions of the Barren Grounds -- the portions 

shown in here to encompass Dubawnt ,  Yathkved , so fort� , 

which has been examine d by Gordon and Irving -­

I suspe cted that Burch is on the right track . 

However , I think he ' s  proceeding a little 

bit too rapidly , possib ly , when he 

if  he ' s  making any reference or including 

any reference here to the B aker Lake - Thelen 

country . He speaks of  th is as an archaeologically 

thin -- I would be a lot happier with a 

s tatement like that if we had more intensive 
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(Hein tzrnan ) 

-- the results of  more intensive archaeological 

work in that country . I think this point is 

borne out by the researches done a couple of 

surraners ago -- the trip -- the very rapid 

s urvey that Dr. Nash made through on behalf 

of the Polar Gas Pipeline. I f  you look at 

all those sites that blossomed up around the 

south end of Baker Lake and around Thirty 

Mile Lake to the south and also up the old 

valley of the Thelen , west of  Current Valley 

-- in other words , I suspect there are much 

more in that country in the way of 

archaeological remains than we may be aware 

of at the moment. I would not want to 

extrapolate too far with the limited data 

we have. 

Q. I appreciate what 

20 s you said in chief that there is no 
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archaeological basis for taking the Caribou­

Eskimo people back beyond Birket-Smith. We 

j us t  don ' t  have any evidence. Isn ' t  that 

in effect what you are saying? 

A .  There , again , 

this requires more field work. 

Q .  We don't have 

the eviden ce ?  

A. Well , yes , we 

30 7 don ' t  have published evidence. 
0 
3 
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1162 . E. Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman) 

Q. In fact , some of 

the Polar Gas material, which I looked at -­

that you were referring to this morning -­

many of those sites are , in fact, Paleo­

Indian sites? 

A. I do not know what 

would be many. I would have to review that . 

Q. I looked at them 

and there was at least two of them. We can 

look at it together , if you wish. There 

were Paleo -Indians -- Paleo-Eskimos ; isn ' t  

that correct? 

A. I will look at them 

with you if  you like. This covers the area 

arotmd the south west end of Baker Lak e ,  

plus this aerial survey that made up this 

valley to the west. That ' s  not -- I would 

want to see a continuation of that -- but 

there was an old former Pleistocene period 

channel of the Thelen River corning out of 

Schultz Lake to the west of the present 

contemporary channel. 

Q. When he finds 

cari bou Inuit evidence -- and I ' m looking 

at page 2 17 -- he says , "recent construction ". 

A .  Yes. 

Q . Then when we have 

another e xample on page 218 " .. . recent Caribou-Inuit 
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116 3 .  

occ-upation " .  

E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

A. Yes . However , you 

see , we don ' t  know really how far back some 

of these might go . We haven ' t  done any 

intensive work on these parti cular remains 

back in this sector of the cotmtry , to my 

knowledge . 

Q .  Page 2 19 ,  one of 

the sites , "Northern Plano components . . •  " ;  

is that correct? 

A • He s ays so . 

Q .  Page 2 2 0 , " . . . Paleo 

Indian components . • .  11 ; is that correct? 

A. He says so .  

Q .  So we don ' t  know 

N what this could al l lead to . Here ' s  another 
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one on page 2 2 2 , 11 • • •  Paleo-Indian site . . • " ;  

is that correct? 

location of that? 

A. Ye s .  Where is the 

Q .  It ' s  on Baker Lake? 

A .  Correct.  

Q .  This represents 

Indians uses of Baker Lak e ;  isn ' t  that corre ct? 

A .  Or the area around  

the ends of  Baker Lake , yes . It appears to. 

Those I suppose would correlate with the Paleo -

Indian sites that I found up at the eas tern end 
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116 4 .  
E ,  Harp , cr�ex 
( Heintzman) 

of Sch ultz Lake -- way up on a high raised 

beach level . I th ink it' s part o f  that 

drainage system coming down toward the lake, yes. 

Q .  Or the Paleo-Indian 

s i tes you found in Aberdeen ; isn ' t that 

correct? 

A .  Well,  in the final 

analysis I think we have to relate all of these ,  

yes . 

Q .  I f  the Indians are 

at Aberdeen Lake at a particular peri od we 

can expect them to be in Baker Lake and then 

the other places where the caribou crossed 

the Thelon River valley ; is that not correct? 

A .  I suppose so , yes . 

This j us t  s imply falls into line with the 

rather firmly established fact that some 

Paleo-Indian express ion was the very first 

representative -- very first human occupation 

of the B arren Grounds in that region . 

Q .  In all of these 

s uccessive occupations by the Indian people . 

from the tree line right up through Aberdeen 

- Baker Lake is a manifestation of their 

following the Beverly Herd; i sn ' t  that 

correct? 

A .  I suppose so . I 

don ' t  really mow that . It seems reasonable .  
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Q .  The thrust of what 

all of these authors that I have cited to you 

R is, is it not ,  that insofar as interior 
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there were Inuit people in the interior , 

they were there on a periodic basis to hunt 

or do something like that;  isn ' t that correct? 

MR. GOLDEN : That is a 

big statement. 

THE WITNESS :  I have to 

s ay conversely .  

MR . HEINT2JMAN :  Can 

you answer that question ? 

MR. GOLDEN : I 'm sorry , 

c there are two questions there . I know he ' s  

20 s willing to answer but it ' s  still two questions . 
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THE WITNESS: I would 

be h appier if you broke it down a bit . 

BY MR .  HEINTZMAN : 

Q .  Isn ' t  the thrust 

of what all of these authors are s aying that 

the occupation on a year round basis by Inuit 

people in the B aker Lake - Lower Thelen River 

are a occurred only after the 170 0 s ?  

A .  You are making 

spe cific re ference to the so-called Caribou-Eskimo? 
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1 166. E. Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman) 

Q .  I ' m  talking about 

people who lived in land all year romid and 

live off the caribou as their susten an ce  -­

the pivotal point of their exi stence ;  isn ' t  

that what they are saying? 

A. Wel l ,  you see , that 

evolves on a point I do not fully accept 

myself. 

Q. Can I jus t  get 

this much : i sn ' t  that what all of these authors 

are saying? 

A. I suppose that ' s  

decent enough , yes. 

Q. Are you aware of 

any writer to the contrary? 

A. No. Maybe I will 

have to sit down and write it myself some day. 

Q. Now , I have shewn 

you many articles but I have not shown you 

Dr. McGhee ' s  article. Basically he arrives 

at the same conclusion in his article 

entitled A Current Interpretation of Central 

Canadian Arctic Pre-His tory , which you are 

familiar with? 

A. Yes. 

Q. He goes through 

all o f  the cultures , right up to the present 

date. Op page 179 he say s :  
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116 7 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman ) 

" Rather surpri singly , the 

most simple and primitive 

of the central Eskimo groups , 

the Caribou-Eskimos of  the 

interior Barren Grounds 

west of Hudson Bay ,  may 

have been a product of 

the mos t recent cultural 

trans formation . 

Archaeological surveys of  

the Caribou-Eskimo area have 

failed to produce evidence 

of any prehistori c - Eskimo 

occupation . "  

He then refers to you 

and Dr . Irving . 

A .  I do not unders tan d  

that las t  sentence at all .  I cannot believe 

my friend McGhee turned that out .  It doesn ' t  

s ay anything .  

.Q .  You mean i t ' s  

another negative? I s  that what you are 

s aying? 

A. No , it j ust  looks 

as i f  some huge typographical error must have been 

made here or a clause left out or something.  

"Archaeological surveys 

of  the Caribou-Eskimo are a 



M-13 
V 

E 
R 
B 
A 

T 
I 

M 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 

. I 
N 
G 

s 

E 
10 R 

V 
I 
C 
E 
s 

R 

E 

15 J 
0 
H 
A 

N 
s 

s 

0 
N 

C 

20 
s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 

w 
A 

25 N 
T 
A 

R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
I 

0 
30 7 

0 
3 

1 16 8 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

have fai led to produce 

evidence of  any prehis tori c 

Eskimo occupation. " 

And then he cites Dr. 

Irving and me. What about these other Eskimo 

manifestations ? We ' ve a lready pointed out 

:the s light evidence o f  a ·p:;:·e-Dorset occupation 

back in there, the Thule sites running back 

into the country . 

Q .  I think what we are 

talking about is occupation in terms of  year 

round occupation? 

A .  It ' s  -not clear to me 

at all .  You see , th is is the basic point that 

I cannot quite accept -- even from my ole friend,  

whom I respect so much , Birket-Smith -- I 

think he ' s  overdrawn the case of the Caribou­

Eskimo . I don ' t  -- I find i t  very diffi cult 

to believe that under an aboriginal system 

economic sys tem that the Caribou-Eskimos 

would live back in that country year round 

for very long and do it success fully. 

Maybe I am muddying the point here . I ' m  not 

s ure . 

Q .  Let' s  read the arti cle. 

I ' m  not sure how to respond to your statements . 

"This , together with the 

18th century Chipewyan 
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1169 . E. Harp , er-ex 
(Heintzman) 

occupation of this region , 

documented by the travels of  

Samuel Hearne , sugges t that 

Caribou-Eskimo culture 

resulted from a movement 

into the interior from 

the Hudson Bay coast at 

some time after the Chipewyan 

were decimated by small pox 

aro\ttld A . D .  178 0 .  

The rapid development o f  

the distinctively primitive 

Caribou-Eskimo culture may 

stand as an example of the 

type of cultural development 

which appears to be typical 

of central Aictic prehistory . 

Time and again this area 

has been occupied from 

without, twice from Alaska 

with the Arctic Small Tool 

and Thule migrations , and 

several times by pre-Dorset 

and Dorset peoples expanding 

from the core area and Foxe 

Basin and northern Hudson 

Bay. In each cas e ,  a 

population with a distinctive 
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1170 . E .  Harp, er-ex 
( Heintzman ) 

culture spread along the 

central Arct'ic =cast,  or 

into the High Arctic Isl ands ,  

o r  in one case into the 

interior of  the Barren Grounds , 

occupied these are as for a 

few centuries , and then 

disappe ared. These 

archaeological disappe arances 

probably reflect the biological 

e xtinction of local populations 

due to various factors of 

historical chance - a series 

of poor hunting seasons , 

an incorrect pre diction of 

spring break-up, forest 

fires  which changed the 

patterns o f  caribou migration , 

or any number of other 

factors. 

The central Arctic may be 

a region which is truly 

marginal to human 

e xistence in the pre­

industrial state. Even 

a people as closely adapted 

to Arctic conditions as 

were the Eskimo , found i t  
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1171.  E .  Harp , er-ex 
( He in tzman) 

impossible to inhabit this area 

indefinitely. Despite the 

ingenuity , the cultural 

flexibilty , and the capacity 

for enduran ce which is 

demons trated by the various 

prehistoric occupants o f  the 

central AJ:i'ctiq eventual 

extinction at the hands 

o f  historical chance may 

have been the inevitable 

fate of any people attempting 

to settle this region. " 

Now , that is what Dr. 

McGhee has written ? 

A .  Those are pretty 

c good paragraphs . 

20 s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
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25 N 
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he ' s  s aying 

Q .  And basically 

A .  Yes . 

Q .  that people 

have not inhabited this area on a continual 

basis until the Caribou-Eskimo did or have? 

A .  Yes . I think we 

have to lend quite a bit of credence to 

that. 

Q. And prior to that 

30 7 the area had been shared back and forth through 
0 
3 
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1172. E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Heintzman) 

the centures by the Chipewyans and their 

ancestors and the Inuit and their ancestors ; 

isn ' t  that correct? 

A. Yes .  I would- ins is t  

-- I think on our having to view the Indian 

sequence i t ' s  in pretty much the same manner . 

Q. Yes . 

A .  And it ' s  emphasi zing 

the sporadic nature of it and seasonal nature 

of i t .  

Q .  Yes. And that 

the occupation by these inland dweller ·Inuit 

occurred sometime after 1700 s?  That ' s  what 

all of these people say -- all of thes e experts 

h ave indicated? 

A.  On the basis of 

present archaeo:logical information . 

Q. And his torical? 

A.  Yes . I like the 

archaeological better. 

you, s ir. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

MR. HEINTZMA..�: Tha11k 

THE COURT : Mr. Graham? 

BY MR . GRAHAM: 

Q. Dr . Harp , you were 

able to refer in your Affidavit, sir ,  to 

caribou crossings and some of the s ites that 
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1173 .  

you identify at caribou cross ings ? 

A .  Yes . 

E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Graham) 

Q. Were you able to ascertain 

with precision how close these sites were to 

these cross ings ? 

A .  In s ome cases -­

well , in nearly all cases I have attempted to 

make some kind of measurement or j udgment .  

Many o f  them I have found were directly at 

the crossings. I don ' t  know if I can find 

this quickly or not , but I bro'ught in a few 

s lides -- I think we agreed they were not 

going to be vital or necess ary 

can lay my hands on it quickly 

if I 

that ' s  

a look at what some of that -- a lot of 

that terrain appears like -- it ' s  studded 

with ponds and lakes. 

Q .  Is that a Plano -

Indian in the foreground? 

A. It might well be. 

I t  is a little obscure there. 

Q. This is taken from 

an aircraft? 

A. Yes. What I am 

trying to find is that I have a s lide here 

that shows a series o f  caribou tracks , 

ftmneling down -- as the animals move across 

the country they -- of course , the spring ' s  
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1174. E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Graham) 

migration are very frequently in big herds 

or  flocks , s ometimes closely packed ,  and in 

the fall they tend to trickle back in small 

groups -- the cows with the does . When we 

come to a river crossing you can see their 

tracks as they tend to beat through the 

vegetation and follow one another in single 

file an d very quickly beat a barren track 

through the vecy tender tundra vege tation. 

Vegetation is very slow to reesta blish itself 

in these paths , especially if they are used 

year after year. But , you can see these 

path s ,  and funneling together at the crossings. 

That ' s  what I was looking for. When you 

come to places like that very frequently in 

the vicinity you will find these stone 

constructions that are called Inuksuks 

which means looks like a man or something of 

that sort -- these are an aid in funneling 

the herd down into a hunter ' s  ambush , as you 

probably know. Then off to the side of these 

places you may find hunting blinds , you may . 

find at farther distance s  house rings o f  

one sort o r  another showing the camps were 

nearby or , in fact, these camps may be a mile 

or two more away from the crossing place . 

But, there is a tendency to establish the 

camp at or near a crossing place. 
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- 1175 -

E. Harp, er-ex 
(GRAH.Ai'-1) 

Q. But these crossing 

places or these camps that you were speaking 

of  were all camps that are in prehistoric 

times , as I understand your earlier evidence? 

A. Yes, but some of 

them were also recent caribou people camps. 

sense? 

Q .  Recent in what 

A. Historic. 

Q .  What year? 

A. I couldn ' t  say 

what year. You could look at a ring and 

you could make a crude separate of modern 

from perhistoric j ust by j udging- - comparing 

the contents in terms of artifacts. If this 

has nothing but chip stone artifacts in it 

then we can assume it ' s  prehistoric. But, 

if this one has a fragment of antler that ' s  

been cut with a steel saw--

Q. Then you know that ' s  

A. It  may have been 

the current year. 

Q .  The last one 

hundred years or something like that? 

A. The prehistoric 

post contact period or something like that. 
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1176 . E.  Harp , er-ex 
( Graham) 

Q.  How do you know a bout 

the prehistoric ones ? How do you know how 

c lose they would be -- what were water crossings ? 

Are you going on the assumption that because 

there is a water crossing there today and 

those groups of settlements are there that 

that ' s  where a water crossing was in the year 

1200 or whatever? 

A. Yes . We can 

extrapolate back in time carefully , to some 

extent -- we cannot go back forever and 

ever -- I discussed that point briefly in 

the report and tried to suggest ,  as I recal l ,  

that once the remnants of glacier had finally 

retreated from that region , whereupon there 

was a marine trangres sion from Hudson Bay , 

because the land was s till heavily depressed 

from the weight of glacial ice, and once the 

ice melted back the Hudson Bay flooded in 

covering a vast area west of the Bay and ,  

then , you gradually -- the land began to 

spring backwards into its normal pasture 

this is an event that is still going on -­

and that is responsible for the creation of 

these various beach lines along. Anyhow , 

in attempting to analyze the location of 

these sites vis-a-vis the various beach lines , 

as I did and hoping that I might be a ble to 



-22 

E 
R 
B 
A 
T 
I 

M 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 
I 
N 
G 

s 

E 
10 R 

V 
I 
C 
E 
s 

R 

E 

15 J 
0 
H 
A 
N 
s 

s 
0 
N 

C 

20 s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 

A 

0 
25 N 

T 
A 
R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
I 

0 
30 7 

0 
3 

1177 .  E . Harp , er-ex 
( Graham) 

come up with some notion and relative 

chronology -- a lthough it is a touchy business 

-- I arrived somewhere at the conclusion that 

the valley system , as we see i t  today, had 

not . changed dras tically in the las t  several 

thousand years. I could not be anymore precise 

than that. There seem to have been quite 

rapid isostati c  rebounds in the beginning, 

followed by gradual, s lowing rate of rebound . 

Q. In that process of 

analys is --

A. So, what I am saying 

is that it seems as though these very same 

crossings would have been in significant 

use for quite a long time back into the past. 

Q. And that sane 

reasoning process would apply equally to 

the Indian camps that you spoke about, as 

to the Inuit camp s ?  

A. I think s o ,  yes. 

Q .  When you said there 

was s ort of  -- I believe you used the term 

heavily concentration of  sites near one of 

the crossings at Aberdeen Lake -- what sort 

o f  numbers are you talking about there? What 

number of camps s urromid one cros sing? 

A. I would have to 

refer back to my field of  j ourneys to give you 
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1178. E. Harp , er-ex 
( Graham) 

an exact answer on that.  I made that judgment 

thi s was the stretch of narrows immediately 

to the west of Aberdeen Lake and i t ' s indicated 

on the map that ' s  reproduced in the Affidavit. 

Q. As I unders tand it 

A. As I recall , I 

only delineated there two specific sites , 

but these were encompassed by an area that 

there were several hundred yards . long, at 

least up and down the back,  that went from 

the back of the river back in to the country 

about one hundred feet or more. In other 

words , a very substantial area , which at one 

time or another , had been spotted 

irregularly with encampments. This yielded 

a very substantial surface collection. This 

was perhaps the richest area -- it is a small 

area that I encountered on the whole survey 

and that ' s  why I emphasized it in my report , 

because this is the thing Dr . Wright picked 

up as a possibility for future work , as I 

have indeed s aid i t  was. I thought it would 

be . I t  turned out to be a well worthwhile 

effort. 

Q. Is your theory 

that these people who lived there killed the 

cari bou as they crossed at those. particular 
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1 179 . 

crossings that you ' ve identified? 

E. Harp , er-ex 
( Graham) 

A. Yes. So far as we 

know , back in the old days, virtually a good 

bit of this hunting, if not most of it, · was 

done from kayaks in the water by spearing, 

but in some places there are -- I don ' t  recall 

having seen any in the Thelen country but I 

have over in the Coronation Gulf and elsewhere -­

I have seen rock hunting blinds actually 

s lightly semi-subterrain in which the hunters 

built up a wall to conceal themselves and 

crouch down behind these things right alongside 

a customary path movement for caribou as they 

moved into one of these narrows. There caribou 

can be picked off here with bows and arrows, 

of course ,  with aboriginal weapons , mind you. 

Q. �.nd does the evidence 

A .  With the bow and 

arrow and spear you have to take advantage 

of every trick you know. One of the best 

ways to hunt caribou is to get him swinming , 

even though they are strong.  They are easier 

to pick off there than they are on dry land 

by far. 

Q. Does the evidence 

show that the caribou would return to the 

same crossings where they had one time been 

hunted in previous years ? 
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1 1 8 0 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
(Graham) 

A.  It  doesn ' t  seem to 

affe ct them at all , to my knowledge. If you 

want to check with some of the real experts 

back here on this matter. I would say in 

this regard they are fairly stupid. 

Q .  Does the evidence 

show that sometill'es they would cross somewhere 

e lse where there was no settlement and 

A. I attended only 

to see the mos t evident cross ing places as 

we would spot them from the pathways. 

Q .  So , you don ' t  know 

whether these camps then moved from whe re there 

had been a crossing if  the cari bou moved 

across somewhere else and the camp followed 

to·· be at - that new cros-sing v1h'en··,, .i1:- occ'urred? 

A .  Wel l ,  I think more 

often than not the cari bou would cross one 

point in a n orthward movement than in late 

spring. They would wander up around up 

here during the summer and then cross over 

at a different place , coming back southward 

in the late ' summer . 

Q .  The camps would 

have to move to be at that new place , I take 

it? 

A. Yes ,  because these 



M-26 
V 
E 
R 
B 
A 
T 
I 

M 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 

. I 
N 
G 

s 
E 

J O  R 
V 
I 
C 
E 
s 

R 

E 

15 J 
0 
H 
A 
N 
s 
s 
0 
N 

C 

20 
s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 
w 
A 

0 
25 N 

T 
A 
R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
I 

0 
30 7 

0 
3 

1181. E. Harp , er-ex 
{ Graham) 

p laces were known as -- remember, a hunter 

knows his animal in the most  scientific way , 

through having observed his habits and movements 

all  hi s life . The great virtue of these 

p laces is that it adds -- ejects a great 

component of predictability into the hunt 

if you can feel assured that your game --

your food i s  going to come trampling a cross 

out of nowhere the third week in August and 

cros s the river at this point,  how much easier 

i t  makes your food quest during that particular 

time. I have a couple of s lides --

Q .  I think we will 

have difficulty getting your s lides into 

evidence . 

A. Wel l ,  here is a 

small herd. 

Q. No point in going 

into i t. 

A. Here is a small 

group of some twenty , twenty-five animals 

swimming back across those Thelen Narrows. 

Q. How c lose are you? 

A.  I was up in behind 

the gravel bank at the top of the river. I f  

I had a rifle and I was hungry I could have 

picked off half of that herd. 

Q .  Do you know how close 
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1182 . 

you were to them? 

E. Harp , er-ex 
( Graham) 

A. I was within one 

hundred feet of these animals. 

Q. One hundred feet? 

A. With even hardly 

tryin g .  

Q .  One hundred feet. 

Did they j ust come across the river? 

A. Yes. I was out 

of sight. 

Q .  And they went 

right past you? 

A. Yes. They angled 

past me up the bank. They did not see me. 

Of course , the rifle the repeating rifle obviously 

has brought great differen ces in hunting. 

Q. You don ' t  

A. It has improyed 

in the ease of hunting • 

Q .  You don ' t  need to 

be an archaeologist to know that, I take it? 

A. No. 

Q. I take it you saw 

these various camps of different cul tures in 

different places. Would it be fair to 

say that where you have these different 

people , sharing the same place over a period 

of time, that in the absence of -the hard 



M-28 
V 

E 

R 
B 
A 

T 
I 

M 

R 
5 E 

p 
0 
R 
T 

. I 
N 
G 

s 
E 

IO  R 
V 
I 
C 
E 

s 

R 

E 

15 J 
0 
H 
A 

N 

s 
s 
0 
N 

C 

20 s 

R 

0 
T 
T 
A 

w 

A 

25 N 
T 
A 

R 
I 
0 

5 
2 
I 

0 
30 7 

0 
3 

1 183 . E .  Harp , er-ex 
{Graham) 

archaeologi cal evidence ,  which you ' ve been 

ab le to come up wi th , you wouldn ' t  be able 

to say defini tely which people were there 

at any given period of time , unless you 

had the evidence and say ,  yes , these people 

were here? 

A .  Are you asking me 

if I could de finite ly estab lish some kind of 

a culture sequence of  occupation at a given 

site , assuming they are not there at the 

same time ? 

Q .  Yes r not all there 

at the same time and there are di fferent 

ones here , here and there? 

A .  Yes , this could be 

done sometimes with a fai r  degree of  certainty 

through the process of comparison , as I have 

tried to do by lumping together these complexes .  

Say we have half a dozen di fferent mani festations 

around this great hunting area a�d they clearly 

come from dif ferent traditions -- the Indian , 

Eskimo , so forth , so on -- by. this process 

of  comparative extrapolation , then one can 

perhaps separate these out at some relative 

chronology -- relative sequen ce . 

Q .  And you have told 

us . today , basically as definite as anyone 

can , on the basis of the evidence available 
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1 1 8 4 .  E .  Harp , er-ex 
( Graham} 

today , about this particular area? 

A. Well ,  I guess I 

have . I have tried to be as certain as I 

could , when possible . You are aware obviously 

there are many uncertainties in this busines s 

of archaeological research , but we do the 

best we can . 

very much. 

MR .  GRAHAM : Thank you 

THE COURT : Mr . Chambers ? 

MR. CHAMBERS : No 

cross-examination , My Lord. 

THE COURT : Mr . Golden? 

MR. GOLDEN : My Lord, if 

I may j ust deal with the geography briefly . 

RE-EXAMINATION 

BY MR .  GOLDEN : 

Q .  I have frantically 

been searching through your paper to try to 

find the point which you determine that there 

is Paleo -Indian representation in the west 

Aberdeen site .  Perhaps , with the risk of 

having to be corrected , can you tell me 

whether or not you are able to ascertain 

Paleo-Indian represen tation at the west 

Aberdeen site? 

A .  Wait a minute. I 

have to get my sites s traight . Can you cite 
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1 1 85 . E. Harp , re-ex 
(Golden) 

Can you help me out with a 

Q .  That was the one 

left off and I think you have it as number 

AL9. I may be wrong. 

A .  Twenty years ago 

I could have rippled this off to you verbatim. 

Q .  You are not doing 

very b adly today. I f  you can j ust review 

quickly for me the point at which you found 

R Paleo-Indian site · -- and I think it is the 
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point at which Dr. Wright engaged in his 

work? 

A. Yes. 

Q .  The location isn ' t  

as nearly as important as what happened 

there. Do you recall?  

A. All right. I am 

corning up with it. Here we are . We are talking 

about complex B. Which particular site area 

were you interested in? 

Q. I was interested in 

the one in which Dr. Wright also worked. 

A. In my collection 

apparently -- wait a minute now. I do not see 

that listed under complex B .  

Q. Designated AL7 ? 

THE COURT :. C has AL 7. 
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Complex D has AL9 . 

1186 . E. Harp , re-ex 
( Golden) 

Neither of those are B .  

THE WITNESS :  No. 

BY MR. GOLDEN : 

Q .  I am interested in 

the one in whi ch you indicated a repre sentation 

of Paleo-Indian. I understand there was more 

than one . I am interested in that one at 

Aberdeen? 

A .  Let me get that. 

Let me get the particular site here and see 

if it tells us anything. No. I apparently , 

I have to say apparently because at the 

moment I simp ly don ' t  remember anymore and 

I am trying to get it  out of here . -- I 

apparently did not find anything in the 

s urface colle ctions from that s ite that 

related back to the earlies t  of the 

occupation of Paleo�Indian. � don ' t  see 

any particular reference to it. It should 

have been so-cal led complex B but that 

site is included in complex C. 

Q. Is it fair to 

say that -- is it fair that there are a 

number of s ites that you ' ve de scribed to 

us in your e arlier evidence which had been 

represented in them this Paleo -Indian 

representation? 

A. I s uppose it ' s  fair 
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1187. E. Harp , re-ex 
( Go·l'tien) 

to say that some o f  them might have something 

of that sort , yes . Might . But,  these indications 

s imply didn ' t  show in the surface collection , 

nor in the limited tes t excavation that we 

made from time to time. 

Q. Well , my friend , 

Mr . Heintzman , in his questions to you , 

referred to Paleo -Indian as though there was 

some significance in terms of the word Indian. 

Can you , again , -- you put I think in chief 

but I would like you to do it again put 

E a time limit on Paleo-Indians ? 
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MR. HEINTZMAN: My Lord , 

if this is the way the re-examination is going 

to go , we will  be here a long time. The 

witness descri bed what Paleo -Indian was. I t ' s  

there on the transcript. We dealt with it 

there . With all due respect to my friend , 

that ' s  not proper re-examination. 

MR. GOLDEN : I t ' s  

pre liminary to another ques tion. 

THE COURT : Yes. Put 

the question in context , by all means. 

THE WITNESS : Say again , 

pleas e ?  

BY MR. GOLDEN : 

Q .  Can you put a time 

frame on the Paleo -Indians? 
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1 18 8 .  E .  Harp , re-ex 
( Golden) 

A .  Generally , the Paleo ­

Indian occupation? 

Q .  Yes . 

A .  This is the earli est 

-- the firs t human penetration in this country , 

according to the evidenc e ,  and given the 

dates obtained by Wright at Beverly Lake and 

also at the Grant Lake site , Migod site done 

later by Gordon , what we do have is something 

back around so·o o B . c . as an approximate 

beginning date . 

Q . Can you give us a 

clos ing date or a date beyond whi ch you would 

not find Paleo-Indians in that site ?  

A .  Well , you are asking 

now for us to establish a boundary line between 

cultural stages -- a boundary line somewhere 

in the evolution of the culture of the region . 

That ' s  tough to do . I t ' s  very difficult to do . 

If you want me to make 

that out of this early 

you see , we believe 

earliest Paleo-Indian 

utilization of the country , there later developed 

the so-called Archaic Stage of Indian culture 

which was related more to forest adaptation . 

All of this , of course , traces back to the 

change in post Plefatocene peri od .  Just exactly 

where one begins and cuts off is tough to 

establish definitely . I f  I were to pick out 
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1189 . E. Harp , re-ex 
(Golden) 

one precise type of artifact perhaps to try 

to use that as an index one might ta�e the 

particular point -- projected point that 

we ' ve identified and relate it back to 

the Agate Basin down in Wyoming -- because 

this is one of the hallmarks of Paleo-Indian 

culture wherever you find it.  It is a series 

of very specifically designed , styled projected 

points . 

Q .  I am not allowed to 

tell you why I am asking but I wanted to get 

A. Well, if we said 

these projected points appeared up to 4 0 0 0  B . C .  

and then , boom , we didn ' t  find them anymore, 

then , I would be inclined to say maybe the 

Archaic started around that time . Bring it 

up a little closer, maybe up around 3000 . 

Q .  Taltheilei complex 

the Taltheilei evidence that ' s  been referred to in 

Dr.  Wright ' s  paper and, indeed, you mention 

it in your work as well, _ is 

A .  I am not competent 

to speak about that in much detail at all . 

This is Bill Nob le ' s  -- this is considered 

to be a late stage of the Archaic- Indian 

exploitation which all of a sudden we can 

identify and link up with contemporary Chipewyan 
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1190. E. Harp re-ex 
(Golden ) 

who are the Athabas can species of the Western 

Barrens . 

Q .  We have Exhibit P-10 , 

which is a much larger scale map of the area 

we ' ve been dis cussing. To identify the sites 

that my friend Mr. Heintzman referred to, we 

have the two sites on Grant Lake -- if we 

can j ust  find Grant Lake. 

A. Grant Lake is 

corning up due north here . 

Q. The Dubawnt is 

A. Here ' s  Grant Lake. 

Q. Grant La�e is a tiny 

lake north of the Dubawnt Lake. There were 

two sites on that lake? 

A. Yes. The firs t 

one discovered by Arthur Moffatt and re-visited 

by Dr. Irving in later years. It occurred 

actually on the northeas tern shore of the lake , 

right at the point where the two streams cut 

down out of the interior and Wright went in 

there to re-examine that site more intensively. 

As I recall , it was he who discovered the other 

sites several miles farther north at the 

outlet at the Migod site. 

Q .  Your Taltheilei findings 

were where in physical location? 

A. Well , these crop up in 
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119 1 .  

the Aberdeen site right in here . 

E .  Harp , re-ex 
( Golden )  

Q .  We  are looking at  

the west end of  Aberdeen? 

A.  I have menti oned 

this in the report that Wright did more -­

did more evidence concerning it .  

Q .  But that ' s  where 

they show up? 

A. Yes , more to the 

western end . 

Q .  Can you tell  us , 

p leas e ,  to the best of your knowledge --

I know that the boreal forests is an indefinite 

-- the tree line is indefinite can you 

tell us where in relation to those sites the 

tree line can be  found -- where these trees 

c begin to grCM? 
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A.  Well , as you have 

suggested , the notion of the tree line is  

an extremely vague thing . When you look at 

a physiographic or vegetative map of Canada 

you can define rather eas i ly the deep boreal 

f orest ,  which is a dense band of coniferous 

trees and several other spe cies , and to the 

north , as this reaches the limits of optimum 

summertime temperatures normally held to be 

-- the July isotherm would be ten degrees 

centigrade -- this is held to mark approximate ly 
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1192. E. Harp , re-ex 
( Go lden) 

the northern most limi t of trees. Now , I 

can turn this into a big lecture --

Q .  No, please ,  just 

try to delineate --

A. But I guess the 

point I should make is that the trees go from 

a deep dense forest, across a space of maybe 

a couple of hundred miles in some places , 

slowly fading out as they come closer to 

the limi ts o f  growth and ultimately disappear 

into the tundra. But , you have a transition 

zone here which , as I say , is maybe from ten 

to one hundred or more miles wide . This is 

the country that ' s  rich habitation country 

for human beings. 

Q. Who inhabits that 

country within the tree line , in the areas 

surrounding what you call the Barrens? 

A. Well , I suppose 

one would have to say that this is primari ly 

country inhabited by the Boreal Forest Indian 

group , but also a country to which the 

Eskimos come in time past to collect wood . 

Here , essentially along through this transition 

country , is where the contacts between these 

people had occurred , whether peaceful or --

Q. Yes . 

A .  It is a zone of tension. 
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119 3 .  E .  Harp , re-ex 
( Golden) 

I t  has a term -- an ecological _.term -- it ' s  

called ecotone , and it means essentially a 

zone of tension wherein you have a meeting 

of characteristics of the merging of these .  

Q .  My friend referred 

you to Dr.  Wright ' s  paper. He has been kind 

enough to lend it me. I would like to read 

to you j us t  examine the las t paragraph on 

page 7 8 ,  7 9 ,  through to the end of the sequence 

and then just tell us what Dr . Wright is 

saying about his Aberdeen Lake finds or his 

Aberdeen Lake examination of your finds. 

A. Wright pretty clearly 

was able to distinguish these stages that 

I hypothesized earlier , beginning with the 

Paleo-Indian expression and followed by the 

Archaic,  and somewhere in this same period , 

whether it is coeval or sequential, -- we 

are not exactly certain -- there is a slight 

suggestion of pre-Dorset Eskimo occupation 

merging into the later Archaic which can 

be given a name , Taltheilei or whatever , 

and that ultimately becoming modern contemporary 

identifiable Indian groups and , then , the 

Eskimos continue , and then the same thing . 

However , he did not find all of these. 

But , he introduces a new name in here 

because he has a little theory of his own , 
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1194. E. Harp, re-ex 
( Golden} 

as most of us do , I guess -- he identifies 

a phase or stage which he calls the Shield 

Archai c .  He has certain identifying 

characteris tics for this . But, the point 

is, using that word Shield to him means this 

correlates geographically with the Shield 

country surrounding Hudson Bay . He views 

this particular country as a sort of biome . 

Q. Is he talking about 

the same thing as we talked about when we 

talk about the Barren or Shield sometimes? 

A .  Well, certainly 

in some places these would co-incide as 

physical express ions, yes . He ' s  talking 

about Shield Archaic and that's largely 

barren grounds in this part of northeastern 

Canada, central Canada and it ' s partially 

forested in some areas . 

Q. What I should like 

you to do --

A. I don ' t  know . 

Q .  Dr. Harp, what I 

would like to do is, either dealing with it 

on the basis of what Dr . Wright had written, 

or on the basis of your own knowledge of 

all the research -- that is  your site, 

the west Aberdeen, the Grant Lake site, 

even S amuel Hearne ' s  voyage, if you like 
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1195. E. Harp , re-ex 
( Golden) 

and what I would like you to do is indicate 

the likely areas of occupation at  any time , 

whether seasonal or otherwise -- I gather 

it has all been seasonal -- of the Chipewyan 

graphically ,  hopefully using this map , . 

if you can. 

·A .  I cannot for a 

moment stand here as an expert on Chipewyan 

culture , please. I have , insofar as I have 

known of them and a bout them , equate them 

with the forest country and the transitional 

forest country which lies south and west o f  

the tundra . In my own mind I consider the 

Northern Arcti.c Tundra ,  lying above the tree 

line , to be essentially Eskimo country . In 

my opinion , it has been the Indian peoples 

in the past who , I would regard , as the 

intruders of that country. ��ybe I am 

overstating that case . Maybe one to be 

fairer ought to �dinit that both of these 

peoples have from time to time penetrated 

this transitional zone so as to exploit 

it for their own cultural purposes. 

Q .  Yes .  

A. In the final 

analysis,  both of them have not been a ble 

to maintain successfully , for any significant 

length of time , permanent occupation in this 
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1196. E. Harp , re-ex 
( Go lden) 

country. They have each had to retreat 

or wi thdraw , whether southward or northward , 

out to the coast ,  to more congenial 

environments , which they knew how to cope 

with and exploit with a greater degree of 

success. 

Q. We seem to be 

having a ·1ittle prob lem with geography , 

and that ' s  what I am trying to deal with 

in relation to the writings that have been 

read to you. There were considerable 

writings read to you. I should like to 

dea l with the geographical aspects of 

t.,ose writings. 

THE COURT : We are 

at a point where I have a fee ling that 

probab ly your examination was going to go 

on some time. The questions and answers 

are lengthy. Selfishly , I am quite prepared ­

to sit and to see Dr. Harp finish his 

testimony today , but if it is going to be 

very long , I wonder if that ' s  fair to 

anyone. The longer the day gets the harder 

it is to cope and understand. 

MR. GOLDEN : May I 

ask the witnes s what his wish is in respect 

of that? He may have some travelling plans 

which I am not aware of . 
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1197. E. Harp, re-ex 
( Golden ) 

THE WITNESS :  I have not 

made firm p lans to return. I am amenable to 

whatever is convenient to the court, My Lord. 

I f  this involves my re-appearing again in 

the morning for a time, that wouldn ' t  

discomfort me in any way. I will simply 

leave in the afternoon. 

THE COURT : In that 

cas e ,  perhaps we should recess now unti l  

9 : 30 in the morning. 

MR . GOLDEN : Thank you , 

My Lord. 

THE COURT : I think 

probably I should instruct you , Dr. Harp, 

at this stage of you r examination that you 

ought not to discuss your evidence with 

anyone at all. You will certainly not 

be approached by any of the lawyers who 

got you here , but you should not discuss 

what you have s aid with anyone at all . 

I understand , My Lord . 

THE WITNESS :  Very well , 

---COURT ADJOURNED TO 
May 31s t ,  1979, at 
9 : 30  a. rn.  



A 
CAN 7 

1 . 01 

VOL I X  

DATE DUE 

HAMLET OF BAKER LAKE 

ET AL & MIN ISTER OF !AND 

ET AL 

C IAND Fed Ham 1979 v . 9  

In  the Federal Court o f  Ca 
00064-2 2 3 9  02- 0011720 


	BLvIANDv9.pdf
	BLvIANDv9p2.pdf
	BLvIANDv9p3.pdf
	BLvIANDv9p4.pdf
	BLvIANDv9p5.pdf
	BLvIANDv9p6.pdf
	BLvIANDv9p7.pdf



